Phoenix Journal #232



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

CHAPTER 1	1
THE NEWS DESK - by Dr. Al Overholt 3/14/98	1
IRANIAN FORCES CLASH WITH REBELS IN IRAQ	
DRUNKEN FED SHOOTS DEA AGENT	2
FATAL MISTAKES IN MEDICATION UP 260% IN 10 YEARS	3
'TIP OF THE ICEBERG'	3
MORE OUTPATIENTS	3
LOWER YOUR CHOLESTEROL BY EATING EGGS!	4
DR. BENJAMIN SPOCK NEEDS HELP WITH BILLS	
REVEALING TAX LABELS	5
JEWISH OFFICE IN BERLIN	5
U.S. TO PAY WHISTLE- BLOWER AT FBI LAB	6
REVERSING REVISIONISM	7
ADAPTIVE CHIPS	7
GOOD EXAMPLE IS BAD FOR GUN GRABBERS	8
AIRLINES POLLUTE CHESAPEAKE BAY AREA	8
ANOTHER MURDER TIED TO THE WHITE HOUSE??	8
SILENT BEEP: THE END OF OUR HIGH-TECH AGE	9
HARD ROCK KILLS	9
REMEMBER TESLA	10
BANKRUPTCIES SOAR	
LAND BILL ADVANCES	
TAX DRIVE KICKS OFF A VERY PERSONAL WAR	
COURT RULES SCOUTS' BAN ON GAYS IS DISCRIMINATORY	
A MINERAL DEFICIENCY THAT CAUSES LUNG PROBLEMS	
MAGNESIUM EASES BREATHING	
WEAVER WRITES BOOK	
CHALKING A NEW LINE	
LOVE AND WAR	
WAR CRIMES?	
STRANDED	
CHAPTER 2	15
HOW MAJOR POWERS HAVE CONSISTENTLY	
VIOLATED IRAQ'S SOVEREIGN INTEGRITY	
A SHORT HISTORY OF GREED, DUPLICITY AND AMORAL CONDUCT	15
AT WAR WITH THE U.S. CONSTITUTION PART II	
by Dr. John Coleman 3/3/98	15
CHAPTER 3	22
THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERONAN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF	
OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS PART VI IN A SERIES	~~
by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98	22

SHEM'S REIGN	22
WHAT IS THE CONNECTION OF SHEM TO GERMANY AND ASSYRIA?	
ANTI-SEMITIC BRAINWASHING	
WHY IS GERMANY NAMED DEUTSCH-LAND?	23
WHAT HAPPENED TO SHEM'S DESCENDANTS?	
SHEM WAS HIGH PRIEST	28
SOME OBJECTIONS ANSWERED	
WHO WAS SHAMASH	
KINGS OF EGYPT	
EGYPT'S FIRST RULERS	
SHEM IN EGYPT	
WHO WAS THE GOD OF MOSES?	
WHO WAS ASHER?	
WHO WAS THE CALF OF ISRAEL?	
WHO WAS KHENMU?	
CHAPTER 4	
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT - by Dr. Al Overholt 3/14/98	
THE ALLEGED CLINTON KGB FILE	
CHAPTER 5	
NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT	
KORTON: SPACE IS A VERY BUSY PLACE! 3/6/98 KORTON	
WHO REALLY WON THE SPACE RACE?	
WHY THE U.S. WAS NOT FIRST	
TO LAUNCH AN EARTH SATELLITE	42
THE SOVIETS FALL BEHIND	45
THE TRUE PURPOSE OF THE MOON RACE	
THE BATTLE FOR THE HARVEST MOON:	47
AMERICA'S DEFEAT IN SPACE	47
DIEGO GARCIA	49
CHAPTER 6	52
THE NEWS DESK - by Dr. Al Overholt 3/21/98	52
HILLARIOUS CLINTON—NOW PRESIDENT??	
BOEING, SEA LAUNCH—MARINE-BASED	
OPERATIONS, SPACE SYSTEMS	52
LAUNCH PLATFORM	
CREDIT UNION OPTION	53
INQUIRING MINDS WANT TO KNOW	54
AL FAYED, JUDGE REACH TRUCE	
EXCUSE FOR MARTIAL LAW	56
DOUBLE STANDARD?	
INDONESIAN RACISM	
MASONS QUESTIONED.	
LARRY HARRIS RELEASED FROM PRISON	
TRANSLATES AS YOU SCAN	
MICROSOFT PITS 'PATCH' AGAINST HACKER	

ECONOMIC 'CONSTITUTION' DRAFTED	60
SECRET NEGOTIATIONS	61
U.S. MAY STRIKE SERBS	61
HOW THEY VOTED ON AFRICA TRADE POLICY	62
MONTANA "OFFSHORE"	62
HOW 'BOUT THEM APPLES?	
CRIME WANES, INMATES WAX	
ENGLISH LANGUAGE CHANGE IN EUROPE AND ENGLAND	63
GUIDED BY THE SPIRIT	64
CHAPTER 7	67
REFLECTION ON: OUR TIMES, ORHOW	
TO KEEP A COOL HEAD WHILE EVERYONE	
AROUND YOU IS LOSING THEIRS by Rick Martin 3/20/98	
CHAPTER 8	70
THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON AN UNCENSORED HISTORY	
OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS PART VII IN A SERIES	
by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98	
MORE ON THE GOD OF MOSES	
MORE BULL(S)	
HOW WERE THE PYRAMIDS BUILT?	
CHRONOLOGY OF 1ST DYNASTY OF EGYPT	
SIR ISAAC NEWTON	
HEBREWS IN EGYPT	
ABRAM IN EGYPT	
ABRAHAM AND JUPITER	
ABRAHAM'S "THIGH"	
ABRAHAM WAS INTERPRETER OF JUPITER WHAT WAS A GROVE?	
RAIN OF DEATH	
A LOT YOU DON'T KNOW	
CHAPTER 9 CALIFORNIA, NEVADA INDIAN GAMING ASSOCIATION	
A DECLARATION AND RESOLUTION	84
A DECLARATION AND RESOLUTION BY THE INDIAN NATIONS OF CALIFORNIA	0.4
CHAPTER 10	
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:	
NIGA DISAPPOINTED IN PROPOSED CALIFORNIA AGREEMENT	
CHAPTER 11	
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT - by Dr. Al Overholt 3/21/98	
KOSOVO: "BOSNIA II" AND	
SERBIA'S AZTLAN, CHECHNYA	
SUMMARY	
APPENDIX I—A HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVE	
APPENDIX II—MADE FOR TV MURDERS IN BOSNIA	
CHAPTER 12	

THE NEWS DESK ANOTHER SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 3/21/98	. 95
THE COMING AMERICAN HOLOCAUST	. 95
CHAPTER 13	100
THE NEWS DESK - by Dr. Al Overholt 3/28/98	100
ALL PRISON-MATES SAY McDOUGAL MURDERED!!	100
SHARON: WE WILL TRY AGAIN TO KILL HAMAS LEADER	101
INSPECTIONS OF RENTED RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES	101
FARRAKHAN EXCOMMUNICATED IN MOSLEM RULING	103
IRS NEEDS TELEPHONE-POLE-MOUNTED	
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS	103
BUSH TO ATTEND CHILDREN'S SUMMIT	104
BRITAIN CONFIRMS IRAQI ANTHRAX WARNING	104
OIL DECISION TO FUEL RISE AT THE PUMP	
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT	
AGENCY (FEMA) REGIONAL BOUNDARIES	105
HYPING TEST SCORES	106
EVERYBODY LOVES KENAF	106
CARBON-BASED ELECTRONICS	107
ANTI-MEAT AD BANNED	107
PRISONER'S PAY RECORD	107
TOO LATE TO FIX ALL GOVERNMENT'S	
YEAR-2000 BUGS, OFFICIALS SAY	108
A GATHERING OF GENTLE BLESSINGS	109
CHAPTER 14	113
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORTS - by Dr. Al Overholt 3/28/98	113
ALASKA'S SUIT AGAINST TRIBAL TAX HITS HIGH COURT	113
COMMUNIST TO THE CORE	
GORE-CHERNOMYRDIN COMMISSION "HAMMERED"	115
NEWS ANALYSIS	115
GORE AND ARMAND HAMMER [HEIMER]	
THE COMMUNIST CONNECTION	117
AL GORE THEME: IF I HAD A HAMMER by F.R. Duplantier	117
CHAPTER 15	119
GARY WEAN'S LATEST NOTICE TO THE PEOPLE - by Gary Wean 3/25/98	119
A NOTICE TO THE PEOPLE	119

CHAPTER 1

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 3/14/98

IRANIAN FORCES CLASH WITH REBELS IN IRAQ

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 3/3/98: [quoting]

According to *Agence France Presse*, Iranian forces attacked Iraq on Sunday night, raiding anti-Iranian guerrillas based in Iraq. The attacks took place along the central front, due east of Baghdad. Mujahadeen sources in Iraq described a pitched battle covering several hundred square kilometers, including everything from rocket attacks to hand-to-hand combat. The Iranians, on the other hand, claimed that anti-Iranian guerrillas had tried to infiltrate the Iranian border near the town of Mehran and that nine had been killed. What is clear from the conflicting reports is that a major clash occurred along the border due east of Baghdad. Fighting took place up to twenty miles inside Iraqi territory near the towns of Tarsaq and Kut as well as on the border itself. Weapons included 82 mm mortars and RPG-18s, which are vehicle-mounted rockets. From the weapons and casualty claims, it appears that the Iranians deployed several company sized, mobile units in the raid, while simultaneously ambushing several squads of Mujahadeen forces. It is not clear from reports whether the Iranian attack was fully successful.

It has been our view that the recent Iraqi crisis began with an Iranian air raid on Mujahadeen positions in Iraq and that it had, as one of its elements, a plan to dismember Iraq. The decision by the United States to permit the United Nations to defuse the crisis apparently left Iran in the lurch. We believe that the Iranians may have decided to pursue this policy on their own. Or, to be more precise, Tehran may now read the balance of forces between themselves and Iraq as favoring Iran. They are also convinced that the United States will not, under any circumstances, intervene on the part of Iraq. This makes it possible, obviously, for Iran to attempt to reverse the results of the Iran-Iraq war.

If we are correct in this view, then the Iranian probe into Iraq was an opening salvo in an Iranian attack on Iraq. By striking at the central front, Iran may be trying to draw Iraqi forces out of the south, from near Basra and the Shatt al-Arab, the area of the Tigris and Euphrates rivers that Iran lost to Iraq in the Iran-Iraq war, and an essential strategic point in the region. Iran may, in fact, be pursuing the policy inherited from the United States of ratcheting up tensions in the hope of triggering a Kurdish uprising in the north, forcing Iraq to concentrate forces in the north and center, while the main Iranian thrust comes in the south, through the delta marshes.

Iranian diplomats have been on a major offensive in the week since the Annan mission to Iraq. This has included senior officials visiting Moscow, Beijing and Riyadh. Indeed, former Iranian President Rafsanjani completed a full eleven days in Saudi Arabia today, returning to Tehran. While the contents of the meetings are not fully known, the Iranians clearly broached the idea of dealing with Iraq through regional means rather than by depending on the United States. Put differently, they broached the idea of an Iranian attack

on Iraq.

A successful Iranian attack on Iraq would, of course, destroy the regional balance of power, making Iran the preeminent regional power. This would clearly endanger Saudi Arabia. However, Saudi Arabia is far more concerned with the price of oil than with geopolitics at the moment, and would be tempted to trade the balance of power for Iranian help in shoring up the price of oil. It is not clear what Iran could do in this respect, save that an attack on Iraq would certainly boost the world's oil price, at least temporarily.

It is, of course, purely speculative to assume that Iran is planning a unilateral attack on Iraq. One indication of its intentions will be if fighting resumes in the next few days. However, if we assume that the outcome of the [*prior*] Iran-Iraq war is intolerable to Iran, and they never tire of making that point, it also follows that this is one of those rare moments in which Iran has a reasonable possibility for rectifying that war's outcome. If Iran struck hard at Iraq, it is unlikely that any outside power would come to Baghdad's assistance directly or indirectly. It is a moment full of historical possibilities from the Iranian point of view. Last night's battle might have been an anomaly. We suspect that it might be an Iranian test of Iraqi resolve and capabilities, as well as of international response to such an adventure. Should we be correct, we may expect further combat in the coming days. [End quoting]

We can expect almost anything from the elite to get a Middle East war started one way or another. Hold on—it's going to get rough.

DRUNKEN FED SHOOTS DEA AGENT

From *THE JUBILEE*, Jan./Feb. 1998: [quoting]

According to his friends, DEA Special Agent Dick Fekete, 55, worked hard and drank hard. That's putting it mildly.

He was famous within the DEA as one of their best and most successful agents. He was also famous for drunkenness, violence, and criminal behavior. In 1997 Fekete was drinking in a bar when he went to break up an argument between two cooks. He shot one of them to death. It was ruled a justifiable shooting. In 1979 he was arrested for drunken disorderly conduct in a go-go bar in New Jersey. He once drove his car through the front door of his friend's apartment house in Philadelphia in a drunken rage. Another time he paid a 50-cent bridge toll by tearing a dollar bill in half, shoving it into the toll collector's hand and speeding off.

Despite his history of violent and bizarre behavior the DEA looked the other way. That came to a tragic end on December 12.

According to Florida police, after more than 10 hours of drinking at a Christmas party on Florida's Gold Coast, a reportedly incoherent Fekete stumbled into a car with fellow agent Shaun Curl for a ride home. What happened next police, the FBI, and a stunned DEA are trying to piece together. Police who responded to a roadside accident found Curl, 39, slumped over in the driver's seat, riddled with bullets, including one shot to the head. They found Fekete in a ditch along the side of the road, clutching his half-empty service revolver in one hand. United States Drug Enforcement Agent Dick Fekete may finally be

ruled unfit for DEA service. (*Then again, maybe he won't.*) [End quoting]

This provides maybe all too candid insight concerning the "mental slate" of such agencies as the DEA.

FATAL MISTAKES IN MEDICATION UP 260% IN 10 YEARS

From *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 3/1/98: [quoting]

The number of Americans who died from medication errors rose sharply between 1983 and 1993, according to a new study, and researchers say the trend appears to be continuing. One underlying cause may be the radical shift in patients' medical care from hospitals to outpatient settings.

An examination of all U.S. death certificates over the 10-year period, the most recent data available to the researchers, found that fatal medication errors had increased 260 percent overall. But among outpatients, the jump in such deaths was 850 percent.

The death of a patient in a hospital is recorded as an "inpatient death". The "outpatient" category encompasses people who died outside a hospital or in a hospital clinic or emergency room.

'TIP OF THE ICEBERG'

Deaths officially ascribed to medication errors "may represent only the tip of the iceberg", said David Phillips of the University of California at San Diego, because many such fatalities probably are not listed that way on death certificates.

Medication errors have received increasing attention in recent years, after widely reported cancer chemotherapy overdoses. "The reporting and awareness of such errors has increased," said Laurence Green, a pharmacist at Amgen, a California biotech company, who formerly worked at the National Institutes of Health.

The American Medical Association launched a National Patient Safety Foundation last year, in part to address medication errors.

MORE OUTPATIENTS

During the decade when the rise in deaths from medication errors was recorded, the number of outpatient encounters jumped 75 percent, while the number of days Americans spent in hospitals fell 21 percent.

Phillips said 1994 national death certificate data, which he recently obtained, shows a continued increase in such deaths. He and other authorities said the trend has probably continued since then.

The problem cannot be explained merely by patients taking overdoses of prescribed drugs, the California researcher said. The largest jump In outpatient drug error deaths involved anesthesia drugs, which never are self-administered. This suggests that the tremendous growth in outpatient surgery may be one part of the problem.

Outpatient deaths related to anesthetics rose four times faster than inpatient anesthesia fatalities.

"We know there has been a marked shift in the settings where patients are treated," said Phillips, a sociologist who is an authority on mortality trends. "We did this study because we were concerned that there might be an unfortunate side effect of this effort to economize, such as extra deaths from medication errors." [End quoting]

I'm sure the ones who plan to depopulate this planet don't mind these numbers, nor will they try to stop the needless deaths, with money to be made.

LOWER YOUR CHOLESTEROL... BY EATING EGGS!

From THE SEEKERS, by Mary Snell, Jan./Feb. 1998: [quoting]

Want to lower you cholesterol? Then take a tip from Leon D. Richardson.

Mr. Richardson, a successful industrialist and investment counselor in Hong Kong, had a history of high cholesterol. His doctor tried to lower it by putting him on the dangerous cholesterol drug Atromid-S. But the drug did little good.

Then, in February 1991 while Leon was in Guatemala on business he was kidnaped and held captive in a dungeon for three months and 10 days.

Most of the time he lived in total darkness—and subsisted almost entirely on hard-boiled eggs.

You would think that Leon's egg-diet would have made his cholesterol go through the roof But in fact, the opposite occurred!

Not only was his cholesterol lower after he was released, but so was his blood pressure!

His HDL, (the so-called "good" cholesterol) was higher, which is a positive sign for cardiac health. His doctors were amazed.

So where did the myth that eggs raise your cholesterol come from? From studies done over 50 years ago—by the Cereal Institute!

Those early studies used dried egg-yolk powder, not whole eggs. And dried egg-yolk powder, an oxidized form of egg yolk, is murder on your arteries! So forget all that non-sense about eggs being bad for you. Enjoy that omelette! You'll be eating one of nature's perfect foods. [End quoting]

Once again flawed research has a whole nation captive to wrong conclusions.

DR. BENJAMIN SPOCK NEEDS HELP WITH BILLS

From *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 2/28/98: [quoting]

Dr. Spock, who made millions with his famous how-to book on bringing up baby, has bigger medical bills than he can handle in his old age, and his wife is pleading for help.

Mary Morgan, the wife of the 94-year-old ailing doctor, sent a letter to friends and family asking help to offset Spock's \$10,000-a-month medical bills because insurance was covering only a fraction of the costs.

Spock will turn 95 on May 2, the day Pocket Books is scheduled to come out with the seventh edition of his book, *Baby And Child Care*. Since its debut in 1945, nearly 50 in million copies—in 39 different languages—have been sold.

Pocket Books learned of the letter and "immediately decided to help defray his medical expenses", according to a statement from the company Friday.

Spock has suffered a heart attack, stroke and several bouts of pneumonia. Morgan told *The New York Times* that she and her husband live on a budget of about \$100,000 a year, after deducting expenses for their agent, a secretary and their co-author. [End quoting]

It's hard to feel sorry for someone like him who has crippled the lives of so many children through his misguidance of parents in how to raise them.

REVEALING TAX LABELS

From UNKNOWN, 3/98: [quoting]

Despite a new state law prohibiting the Franchise Tax Board from including taxpayers' Social Security numbers in their addresses, 13 million 1997 tax forms were mailed last month with the numbers clearly visible. A spokeswoman for the Franchise Tax Board said the mailings were legal because the forms were all mailed in December; the new law didn't take effect until Jan. 1. [End quoting]

And the bureaucrats wonder why we become angry at such two-faced excuses of innocence.

JEWISH OFFICE IN BERLIN

From the INTERNET, 3/98: [quoting]

With prayers and the nailing of a mezuza—an inscribed SU611 symbolic of faith—to the doorpost, the American Jewish Committee opened offices in Berlin on Monday—one more sign of the renaissance of Jewish life in Central Europe. Germany's Jewish community, which numbered more than a half-million members before the Holocaust, has rebounded to more than 60,000 and is growing fast, fueled by Jewish immigration from Russia and former Soviet countries. [End quoting]

Another example of the Zionist police state.

U.S. TO PAY WHISTLE-BLOWER AT FBI LAB

From the DAILYNEWS, Los Angeles 2/27/98: [quoting]

In a finale to one of the FBI's most embarrassing episodes, the government agreed Thursday to pay \$1.16 million to a whistle-blower whose decade of persistent complaints finally led to an overhaul of the nationally renowned but badly flawed FBI crime laboratory.

"This is a recognition by the bureau (FBI) that it had done him wrong, a recognition of the 10 years of hell they put him through," said Stephen Kohn, a lawyer for the whistle-blower, Frederic Whitehurst, a 50-year-old scientist whose career at the crime lab will end with his resignation Friday.

The FBI, for its part, released a statement acknowledging Whitehurst's complaints had helped generate "vast improvements" in the policies and procedures at the lab.

"Dr. Whitehurst played a role in identifying specific areas to be examined, and some of the issues he noted resulted in both internal and external reviews," the FBI said.

For 10 years, though, Whitehurst's complaints about lab practices were largely ignored.

But last year his personal crusade prompted a scathing report about the FBI lab by Michael Bromwich, the Justice Department's inspector general. Bromwich found serious defects in the lab's scientific work and inaccurate testimony favoring the prosecution in several criminal cases.

But he also concluded the problems were "a far cry from the types of rampant and intentional wrongdoing alleged by Dr. Whitehurst", and castigated Whitehurst for harming "innocent persons" by making many inflammatory but unsubstantiated allegations.

Whitehurst, who was placed on paid administrative leave more than a year ago, was allowed to return to active duty Thursday and given a choice of remaining at work or resigning with compensation. He chose to resign.

Under terms of the settlement, the FBI agreed to pay \$1.16 million for an annuity that would furnish Whitehurst with annual amounts equal to the salary and pension he would have earned on the job until he reached the FBI retirement age of 57. The FBI also agreed not to discipline him and to pay <u>\$258,580 in fees to his lawyers</u>.

Kohn said Whitehurst, once the FBI's leading bomb residue expert, now will become executive director of the new Forensic Justice Project, which the lawyer said would examine complaints of other whistleblowers and assess the impact of defects in scientific work at various crime labs. [End quoting]

It's about time they settled with him, but it shouldn't be from the taxpayers' pockets. You can be sure this "justice" only happened because the bureaucrats couldn't come up with any method to cover their problems at the FBI.

REVERSING REVISIONISM

From UNKNOWN, 3/98: [quoting]

As a young Jew, David Cole researched the Holocaust dogma and found it lacking in substance. He traveled to Auschwitz, video taping it to show glaring errors between the official line and reality. Cole spoke before audiences for several years on his discoveries. But his life was threatened by the Jewish Defense League. He signed a retraction of the facts he unearthed. It is reported that both he and his mother suffer ill health resulting from JDL vindictiveness. [End quoting]

Those hounds from hell (JDL) will get what's due them and I don't think it will be long in coming as many awaken to the truth.

ADAPTIVE CHIPS

From UNKNOWN, 2/98: [quoting]

Each and every software application on your system has specific needs. Your word processor, for instance, requires only minimal multimedia and computational resources; Web browsers and games, on the other hand, may need a maximum of both.

To help computers allocate resources more efficiently, professors Fadi J. Kurdahi and Nader Bagherzadeh at the University of California, Irvine, are looking into ways to let computer chips change dynamically. "Our approach is to use computer power to make chips extremely flexible, so they can dynamically adapt their structure to each application they run and execute that application as efficiently and as quickly as possible," says Kurdahi. According to Bagherzadeh, the technology should take five years to come to fruition.

Recent advancements in manufacturing processes that have increased the number of transistors per chip are key to the technology. The Pentium 11, for instance, has 7.5 million transistors; Intel's next generation chip Merced will contain nearly 30 million. Kurdahi and Bagherzadeh look to the day when a chip can have 1 billion transistors.

President Clinton recently announced steps to fund this and other university projects to develop so-called billion-transistor chips. "These chips will be no larger than my fingernail, but their computing power will be 25,000 times greater than this entire mainframe computer," he said. Through the Defense Department, the government is supporting this effort to the tune of \$14 million. [End quoting]

Can you imagine what powerful computers the elite already have if they're telling us about this.

GOOD EXAMPLE IS BAD FOR GUN GRABBERS

From UNKNOWN, 3/98: [quoting]

Florida has had a successful "concealed carry" law since 1987 with insignificant abuse by gun owners and a giant drop in violent crime. But a state *Constitution* Revision Commission wants to return the law to local control. Sounds good, but it represents a return to the "good ol' boys" system, wherein the granting and pricing of permits was arbitrary and capricious. [End quoting]

Long-standing avenues of corrupt behavior don't give up easily, especially where money is concerned.

AIRLINES POLLUTE CHESAPEAKE BAY AREA

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, <wrldline@texas.net>, 2/28/98: [quoting]

Did you know that Airplanes "defuel" MILLIONS of GALLONS of JET FUEL into the CHESAPEAKE BAY each YEAR? From BWI Airport ALONE! In fact, by LAW, they MUST "defuel" [read DUMP] remaining fuel BEFORE LANDING.

What about your Lakes and Rivers, let alone the fine mist of JET FUEL in our atmosphere it creates. Yet if you spill some motor oil in your backyard and get "caught" they might have the EPA SWAT Team [yes, they have SWAT teams too] surround, then confiscate your property. Oh, the HYPOCRISY!

Oh, the people are ever so ignorant. [End quoting]

One more "small" example of the double (read two-faced) standards we live with.

ANOTHER MURDER TIED TO THE WHITE HOUSE??

From the INTERNET, 2/98: [quoting]

Did you know that Brit Hume, newsman, had a son named Sandy, also an up-and-coming White House/ Washington D.C. corresponent? Did you know that he SUPPOSEDLY killed himself? An up-andcoming, very popular and successful young man, now dead. Please let me know what you find out. [End quoting] Don't miss the related story on p.20.

SILENT BEEP: THE END OF OUR HIGH-TECH AGE

From the INTERNET, 2/98: [quoting]

My English is not so very good, so please—report all errors to me.

As long as you can read pages on the World Wide WEB, my computer said Beep every morning when I boot my PC. But on that evil DAY, which will come soon, there shall be no more computer BEEPs forever. And many other modern things we got used to meanwhile, will cease functioning forever and never more. Then at that evil day I shall miss my favourite toy, and I shall miss the World-Wide Web.

The question runs: what is wrong? The answer reads: they told us a FAKE STORY about the invention of the transistor. They told us that the transistor has been invented by three scientists at the famous American Bell Research Laboratory, at 21 December 1947. However, the real truth was that the USA government had encountered the transistor in July 1947 in the room of a crashed spaceship, near Roswell.

A space-ship of an extraterrestrial culture—many things were not clear at that time, and much was kept secret. Since 1947, the CIA has built a screen of smoke around this matter. Of course, the CIA only did this to cheat on the Russians, and not to cheat on their own people!!! Because, due to this well-kept knowledge, the Christendom could win the Cold War from the Soviet Union, while the transistor gave us a breakthrough in our technology. And very soon, we baked the multi-component chip, the CHIP which allowed us to build computers. The greatest advance??? However we did not realize the impact of that great LIE about the real origin of the transistor; i.e., there should be a mortgage on our progress. If it is true that our computers are alien technology, then those aliens are able to kill all our computers with the push of one button, because it is their technology!!! Or even, if not true, and the USA government refuses to give permission to the aliens for an invasion of our Earth, even then those aliens can destroy all our computers easily!!! A mortgage which must be paid, sooner or later, but must be paid!!! We naively thought that our progress was a piece of evolution. And from now on, we intend to think greater and more futures. [End quoting]

This story about the discovery of the transistor is true from what I have been able to find out. But it is just one of many examples of technology procured in ways other than we were told.

HARD ROCK KILLS

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/9/98: [quoting]

A Virginia high school student, thinking hard-rock, heavy metal was "bad for the brain", conducted his own experiment with mice. Those exposed to classical music were normal but those exposed to hard-rock killed each other off. [End quoting]

Sounds like he was a very wise soul to investigate an important portion of teenagers' lives today. Too bad

more don't follow his lead and investigate what the elite are cramming down our throats.

He has verified what other researchers have found—but all you have to do is listen to it for a while to sense the darkness it radiates.

REMEMBER TESLA

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, letter to editor, 3/9/98: [quoting]

The father of the polyphase alternating current—the electrical power system today employed worldwide—the inventor of hundreds of other electrical concepts the modern world is based on, the son of a Serbian priest, Nikola Tesla, who died in poverty in a New York hotel in January 1943. The electricity wizard, Tesla, envisioned and laid down the principles for the future "Star Wars" concepts (self-propelled missiles traveling at 350 mph and landing within a few feet of a target thousands of miles away) 100 years ago.

The new book *Biography of a Genius* by Marc J. Seifer, is the most comprehensive, revealing and commending biography of the genius Tesla one could recommend to the readers interested in Tesla's life and work. —T Jankovic (*The Life and Times of Nikola Tesla: Biography of a Genius is* **a**vailable from Liberty Library, 300 Independence Ave. SE, Washington, D.C. 20003 for \$35. —Ed.) [End quoting]

I haven't had a chance to read this book, but the schools should be teaching our children about him and his inventions—and even his biography. He was an amazing and gifted man.

BANKRUPTCIES SOAR

From THE MODESTO BEE, courtesy of C. Melgren, 2/28/98: [quoting]

More Americans filed for bankruptcy in 1997 than ever before, federal court officials reported Friday. More than 1.4 million bankruptcy petitions were filed—up about 300,000, or 19 percent, from the 1.17 million filed in 1996. [End quoting]

This must be the result of the **"robust"** economy that Billy Boy and Alan Greenspan have been reminding us about so often.

LAND BILL ADVANCES

From *THE MODESTO BEE*, courtesy of C. Melgren, 2/28/98: [quoting]

The Senate Judiciary Committee voted Thursday to advance legislation that would make it easier for private landowners to challenge local zoning and environmental restrictions in federal court. The bill would curtail lengthy local and state appeals of land-use disputes and allow a private property owner to more quickly take the matter to a federal court. [End quoting]

The government must be feeling some pressure, but this isn't enough give on their parts, so keep up the

pressure for reform.

TAX DRIVE KICKS OFF

From *THE MODESTO BEE*, 2/8/98: [quoting]

U.S. House members kicked off a drive Thursday for a constitutional amendment that would require a two-thirds "supermajority" vote in future Congresses for any tax increase. Speaker Newt Gingrich said the amendment would be a first step toward reducing the tax burden on American families. [End quoting]

If you believe him I still have that very big bridge to sell. Always remember they are out only to help themselves and **not us!!**

What these crooks want is **any excuse** to get at that document of freedom so they can **replace it—and they'll use any hook they can find!**

A VERY PERSONAL WAR

From THE MODESTO BEE, letter to editor, courtesy of C. Melgren, 2/28/98: [quoting]

What would happen if someone gave a war and nobody came?

I, for one, am tired of our "leaders" being ready to sacrifice our young people in order to settle differences, real or imagined, between countries. One solution that would make sense is this: If Clinton and Saddam Hussein have differences, give each of them the same weapon, set them on some island somewhere and have it out. The last one standing, wins. I'll bet neither one would have the guts to fight his own battles. — W.A. Smith [End quoting]

Right on.

COURT RULES SCOUTS' BAN ON GAYS IS DISCRIMINATORY

From THE MODESTO BEE, courtesy of C. Melgren, 3/3/98: [quoting]

The Boys Scouts of America suffered its first defeat Monday over its ban on homosexuals when a state appeals court ruled it discriminatory and said a gay scoutmaster should not have been expelled.

Eight years after James Dale was kicked out as an assistant scoutmaster because he is gay, the court said that "stereotypical notions about homosexuals must be rejected".

The ruling came as the Boy Scouts fight court challenges to exclusion policies around the country.

In California, the state Supreme Court is expected to rule this month on two discrimination lawsuits, one filed by a man who was expelled because he is gay and the other by twin boys who were thrown out because they do not believe in God.

The Boy Scouts of America said it will appeal Monday's decision. Spokesman Gregg Shields said the Scouts "have long taught traditional family values, and a homosexual is simply not a role model for those values."

A lower court judge had ruled in the Scouts' favor in 1995, calling homosexuality "a serious moral wrong" and agreeing with the Boy Scouts that the group is a private organization and has a constitutional right to decide who can belong.

The state Appellate Division overruled that decision Monday, saying the Boy Scouts and its local councils are "places of accommodation" that "emphasize open membership" and therefore must adhere to New Jersey's anti-discrimination law. [End quoting]

Isn't it interesting how the crooks can engineer all kinds of moral decay to fit their needs?

<u>A MINERAL DEFICIENCY</u> THAT CAUSES LUNG PROBLEMS

From THE SEEKERS, by Mary Snell, Jan./Feb. 1998: [quoting]

Magnesium is a mineral that is critical to good lung function. Unfortunately, most of us don't get enough magnesium in our diets because processing and refining food destroys much of the magnesium found in cereal, vegetable and diary products.

According to Dr. John Britton, magnesium is involved in a variety of biological activities, including some that may protect against the development of asthma and chronic respiratory problems.

MAGNESIUM EASES BREATHING

Magnesium performs its two functions in the respiratory system. First, it acts as a bronchial dilator protecting the bronchial tubes from spasms and constrictions. Second, magnesium plays a key role in producing energy for the chest-wall muscles and diaphragm. If those muscles are weak, breathing is more difficult.

Dr. F. M. Brunner conducted a double-blind, placebo-controlled test of patienis with bronchial asthma. Half of the patients were given magnesium supplements, and the other half took a placebo. The patients' breathing and energy levels were measured on breath-test machines and treadmills. Those taking magnesium had much less trouble breathing and significantly more energy. [End quoting] Imagine that!

WEAVER WRITES BOOK

From *MIDDLE AMERICAN NEWS*, March 1998: [quoting]

Former Green Beret Randy Weaver, the political eccentric whose wife and 14-year-old son were gunned down in 1992 by federal agents at the family's remote cabin near Ruby Ridge, Idaho, has written a book about his ordeal.

Weaver, who has said very little publicly about the bloody incident, wrote the book with his eldest daughter Sara. In it they detail the family's 11-day standoff with the federal government on their mountaintop homestead. Written with the help of a professional writer, the book is scheduled to be published this month. [End quoting]

It will be interesting to read their side of this "holocaust" story, if it makes it to print!

CHALKING A NEW LINE

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/9/98: [quoting]

With the Euro integrated money system scheduled to begin operations in 15 European nations next year, political lines are being redrawn. People are now thinking past trade to money, crime, education, foreign policy and national identity. Concerns are focusing on the single issue of nationalism versus a unified Europe. Populist politicians like France's Jean-Marie Le Pen and Austria's Jorg Haider are gaining in popularity thanks in part to a backlash against European unity. [End quoting]

Sounds like some sheep may be trying to wake up before they are led to the "slaughter".

LOVE AND WAR

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, letter to editor, 3/9/98: [quoting]

In the 1960s, Bill & Hillary said, "make love, not war". In the 1990s, he's saying, "Make love and war". Did he get it wrong both times? —J.B. Bissbee [End quoting]

Age should give a person wisdom, but in the case of Billy Boy and Hillary... It's probably hopeless at their age and state of moral decay.

WAR CRIMES?

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, letter to editor, 3/9/98: [quoting]

Iraq is a country that wants to trade oil to us for food. Why all the hate? Do you suppose Clinton made sexual advances to Saddam Hussein and got turned down? If Clinton bombs Iraq and kills women and children, can't the UN convict him of war crimes and hang him for it? Name withheld by request. [End quoting]

It is clear that many Americans are awake enough now to notice the absurdity and double-standards being applied to start another Middle East war. The question remains: will the war start anyway?

STRANDED

From ANGELS ON EARTH, Nov./Dec. 1997, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512: [quoting]

I had been driving all night from North Carolina to get to my parents' Kentucky home for Thanksgiving dinner. At 2:00 A.M. I noticed my fuel gauge nearing empty, but all the gas stations I passed were closed. When my car began to sputter a couple of hours later I coasted to a stop on the shoulder of the dark, deserted highway. *Now what*?

Opening my door, I heard a woman's voice: "Help me." Grabbing a flashlight from the glove compartment I walked toward the guardrail. Twenty feet down was a mangled car, overturned in a ditch. I ran down the hill and found the woman pinned under the car. "Don't worry," I said. "I won't leave you here." When I heard the rumble of a tractor-trailer I raced to flag it down. The trucker called for help on his CB, and we used my jack to lift the car off the woman. After the rescue squad came, the trucker helped me fill my gas tank.

I made it home in time for our turkey dinner. When I found out that the woman was recovering well, I said a heartfelt prayer of thanksgiving. I'd been put in the right place at the right time. —Steve Campbell [End quoting]

Don't you like these "coincidences"? I venture he has a much stronger believe in God and angels than previously.

CHAPTER 2

SPECIAL REPORT:

HOW MAJOR POWERS HAVE CONSISTENTLY VIOLATED IRAQ'S SOVEREIGN INTEGRITY

<u>A SHORT HISTORY OF GREED,</u> <u>DUPLICITY AND AMORAL CONDUCT</u>

Editor's note: Part I of this excellent outlay was our Front Page story last week.

AT WAR WITH THE U.S. CONSTITUTION PART II by Dr. John Coleman 3/3/98

When gold was discovered in the Transvaal Republic, President Kruger predicted that it would bring nothing but sorrow and pain to his people. The old patriarch's gloomy views were, unfortunately, completely vindicated through one of the cruelest wars of genocide ever waged in the 20th century, by "civilized England" against a nation they despised, the Afrikaaner nation.

The bottom line of that vile war was to get control of the vast mineral resources that lay beneath the barren lands of the Afrikaaner Republics; including the biggest gold find in history. All else, the protestations of concern for the Black people and "universal suffrage", were no more than a hollow sham and a fraud, a cover story for naked aggression by a country run by greedy Barbarians, dressed in morning coats, top hats and tails, determined to get what they wanted.

While the Lords and Ladies went about their social tea parties, Ascot, and all of the trappings of a great nation's upper crust at play, Afrikaaner women and children were dying like flies in the first recorded concentration camps in world history, set up by Lord Kitchener. Finally, when the Afrikaaner men in the field who were not defeated in battle could no longer stand the horrors their women and children were enduring, they surrendered, and the rich prize of the Aladdin's Cave treasures fell into the greedy paws of Great Britain.

The foregoing is stated as a forward to the history of aggression against the small nation of Iraq which has gone on ever since the same Britain that robbed the Afrikaaners of their gold and diamonds, began coveting the rich oil fields of Iraq. Sadly, in this shocking persecution, the United States joined forces with their British cousins, even as they are doing today in the unconstitutional, illegal, scofflaw war being waged by President Clinton at the behest of his British controllers; even as they did in 1991 when George Herbert Walker Bush grossly violated the *U.S. Constitution* and his oath of office, together with Secretary of State James Baker III, in promoting the Gulf War for and on behalf of the British Petroleum Company (B.P.). The two men should have been impeached, driven from office and tried for treason.

In the political pig sty which America has become in the aftermath of the Gulf War, this did not happen, and

it emboldened President Clinton to violate the *Constitution* in a carbon-copy attack on the sovereign nation of Iraq. Today, the United States is like the pigs in George Orwell's *Animal Farm* with both Republican and Democratic politicians telling the people that morals do not count for anything. A political pig sty, in which the political leadership is mired in mud and pig excrement, is what we have become today. Woe unto the United States, for there is a very heavy price waiting to be paid in the near future: and be sure, it will be extracted.

The looting of India with its Bengal opium, the looting of China through its people being turned into a nation of opium addicts, the war of genocide against the tiny Afrikaaner Republics for their gold and diamonds, the looting of the oil fields of Iran, Iraq and Saudi Arabia, the terrible war on Mexico in which America joined with the British to rob the Mexicans of their oil—these were "legitimate objectives" of Her Majesty Queen Victoria's Government and those who inherited her throne.

British politicians acted for great mercantile companies and their merchant banks in shaping British foreign policy. They cared not for the suffering of the people they wished to deprive of their natural resources. The agrarian crimes against the Irish are still fresh in the minds of those who lost so much in human resources. Lord Palmerston used the British Army as his own private army to take that which he felt was worth taking. Perhaps this idea was inherited by George Herbert Walker Bush, the scofflaw violator of the *U.S. Constitution*, when he went to war against Iraq in 1991.

Palmerston and his successors were engaged in a whole series of asset grabbing and stripping ventures between 1895 and 1900, through created "problems" which were engineered against the Afrikaaners, the Mexicans, the Arabs and the Venezuelans. The discovery of oil in Iraq and Iran was to lead to a long train of suppression, robbery, invasion and thieving of the natural resource found in abundance in these Middle East lands, which continues to this very day.

British diplomat Sir William D'Arcy secured a 60-year concession to exploit the Iran and Iraq oil fields following the discovery of the great oil fields at Masjid Sulaiman in 1908. When the concession was canceled, Winston Churchill ordered the RAF to drop bombs filled with poison gas on the Kurds who were occupying the land above the major oil discoveries of the Mosul. THIS WAS THE FIRST CHEMI-CAL WARFARE WEAPON USED IN MODERN TIMES. British field commanders told Churchill that the bombing was a "great success".

British intervention in Saudi Arabia unleashed a reign of terror by the Wahabi and Abdul Aziz families on behalf of their London masters, which put Britain firmly in control of the country through their surrogates. It was not the Arabs nor the Iraqis or Iranians who were the aggressors, but always the rapacious British oil companies. The manner in which the oil companies of Britain, France, Turkey and Syria misused their powers, later joined by U.S. petroleum companies, remains a national disgrace, even to this day.

The greedy lusting after the rich Mosul oil fields in Northern Iraq was what led to two invasions by the British, and later, the private war waged by George Herbert Walker Bush for his London associates. In 1932 the Kurds were gassed by British bombs delivered by the RAF, for refusing to vacate the Mosul vilayets. In 1919 British forces walked into Baghdad without any justification, no better than international pirates. The United States did not utter one word of condemnation of British aggression. On August 23, 1921, the British installed Feisal of Saudi Arabia as the king of Iraq!

In 1923 Britain was forced to recognize a protocol granted by the League of Nations when Iraq became a member, which awarded the Mosul fields to Iraq, to which they rightly belonged. This angered the British oil companies who thought their robber-barons were firmly ensconced for at least the next 70 years. The British thereupon incited the Kurds to engage in three major revolts against Iraqi control of the land under which sat the Mosul oil fields. Thousands of Kurds died in bloody fighting, and their leaders were executed by the Iraqis. In the aftermath of the Bush war against Iraq, he too ruthlessly used the Kurds, first inciting them to revolt against Saddam Hussein, and then abandoning them to their fate after the CIA-plotted attempted coup failed.

In 1937 the Syrians were shut out of their claims to the Mosul by British intrigue and double-dealing. Clearly The British Government did not want Syria trying to claim the rich Mosul prize they had coveted for so long. On April 22, 1937, the Turks signed a treaty of friendship with Iraq, which Turkey openly violated in 1991 in order to join the Bush Brigade's war against the Iraqis.

The current, blatant war against Iraq initiated by the American President Clinton is about one thing, and one thing only: to attain the long-sought-after Mosul oil fields, and indeed all of Iraq's oil fields, and then to partition the country. The weak countries of the Middle East hold about 72 percent of the world's oil, and the Western powers have from the very beginning of the discovery of these fields, sought to wrest these countries' natural resources from them.

In August of 1919, the State Department sent a memo to all of its foreign stations, ordering them to be on the lookout for oil acquisitions and concessions from countries in which they were stationed. Thus, from the very beginning, the coveting of Middle East oil was the main objective of the British and Americans, in which quest they were joined by Turkey, Germany, Syria and France. The discovery of the fantastically rich Mosul oil fields set off a frenzy of pacts, double-dealing, outright double crossing and theft of large sectors of Iraq and Iran. The force of American and British arms were the main "diplomatic" means whereby for a short season the British and Americans were able to hold on to the incredibly rich Mosul oil fields of Iraq.

The astounding cheating, lying, assassinations and deceptive practices engaged in by these two major world powers is enough to make one's stomach churn in disgust as well as causing the mind to boggle and the head to spin. What we are witnessing now by the Clinton administration, and before that, the Bush administration's sordid tactics against Iraq, are only an extension of the utterly depraved conduct by Britain and the U.S. toward the weak nations of Iraq and Iran which began at the turn of the 19th century.

The feeble excuse that Iraq threatened "world oil supplies" in 1991 was the rationale for the treacherous Bush war against that country. Today, with the Clinton administration, it is the even weaker excuse—that "Saddam is a madman who threatens the world with chemical weapons." A deceived and manipulated, brainwashed American people have thus far not been able to penetrate the veil of deception and discover the true underlying reasons why the United States continues to threaten the weak nation of Iraq. In the 1998 pending war against Iraq, the American people remain deceived as NEVER before.

In 1912 America entered the scene of Middle East oil conflicts when it became the power behind the Turkish Petroleum Company (TPC), which claimed the Mosul oil fields as its own. Not to be outdone, the British Government as official policy invested billions of dollars of "private capital" into TPC. This resulted

in Turkey being shunted out of the TPC, and so they and went for the Mosul oil fields in an audacious grab which left the Iraqis with nothing.

The dispossessed nations took their complaint to the League of Nations, and the Mosul oil fields grabbers convened at San Remo on April 24, 1920. Germany was cut out of the subsequent agreement "to make the world safe for democracy", according the lofty pretensions of the American and British delegates. The Mosul oil fields had been one of the major causes of the First World War, as documented by Churchill, Earl Jellicoe and Lloyd George. A British company was allotted the prize of the rich Mosul field, as well as those of Erzerum, Van and Biitlis oil fields—all the national property of Iraq.

This caused a storm of protest from Washington; State Department "diplomatic" notes flew thick and fast, with demands that an "Open Door" policy be followed in the Middle East. The "Open Door" demand was just another piece of diplomacy by deception through which the State Department carried out the dictates of the major oil companies and Wall Street banks.

In WWI, the British were at war with Turkey, whom they defeated with French help in 1917 in exchange for a promise that Britain would back French claims to a stake in the Mosul fields. With considerable help from the French, the British Army, trampling on the rights and sovereignty of the Iraqi nation, took over military control of Baghdad in a most violent rape of that nation. There was of course no Napoleon George Herbert Walker Bush to announce in ringing tones: "this aggression will not stand" in reference to the Iraqi attempt to take back "Kuwait", which was justly the property of Iraq as it had been for 400 years.

The British had adopted their old 1922 method of going to war when thwarted, using third-party nations to do their dirty work for them. Thus it was that George Herbert Walker Bush and William Jefferson Clinton were coopted by the British to fight the British war against Iraq for the sole objective of seizing the Mosul and Rumalia oil fields from the Iraqi people. Any of the other reasons given by Bush and Clinton may be dismissed with the contempt warranted for utter trash. Given these facts, the bleatings of Albright, Cohen and Berger have the hollowest of rings to them.

The French did not yet have enough experience with "Perfidious Albion" to know that the promises made by London to cut them into the Mosul oil deal would not materialize, and when they woke up to the presence of a knife in the back of the French nation, the going got rough. France signed an agreement with Turkey, "giving" the Mosul oil fields to the Turks in October of 1921 in defiance of the San Remo agreement, and Britain hit back by making Feisal, not even an Iraqi citizen, "King of Iraq".

The League of Nations called for the warring parties to meet at Lausanne for the November 1922 Lausanne Conference, but the wily British placed Fiesal in charge of a mixed bag of his troops, and led by a British officer, Feisal seized the Mosul for and on behalf of the British Government. Oil makes strange bedfellows, and the British joined France at Lausanne, recognizing its aspirations to obtain a piece of the Mosul property. As incredible as all this sounds, it is well documented in the British Museum in London, where I studied for five years. And remember, this skullduggery was happening in the sovereign nation of Iraq!

The Turks saw through what was an elaborate plot and they bolted the Conference, thereby ending it. The Turkish delegation accused Britain of being nothing less than a colonizer backed by military power: "With

great military effort they suppress by force of arms the Arabs' aspirations to independence and their constant desire to see the end of a regime which, by whatever name it may be called, is none the less a mere colonization."

Now, the United States stepped into the great Iraqi oil and land grab, by stating its intent to disregard the French-Turkish Lausanne agreement because "it barters legitimate American rights and betrays Armenia...." One can not be blamed for becoming confused. What American "legitimate rights" was the American government talking about? The same alleged "legitimate American rights" took expression in the George Herbert Walker Bush war against Iraq in 1991 and the 1998 "Clinton" war.

A second Lausanne Conference was convened in April of 1923, and it was filled with the same type of skullduggery vis-a-vis Iraq as was the first one, which was to so characterize the presidencies of Bush and Clinton in their defense of the naked land grab by "Kuwait" and to protect British Petroleum's obscene profits from the Rumalia oil fields which lay under the land stolen from Iraq and named "Kuwait" in later years—for this was what "Desert Storm" was all about. At Lausanne, Britain flatly stated that, unless the U.S. backed away from its objection to His Majesty's Government control of Mosul, Britain would not pay its war debts accumulated during WWI!

In 1925, the League of Nations awarded the British 25-year control of this integral part of Iraq. Strangely, bearing in mind that Turkey had gone to war with the British over the Mosul in WWI, and given the fact that it was one of the most aggrieved parties, it nevertheless agreed to abide by the League's award, and herein lies the seeds of the current (1998) partitioning agreement of Iraq between Britain, Turkey, Israel and the U.S. as we shall see.

With the settlement of the contentious Mosul, His Majesty's Government was now sitting on top of the richest oil fields in the world: the Mosul vilayets, Ahwaz, Kirkuk, Kind-i-Shrin, and Tuz Kharmati oil fields. The 1925 Lausanne Conference had "left open the free Mosul zones" which were to be decided later, but the British, losing no time, pressed their puppet government in Baghdad to turn these vast fields over to British control.

As things turned out, the rise of Iraqi patriots put a temporary end to the shocking exploitation of the weak nation of Iraq (which the Clinton administration now threatens to bomb with hundreds of planes loaded with the latest weapons of war, a defenseless Iraqi people). The United States has shown that it is perfectly willing to play the British game of diplomacy by deception and when the deception is discovered, back it with the force of superior arms.

One of the most disgraceful of many such disgraceful land and resources grabs backed up by superior force of arms occurred in 1899; the British, heavily engaged in waging a war of genocide in South Africa, desired to get their hands on the oil-rich Rumalia fields at the southernmost tip of Iraq. There were no rivers or natural barriers to delineate where "Kuwait" started and Iraq ended. The British, through force of superior arms, simply drew a line across the desert sands, a line running through the middle of the Rumalia oil fields, and then declared that the stolen territory, which had belonged to Iraq for 400 years, would henceforth be known as "Kuwait".

In 1920 the dirty, barbaric Al Sabah family was installed to keep the stolen territory in trust for British oil

interests (BP). (See the significance of B.P. in my book, *The Committee of 300*.) The United States did nothing to protest the rape of Iraq. In 1991, having supplied and financed Iraq and urging it to regain its lost territory, April Glaspie, our ambassador to Baghdad, met with President Saddam Hussein and assured the Iraqi leader that America would not oppose him if he decided to march into "Kuwait". Thus did this Jezebel set the trap into which Saddam Hussein walked.

Since her disgraceful, despicable, lying, deceptive role, Jezebel April Glaspie has disappeared and to this day hides from Senate investigators seeking the truth of her role in starting the Gulf War, a war that resulted in the death of millions of Iraqis—many of them young children, and the useless sacrificing of the lives of American servicemen. Both George Herbert Walker Bush and his arrogant Secretary of State, James Baker III, should have been impeached and tried for treason. Glaspie should also have been tried for treason; the verminous trio rightly belong in prison.

On July 1961, after years of warning from Iraq that it intended to reclaim the land stolen from it by force of arms, the British moved their armed forces into the border with Iraq—the "border" being an imaginary line drawn in the sand by the British. Iraq was helpless to retaliate against the superior British military force of arms, but nevertheless, continued to protest the theft of "Kuwait" and half of the Rumalia oil fields. From this beginning, "Kuwait" went on to become an undeclared "protectorate" of Great Britain, without any sort of internationally-recognized mandate. This was the first step in the long-range plan of the Western powers to partition Iraq.

As we have seen, in 1920 the British Government established a puppet regime in Iraq under Feisal.

On July 20, 1961, Iraq walked out of a meeting of CETO countries in protest at Kuwait being admitted to membership. The rise of a true Iraqi patriot, Pres. Kassem, was cut short by his "disappearance" (we now know he was murdered by MI-6). Kassem spent several years fiercely attacking "Kuwait" and its British masters, begging the world to grant justice for the Iraqi people. By the deception of granting "Kuwait" its independence—never mind that it was not Britain's to give—the land stolen from the Iraqi people along with the rich oil fields beneath the desert sands of what was in reality Southern Iraq, the Kuwaiti regime became a permanent fixture.

This is a short history of how Iraq became the victim of British and American aggression. How can we, a peace-loving nation priding itself in fairness, having allowed George Herbert Walker Bush and his cut-out, William Jefferson Clinton, to perpetuate such gross unfairness, condone first the Bush attack on Iraq, and now the threats of bombing by the Clinton administration, both without a constitutionally mandated declaration of war? How can we stand by and see this small nation "punished" in the name of partition, for believe me, that is the grand design which Clinton is trying to put in place: Partition Iraq under American control, and allow Turkey to come into the Mosul, along with Britain, Israel, and Syria.

This IS the game plan; let there be no mistake about it. The genocidal attacks on Iraq will continue until the Rothschild-Rockefellers control of the rich oil fields of Iraq as they did rich oil fields in Mexico, Colombia and Venezuela. How long are we, the American people, going to allow ourselves to be dumbed-down by the bandits of the American and British petroleum companies? Why are we allowing our military to crush a small nation that has never done us any harm? Why are we allowing the *U.S. Constitution* to be flouted by the current occupier of the White House? What is it going to take to wake up the American people to

the reality of how we are being deceived, cheated, lied to, and dragged into wars which are not any of our business?

The 1991 Bush war against Iraq was for the purposes of redrawing the map of the Middle East oil fields. Bush stopped short of total genocide of the Iraqi people because he was warned by Yevgeney Primakov of the Soviet Union that the Russians would not tolerate anything of the sort. There are those who say that Bush should have totally destroyed the Iraqi Army when he had the opportunity, and they wonder why he did not do so. Be assured of one thing: Bush did not break off the American attack because of the kindness of the heart; he broke off the engagement because the U.S. Navy flotilla in the Persian Gulf was threatened by an SS-18 ICBM Russian attack, no more and no less.

The feeble excuse that Iraq possesses chemical weapons and must, therefore, once again be subjected to a savage aerial bombardment is just incomprehensible! President Bush never told the truth about why the United States went to war against the Iraqi people; he blatantly lied, time after time, about the real reasons for the onslaught against Iraq, just as the current occupant of the White House is perpetuating that lie. Iran does NOT have any chemical and bacteriological weapons. The attack on Iraq, if it is allowed to go forward by a President who has zero authority to order such military action, will prove once again that the United States is a lawless nation. Why are the American people allowing Clinton to foul our national nest?

Turkey will get its reward when Iraq is partitioned, for being willing to sell its Islamic soul to the U.S. Turkey will join with Israel in sharing the spoils of the Mosul, and Israel will be rewarded for being willing to join with Turkey in providing a bulwark against Iran. Turkey will certainly move into Iraq from the north; that is why it has been clearing the Kurds from the Mosul lands in a shocking war of attrition which has been going on for almost two years, without so much as a peep out of Washington and London. Syria will move in and take over the Kirkuk oil fields. The partitioning of Iraq, which began with the theft of the southern tip of Iraq and then populating it with the vile Al Sabah rogues, will eventually encompass the whole country until Iraq is no more.

The United States will be in direct military control of Iraq once the Iraqi people have been ravaged and vanquished and are no longer able to defend their sovereign integrity. The United States will then be in control of more than 50 percent of the world's oil supplies. Only then will all pious pretensions be cast to the desert winds; it will no longer be necessary for the President to lie, lie, lie and lie about our noble intentions of stopping the "monster of Baghdad from threatening its neighbors with chemical weapons".

The foregoing is the copyright of Dr. J. Coleman and may only be reproduced, published or used in any way, with the express permission of the author.

CHAPTER 3

THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON AN UNCENSORED HISTORY OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS PART VI IN A SERIES by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98

Editor's note: The following continues the new series from Calvin Burgin; as he explains in a footnote, Heptameron means: Heptameron (hep-tam'-e-rön): "a book or treatise containing the actions of seven days, in the style of Boccaccio's Decameron or the Heptameron of Queen Margaret of Navarre (1492-1549)."

SHEM'S REIGN

WHAT IS THE CONNECTION OF SHEM TO GERMANY AND ASSYRIA?

Noah had three sons, Shem, Ham and Japheth. During the time of Peleg (*Gen. 10:25*), Noah divided the earth into areas for his sons and grandsons and sent them out to colonize their assigned area. *Deut. 32:8:* "When the Most High divided to the nations their inheritance, when he separated the sons of Adam, he set the bounds of the people according to the number of the children of Israel." If you are on the ball, you may ask, how could Noah divide the lands according to the number of the children of Israel, when Israel was not born until hundreds of years later? Here is an example of how problems present opportunities to learn something new.

The *Septuagint* says: "he set the bounds of the nations according to the number of the angels of God." *Goodspeed's* version says: "He assigned the realms of the nations to the various deities." The *Today's English Good News Bible* says: "he determined where peoples should live. He assigned to each nation a heavenly being." How many children of Israel were there? No, not hundreds or thousands, there were twelve. Perhaps this means God (actually the deified Shem) divided the land into 12 parts, probably by casting lots per verse 9 (KJV), *Num. 36:2, Josh. 14:2*, etc. He perhaps gave four parts to each of the three sons of Noah, and put an angel in charge of each division. See *Acts 17:26*. Other information suggests that he simply assigned each son or grandson a territory.

Shem had a son named Asshur (*Gen. 10:22; I Chron. 1:17*), who built Nineveh (*Gen. 10:11*), which became the capital of the land called Assyria. The descendants of Asshur (and the people he ruled over) were called Assyrians. They were White, mostly blonde: "In the Zagros hills and across the plain to the Tigris, there lived a...fair-haired...people akin the Guti [Goths] who...remained in what was afterwards Assyria, the neighbor land to Akkad" (page 5, *The Sumerians*, by C. Leonard Wooley.

They of course spoke a Semitic language and were Semitic (which means descended from Shem) by race. However, their language evolved into an Indo-Germanic language, known to historians as the language of the Hatti (see *A Comparative Grammar*, page 240 for how this happened). The Hatti were the ances-

tors of the Germanic tribe known later as Hessians.

One of their kings was "Tidal, king of nations" (Gen. 14:1). Tidal is an Indo-Germanic name.

ANTI-SEMITIC BRAINWASHING

Ham was the ancestor of the Black races, while Japheth was father of the Yellow races. Shem was ancestor of the White races. Of course, much mixing of races took place over the years and the situation is much more complex now.

The term "Semite" means (*Concise English Dictionary*) "A descendant of Shem" and the term "Semitic" means (same dictionary) "pertaining to the Semites". The names Shem and Sem are the same (see *Luke 3:36*). The term "anti-Semitic" means "anti-White race." The Jews have recently applied the term to mean "anti-Jewish", but to call a White man anti-Semitic is foolishness and political propaganda. The modern Zionist "New World Order" groups, the core of which are Ashkenazi or Khazar Turks (descendants of Japheth—see Arthur Koestler's book *The Thirteenth Tribe*) are calling themselves "Semites" and anybody who is against their plan of world-domination is called "anti-Semitic." This Orwellian "newspeak" can cost you money, freedoms and even your life. The *Bible* says, "My people are destroyed for lack of knowledge: because thou hast rejected knowledge, I will also reject thee…" (*Hosea 4:6*). Ask yourself, what knowledge is it that you might lack that would destroy you or cause God supposedly to reject you? Could part of it be a lack of knowledge of who you are and what your real relationship is supposed to be with God? The fact that it is not "politically correct" nowadays to talk about some of these subjects should be a tipoff to the wise.

WHY IS GERMANY NAMED DEUTSCH-LAND?

Much of the following information comes from the *Deutsche Chronik* by Johannes Turmair, Abensberg, 1526, and from the *Bayerische Chronik*. The *Bayerische Chronik* correctly preserves German history from the Flood to Roman times (390 BC), with one minor error. It dates the 430 years from the Covenant that was confirmed with Abraham from his 99th year, instead of from the correct date of his 75th year, thus all the dates are 24 years too late.

It says that 155 years after the Flood (which occurred 2370-2369 BC their date) a man named Tuitsch came to central Europe. His name was Tuisco or Tuisto in Latin, and in modern German he is called "Deutsch". Deutschland is named after him. The name "Tuitsch" means "Teacher" [Tuitscher]. The ancient documents show that he was father of Ninus and son of Noah, so he obviously was Noah's son Shem, the "Great Teacher". He gave us the alphabet and taught us mathematics, language and "SEMantics".

Higgins, *Anacalypsis*, Vol. I, p. 269, says "Thoth and Teutates and Hermes are allowed to be identical, and Hermes is allowed to be Mercury; and Mercury is the God to whom Wednesday is dedicated, and the mother of Mercury is Mai." Old records prove that Tuesday is named after Shem per Higgins! [*Wednes-day comes from Woden, which comes from the Norse Oden, Odin, Odon, from the Greek Adon, from the Egyptian Aton.*] Same page, Higgins says: "The Tau, T, is the emblem of Mercury, or Hermes. It is the crux ansata, and the crux Hermis. It was the last letter of the ancient alphabets, the end or boundary, whence it came to be used as a terminus to districts; but the crux Tau was also the emblem of the

generative power, of eternal transmigrating life, and thus was used indiscriminately with the Phallus. It was in fact, the phallus.

"The Tau is the Thoth, the Teut, the Teutates of the Druids; and Teutates was Mercury, in the Sanscrit called Cod or Somona-cod-om; or in German, God. In old German, Mercury was called Got." Then in Vol II., p. 164, he shows that Teut, Thoth, Athoth, or Hermes was the inventor of letters, "...and that in the old histories they are always connected with the idea of something magical" and shows that Shem was the original Magi, the Buddha, the Baccus, and our word "book" comes from "baccus", the god of learning, the Liber, which also means book or leaf or letter. He has much proof, too much to quote, that Monday was named from the god Minu (Noah), Tuesday from the god Tuzqo, Tusco, or Tuisco, and Wednesday from the god Mercury who was also at times called Odon/Aton, and shows that in the original languages their names always add up to 666! (He also shows that all the days of the week, in their original languages, add up to 666 each!)

The Mexicans had a god called Tiutle or Teotli, son of Mai (from whence they get the name Mayans), and Buddha was said to be son of Mai or Maya, who was originally Noah's wife Naamah or Naamai, or Naah-Maya, the original earth-mother-goddess.

We saw that Athothis was the 2nd king of Egypt, and now we know that this was Thoth, Tau, Teut, Teutsch. In later years he was worshipped as the god of Tuat, Duat, or in plain modern English, Twat, which was often feminine. He was also known by some as Osiris. Buddha was known as Bud-Tat, Tat, Datta, Twashta.

Nimrod was also known as Ninus, but this Ninus son of Shem was Ninus II and it is easy to confuse them. In the *Bible* and old records "son" can mean "grandson" or "descendant" or "relative", further confusing things (Jesus was Son of David, for instance).

Ninus II had a son named Trebeta (also Trever) who founded the city of Trier in Europe, which is the oldest city in Europe (and incidently, the birthplace of Karl Marx). "The inhabitants of Trier maintain that their city is the oldest in all Europe. Trier was founded by Trebeta, a son of the famous Assyrian King Ninus. In fact, one finds...in Trier the inscription reading, `Trier existed for 1300 years before Rome was rebuilt" by Joseph K. L. Bihl, *In deutschen Landen*, page 69.

Pliny said: "Antiklides relates that the letters were invented in Egypt by a person whose name was Menon...." (lib. vii, c. 56). Menon was Menu, Menes, Noah, whose functions were assumed by Shem, the Great Teacher. While I'm thinking of it, I will mention that Agni was the sun, which became a fire god, and Agamemnon was from the Sun of Noah. Agamemnon was brother to Mene-laus, king of Sparta. The Spartans were descended from Edom through his grandfather Abraham.

WHAT HAPPENED TO SHEM'S DESCENDANTS?

Noah gave Shem (Tuitsch the Tuitscher/Teacher) all the land between the Don River and the Rhine. When Shem went into Europe, he brought with him 32 chiefs or dukes who became the colonizers of Europe. Shem went into Europe in 2214 BC

Here are the 32 dukes and where they settled, per the *Bayerische Chronik (Bavarian Chronicle)* (manyof these names are listed in *Genesis 10*):

Sarmata, son of Joktan is the Hazarmaveth of *Gen. 10:26*. He settled Sarmatia and colonized southern Arabia, his son Tanaus gave his name to the river Tanais which is now called the Don.

Dacus, son of Mash, grandson of Aram, settled Dacia, later sent a colony into Denmark.

Geta, son of Mash (in Anderson's *Royal Genealogies* but not in the *Bavarian Chronicle*), father of the Getae of Roman history.

Gotha (Gether), father of the Goths.

Tibiscus, Latin spelling of Tiobo, which is Italian spelling of Jobab (*Gen. 10:29*), settled on the river Theiss or Tibiscus. Descendants migrated into Germany (see *Encyclopedia Britannica*, article "Archaeology").

Mash (Moesa), settled Mysia and Moesia.

Phrygus (Brigus), son of Mash, settled in Phyrgia and Europe.

Thynus, son of Mash, settled Bithynia in Asia Minor.

Dalmata (Almodad), settled Dalmatia on the Adriatic.

Jader (Jerah), founded the port called Jaderia Colonia in Illyria, some settled in Arabia.

Albanus (Albion, Abimael), settled in Albania and Britain (Albion).

Sabus (Sau, Sheba) settled on the river Save, migrated to Italy where they were known as Sabines.

Pannus (Benno), son of Mash, settled Pannonia.

Sala (Salon, Shelah) built the town Sala; gave name to river Sal.

Azalus (Aezel, Uzal), ancestor of the Azali, also settled in Aezeland in Pannonia.

Hister (Joktan), settled Istria. Hister is Indo-European and Joktan is Hebrew for "water course" (Rawlinson, *Ancient History*).

Adulas (Adler, Hadoram) colonized in Arabia, earlier dwelt on Upper Rhine. His son Than gave his name to the river Thonau, now called the Danube.

Dicla (Diklah) dwelt on Upper Rhine, later migrated to Gedrosia in Persia.

Obalus (Elb, Obal) gave his name to the river Elbe.

Epirus (Ophir) colonized Asia from Epirus.

Eber built Ebersau, called Eburodunum on Ptolemy's map.

Hoeril (Havilah) named the river Havel or Havila (Jacobus Schatz, Atlas Homannianus Illustratus,

p. 121), his descendants were the Heruli.

Arcadius, father of Arkites, settled Arcadia in Greece.

Emathius, father of Hamathites, settled Emathia in Macedonia.

Tiras, son of Japheth, colonized Thrace.

Moska (Meshech), son of Japheth, colonized east of the Carpathians.

Javan, son of Japheth, Hebrew name for Greece is Javan.

Thubal, son of Japheth, descendants settled in Spain according to Josephus.

Gomer, son of Japheth, settled for a time in Italy.

Asch (Ashkenaz), son of Gomer, mixed with Goths in central Europe. Father of the Ashkenazi.

Reif (Rus, Ripath), son of Gomer, settled in Scythia and White Russia.

Tagus (Togarmah), son of Gomer, for a time in Southern Europe.

Some of the names of the various German tribes were the Hessians (called Hatti in Roman history), Alemani, Suabi, Quadi, and Casuri. The Romans called them "Germani" which meant "War-men" (see

Ency. Brit. article "Germany"). These tribes came from the Black Sea area:

"There can be no doubt that they...migrated into Europe from the Caucasus and the countries around the Black and Caspian Seas" per *Smith's Classical Dictionary*, article "Germania", p. 361. This area around the Black Sea was part of the Assyrian Empire at one time. "The coast of the Black Sea...is called Assyria," p. 261, Perrot and Chipiez's *History of Art in Sardinia, Judaea, Syria and Asia Minor*, Vol. II. They were quoting Sylax, who wrote *Periplus* in about 550 BC The Assyrians fled to the Black Sea area after they were defeated by Nebuchadnezzar in Mesopotamia.

The Roman Pliny the Elder called these people dwelling north of the Black Sea the "Assyriani" (*Natural History*, IV, 12, page 183.).

Jerome was an eye-witness to the Assyrian migration into Europe and wrote "For Assur also is joined with them" (Letter 123, sec. 16, *Nicene and Post-Nicene Fathers*).

Diodorus of Sicily, a Greek writer of near the time of Christ, wrote: "...many conquered peoples were removed to other homes, and two of these became very great colonies: The one was composed of Assyrians and was removed to the land between Paphlagonia and Pontus, and the other was drawn from Media and planted along the Tanais [the modern river Don]" Book II, Para. 43.

Here is the king line of ancient Germany, beginning during the time of Noah. The dates have been corrected.

Tuitsch or Tuisto (Shem), ruled 236 years beginning 2214 to 1978 BC He was the chief of the 32 dukes. This is the period known as "neolithic" by archaeologists. He was father of Mannus, which is German for the Hebrew word Asshur. Shem left Europe in 2038 and went to Egypt where he ruled in Dynasty I beginning in 2037 (he still ruled Europe, from Egypt). Shem's headquarters in Europe was at Deutz (now called Koeln-Deutz). In the 25th year of his reign he held a state assembly (2190-2189) and divided the land among his descendants and ordained laws. He also brought in more colonies from Mesopotamia (Assyria).

Mannus (Mann, Ninus II, Asshur) ruled 72 years, 1978-1906, son of Shem. He sent colonies to Asia Minor and France. His son Herman established Phrygia, Mysia and Bithynia in Mannus' 34th year (1945-1944). Another son Trieber or Trebeta built Trier. Another son Nerus settled in the Netherlands.

Eingeb or Ingaevon ruled 36 years 1906-1870. He was son of Mannus/Asshur and became known in history as Mercury. His wife was Freia or Frigga, from whom we get the name "Friday" and from whom came a slang term meaning sexual intercourse. She was the German version of Venus. Eingeb instituted the observance of Weinnachten on December 24th. He settled Germans on the North Sea from Denmark to Dunkirk. African female warriors known as Amazons (led by Queen Myrein) advanced up the Danube towards him but he sent his generals Seiphyl and Mopser and defeated them, and he sent General Brigus to Spain to secure Spain from the Amazons.

Ausstaeb or Istaevon ruled 50 years 1870-1820. He was son of Eingeb and became known as the German Mars. His descendants became known as Rheinlanders. A great drought devastated Italy during his time.

Herman ruled 63 years 1820-1757. Son of Ausstaeb. He glorified war and taught war-making to the Germans and taught that it pleased God to die in battle. Druids began to flourish under him. He settled

central Germany and his descendants were the Hermanduri or Hermiones.

Mers ruled 46 years 1757-1711. Son of Herman. Merseburg named after him, his descendants were the Dithmarsii. Oryz, the Egyptian god-king Osiris and his wife Eisen came up the Danube valley and visited Mers. Much cultural contact with Egypt (this was the time of Joseph) from whom the Germans learned forging, and agriculture and medicine improvements.

Gampar, 44 years, 1711-1667, son of Mers, invented beer brewing, his daughter Araxa married Libys (the Egyptian and Spanish Hercules), the son of Oryz, and she gave birth to Tuscus, Schyth, Agatyrsus, Peucinger and Gutho.

Schwab, 46 years, 1667-1621, son of Gampar. Gave his name to Schwaben. In his reign Eisen came to Germany and taught the people various crafts.

Wandler, 41 years, 1621-1580, son of Schwab. Ancestor of the Wenden or Vandals, first known at Weser north of the Elbe. Afterwards they went to Spain, Africa, and restored the Roman Empire. They were defeated by General Belisarius. Those that did not migrate founded Luebeck, Rostoch, Dantzig.

Deuto, 27 years, 1580-1553, son of Wandler, gave his name to the Teutones. Led a campaign into France and built the cities of Vannes, Sens, Santgenge and Toulouse. He became the second German Mercury.

Alman (Allman, Altman) 64 years, 1553-1489, son of Deuto, became the German Hercules. Used trained lions in war, bore a lion on his shield, ancestor of the Bavarians who still use the lion as their symbol. His son Haun was father of the Huns. His son Helvos was the father of the Helvetii in Switzerland (Helvitia is the Swiss name for the country we call Switzerland). His sons Norein and Baier ruled in Bavaria. Mied and Math were the ancestors of the Mediomatrices in Alsace. Theur went abroad.

Baier, 60 years, 1489-1429, son of Alman, sent an army of Germans and Wends from Germany, Denmark and Gothland to the Balkans. One group, the Goths under Gebreich and Vilmer, settled on the river Theissa and lived there as the Getae until the time of Valentinian. Baier built Prague.

Ingram or Ingramus, 52 years, 1429-1377, son of Baier. He sent German colonists to Asia Minor including Tanhauser who led an army through Syria to Egypt. Ingram built Hermenia, later known as Reginoberg (Ratisbon).

Adalger or Adelger, 49 years, 1377-1328, son of Ingram. An army of German Amazons became famous during his time. They went through Asia Minor to Lycia where they were defeated.

Larein, 51 years, 1328-1277, son of Adalger. He was the Laertes of Trojan fame mentioned by the Roman historian Tacitus. He sent an army from Germany through Poland and Ruthenia to the Danube valley, where they were joined by other Germans, and migrated through Phrygia and settled in Armenia.

Ylsing or Ulsing, 53 years, 1277-1224, son of Larein. He was the Trojan Ulysses of Tacitus and was called Odysseus by the Greeks. He built Emmerick on the Main.

Brenner or Breno, 38 years, 1224-1186, son of Ylsing. During his reign Prichs ruled the Germans on the Black Sea and Queen Themyschyr conquered Bithynia, Paphlagonia and Cappadocia.

Heccar (Hykar or Highter), 31 years, 1186-1155, son of Brenner. He was famous as Hector of the First Trojan War.

Frank (Francus, Franco), 41 years, 1155-1114, son of Heccar. His descendants were the German Franks or Franconians.

Wolfheim Siclinger, 58 years, 1114-1056, son of Frank. He sent another migration of settlers to the Black Sea.

Kels, Gal and Hillyr, 50 years, 1056-1006, sons of Wolfheim. After their father died, Hillyr received Illyria, Gal received Gaul and Kels received Germany.

Alber, 60 years, 1006-946, son of Gal, ruled from France.

Walther, Panno and Schard, 62 years, 946-884, another son of Gal, ruled with Panno and Schard, grandsons of Hillyr. Italy is called Walhen or Walschland from Walther, Panno gave his name to Pannonia, and Schardinger or Schordisci were named after Schard.

Main, Angel and Treibl, 70 years, 884-814, sons of Walther, ruled jointly with Treibl, son of Panno. From Angel are descended the Angles of Thuringen and Meissen.

Myela, Laber and Penno, ruled jointly for 100 years, 814-714.

Venno and Helto, ruled jointly for 70 years, 714-644. Helto invaded Italy and expelled former inhabitants and settled.

Mader (Madyas), 55 years, 644-589. Built Milan.

Brenner II and Koenman, 110 years, 589-479. Brenner son of Mader. He was king of the Schwaben. His wife was Thamarin (Tomyris), queen of the Getae, Dacians and Scythians (many of whom were Israelites). She defeated and killed Cyrus the Great.

Landein and sons Antar and Rogar, 80 years, 479-399.

Brenner III, 38 years, 399-361, son of Breitmar. He was king over Schwaben and Bavarians and ruled Italy as well. His daughter Gueta married Philip of Macedon. Rome was burned in July 390 BC.

Schrim and Brenner IV, 98 years, 361-263, son of Brenner III.

Thessel, 85 years, 279-194, son of Brenner IV, ruled jointly with uncle Lauther and brother Euring. Dieth I and son Diethmer, 194-172. Dieth was son of Thessel. Diethmer invaded Palestine on behalf of Antiochus IV.

Baermund and Synpol, 45 years, 172-127.

Boiger, Kels and Teutenbuecher, 27 years, 127-100, ruled jointly over Germans and Bavarians. Scheirer, 30 years, 100-70.

Ernst (Arionistus) and Vocho, 20 years, 70-50. Ernst ruled Germany and France, Vocho ruled Bavaria, Austria and Hungary. Ernst led army of Bavarians and Helvetii into Italy but was defeated by Julius Caesar.

Pernpeist, 10 years, 50-40.

Cotz, Dieth II and Creitschir, circa 40-10 BC. In 13 BC Augustus attacked the Germans on the Danube. He later settled 40,000 Westphalians, Hessians and Schwaben on the west bank of the Rhine.

At this point the king line ceased, as the ruling families killed each other off in family feuds and inter-tribal warfare.

SHEM WAS HIGH PRIEST

The *Bible* tells the story of how Abram rescued his brother Lot, in Genesis 14, then in verse 18 it tells that Melchizedek, king of Salem, brought bread and wine, "...and he was the priest of the most high God." Melchizedek, king of Salem, THE priest of God (that is, the High Priest), blessed Abram and Abram gave him a tenth of the goods he had captured.

Many have debated about who this Melchizedek was, some saying he was Jesus, others saying he was a high-ranking angel. The ancient documents say he was Shem, the High Priest. *Halley's Bible Handbook* says "Hebrew tradition says that he was Shem, survivor of the Flood, who was still alive, earth's oldest living man, priest, in the patriarchal age, of the whole race" (p. 97). Shem died at age 600 in 2158 AM or 1816 BC, when Abram (Abraham) was 160 years old and Isaac was 60 (notice the apparent special meaning to the numbers 600 and 100 and 60).

After Abraham and Shem went through the appropriate ceremonies, and they brought out the wine that Shem had brought with him, what do you suppose they talked about? Do you think they discussed the weather and the state of the crops? Or did Shem perhaps talk about the times when he and his father Noah and his grandfather Lamech and great-grandfather Methusaleh used to sit around and discuss the conversations they had previously had with Adam, Seth, Cain, Enoch?

SOME OBJECTIONS ANSWERED

Some commentators disagree that Melchizedek was Shem. "Melchi" is Hebrew for "king" and "zedek" is Hebrew for "righteousness" and Melchisedec or Melchizedek is called "King of Righteousness" (*Heb.* 7:2). Thus, they say, this had to be Jesus before he was incarnated (does this mean that Melchizedek was not in the flesh?). However, "Zedek" was also the Hebrew word for "Jupiter," who was called "Zeus" or "Zeus-pitar" in Greek.

The Bible in Hebrews 7 says Melchisedec was "King of Peace" and "King of Righteousness" and "High Priest of God" and was "without father and without mother". Some preachers say this statement could only apply to Jesus Christ (quick, tell me the name of Jesus' mother! And don't we have His genealogy?). One writer says, quoting Heb. 7:4: "Now consider HOW GREAT THIS MAN WAS" (emphasis his). He says this language constitutes worship, which could apply only to God (Jesus). Yet, he overlooks or ignores the fact that it says "MAN", and Jesus was not considered to be a man until He was born of Mary. Unger's Dictionary says that "without father and without mother" means that his name was not recorded in the priestly genealogies. Lamsa correctly translates v. 6 as "But this man who is not recorded in their genealogies took tithes...." "After the order of" means "in the rank of" (see Living Bible) and refers to a position, not to a particular person's name. The rank, like the word "general" or "king", has no beginning of days or end of life, since it refers to a position, not a particular person ("The King is dead, long live the King!"). This King of Salem, counting His gold or planning a war or whatever it was that kings did in those days, hears of Abram's victory and grabs a loaf of bread and wine and rushes out to meet Abram and celebrate. Keep in mind that the king of Sodom was with Melchizedek (Gen. 14:17, 21) and this king of Sodom was so corrupt that in chapter 18 the Bible tells of the destruction of Sodom. In the next few verses (15:1) it says that "After these things, the word of the Lord came unto Abram in a vision...." If Melchizedek were Christ, why did He not simply tell Abram face to face while He was talking to him, why was a later "vision" necessary? The idea that Melchizedek was the One Who became Christ is ridiculous.

One writer said "Are there *two* High Priests? No! IMPOSSIBLE! The conclusion is inescapable. Contrary to many cherished man-thought-out ideas, Melchizedek and Christ are ONE AND THE SAME!" This is great reasoning, as long as you ignore much data like the parts of the *Bible* such as *Acts 4:6* "And Annas the high priest..." and the over 50 other places in the *Bible* where it speaks of high priests, none of whom were Jesus. Do you remember what happened to Jesus before His crucifixion—they took Him before the high priest, right? And there was a high priest before that high priest, and one before him. The High Priest changed about every 3 or 4 years or so. There is something wrong with these religious attempts at explanations.

Hebrew Myths: The Book of Genesis by Robert Graves and Raphael Patai, p. 147: "Others again say that Melchizedek (also known as Adoni-Zedek), was Abram's ancestor Shem, and that he now taught Abram the duties of priesthood, particularly the rules governing shew-bread, wine-libations and burned offerings. He also gave Abram the garments of skin made by God for Adam and Eve, stolen by Ham, but now restored to him. All this Shem did because God had appointed Abram his successor. For when Shem said: 'Abram, be you blessed by the Most High God, Maker of Heaven and Earth; and blessed be the Most High God Himself, who has delivered your enemies to you!', Abram at once cried: 'Is it seemly to bless the servant before the Master?'—a reproof which convinced God that Abram was the fitter to be His priest." For references, they then quote *Gen. Rab. 420-22; Lev. Rab. 25:6; Num. Rab. 4:8; B. Nedarim 32b; Tanhuma Buber Gen. 76.* Take note that they said that Melchi-zedek was also known as Adoni-zedek (*Joshua 10:1*)—this means Aton of Jupiter. It is a title that applied to more than one person.

On p. 150 they say: "Though Melchizedek, a name resembling Adoni-Zedek, King of Jerusalem (*Joshua* x. 1 ff), means 'The God Zedek is my King', it was later understood as 'Lord of Righteousness'. Zedek will have been the city-god of Salem, not the God of the Hebrews, and not monotheistically worshipped. The Ammonites called him 'Zaduk'. Zedek, moreover, was the Hebrew name for the planet Jupiter, which enabled the Midrash to develop from this encounter between Melchizedek and Abram a myth that the planet helped Abram against his enemies." We shall see that the encounter with the planet Jupiter during this incident in Abram's life was probably NOT a myth.

Some commentators will say that Salem is Jerusalem. However, Jerusalem was built on Mt. Moriah, where Abraham offered up Isaac as a sacrifice, which was a thicket during Abraham's time. Jerusalem did not exist yet. The ancient heathen writer Eupolemus says that Abraham met Melchizedek (and *received gifts FROM Melchizedek*) at the holy city of Hargarizim, which means Mt. Gerizim (see *Deut. 11:29; 27;12; Joshua 8:33, Judges 9:7*).

Jasher 16:11: "And Adonizedek king of Jerusalem, the same was Shem, went out with his men to meet Abram and his people, with bread and wine, and they remained together in the valley of Meleck." TAKE NOTE THAT THIS IS SAYING THAT SHEM WAS PRIEST OF ADON/ATON.

WHO WAS SHAMASH

Shem was deified as the god Shamash. "Shem was the original Mesopotamian omniscient and all-seeing sun god Shamash who fathered sons Kittum (which translates as 'truth'; Kittum is the origin of Shem's son Kittim) and Mesharum (which translates as 'justice'; he was the original 'Aram' that *Genesis* declares to be the offspring of Shem)" (*Noah & The Ark* by Arthur Frederick Ide, p. 63). Actually, Kittim was son of Javan who was son of Japheth who was brother of Shem.

"In the Babylon of Hammurabi's age, about 1700 BC, one of the most active gods was Shamash, the Sun, called also Babbar, perhaps a form of barbar 'the Bright One'. The Sun had also been venerated by the Sumerians, particularly at Larsa and Sippar, where he was named Utu" (*Near Eastern Mythology* by John Gray, p. 18.) Gray's book, p. 28, has a picture of Shem/Shamash in a boat (Ark?) from a clay seal. On page 44 is another picture of Shamash. Hammurabi is famous in archaeology for his laws, and he claims that he got his laws from Shamash! The famous Code of Hammurabi was found on a stele with a bas-relief of Hammurabi receiving the laws from Shamash/Shem!

If we can rely on our sources, Shamash is identified with Shem and with Utu. According to *Gods, Demons and Symbols of Ancient Mesopotamia* by Jeremy Black and Anthony Green, Utu was son of Nanna, the moon god, who was twin brother of Inana (Inanna, Innanna, etc.). "In Akkadian traditions he was sometimes made the son of Anu (An) or of Enlil. His wife was Serida or (in Akkadian) Aya. The two principal temples of Utu, both called E-babbar ('White House') were at Sippar in Akkad, and Larsa in southern Sumer'' (p. 184). Shem was father of the White race—''White House''. This book continues: "Utu/Samas [Shamash] came to be regarded as a god of truth, justice and right.... As a protector of right and destroyer of evil, he also had a warrior aspect to his personality." Shem was High Priest of God (what God is another question—perhaps not the God you think), who chased and eventually killed Nimrod. In the clay tablets, Shamash is often depicted as the PROTECTOR of Gilgamesh (whom I have shown to be equivalent to Nimrod II).

KINGS OF EGYPT

EGYPT'S FIRST RULERS

The main sources for the lists of rulers of Egypt come from the ancient historians Africanus, Eusebius, and the Armenian version of Eusebius. By adding up the length of reigns of the kings until you come to some datable event, then figuring backwards from the known date, you can determine the date to use to begin dating the Dynasty. By doing this, here is what we find:

1. Menes (Noah), reigned 62 years according to Africanus, this would have been 2254-2192 BC. According to Eusebius, he reigned 60 years, 2254-2194 BC. According to the Armenian version, he reigned 30 years. The first thought is that the records are corrupted and cannot be relied on. However, I have found that in *Bible* research, often when there seems to be a problem or contradiction, there is truth in both sides of the contradiction, and hidden wisdom involved.

2. Athothis (Shem), son of Menes, ruled 57 years per Africanus (2194-2137), 27 per Eusebius (2194-2167), and 25 per Armenian version (2192-2167).

3. Kenkenes (Canaan (KEN), son of Ham), ruled 31 years (2125-2094) per Africanus, 39 years (2133-2094) per Eusebius, and 39 per Armenian.

4. Unephes, 23 (Phoenicia) (2094-2083) per Africanus, 42 per Eusebius, and 42 (2167-2125) per Armenian version.

It turns out that these seeming discrepancies can be accounted for and the records can be correct, after all. Herman Hoeh in his *Compendium* summarizes the story thus (he mistakes Menes with Cush, and may be wrong about Nimrod):

"The account begins with the reign of Cush or Menes. He began to reign in Shinar, not in Egypt. He came to Egypt where he spent his last 30 years. Cush or Menes ruled altogether 62 years, after which Nimrod began his sole rule of 25 years. Nimrod settled in Egypt 60 years after the building of Babel, and reigned two years jointly with his father. His total reign in Egypt was therefore 27 years. Plutarch records that Osiris (Nimrod) had to flee Egypt at the end of 27 years. He was executed in the summer in the 28th year by Shem, in the month of Tammuz, the 17th day according to ancient tradition.

"These events may thus be clearly dated as follows: Menes (Cush), 60, 2254-2194 (reign prior to coming

of Nimrod). Athothis (Nimrod), 27, 2194-2167 (total reign in Egypt). Or Menes (Cush), 62, 2254-2192 (total reign of Cush). Athothis (Nimrod), 25, 2192-2167 (sole reign in Egypt).

"Cush came to Egypt about 2222 and united Upper and Lower Egypt under his supreme authority for 30 years—2222-2192. This marks the beginning of Cushite, or Ethiopian, settlement in Africa. Cush, at the time of death, may have been nearly 170 years of age.

"Josephus confirms this restoration of history in *Antiquities* book VIII, chapter vi, sect. 2: 'All the kings from Menes, who built Memphis...until Solomon...was more than one thousand three hundred years.'

"In 2167 Nimrod (Athothis) fled to Italy and was slain there [by Shem]. At the flight of Nimrod, his mother-wife Uenephes also had to flee — tradition states to the Delta. At this point some continued to reckon after the era of Nimrod or Athothis, since he had no male heir. Others reckoned after his mother-wife who went into hiding. Thirty years passed."

I think Hoeh was wrong in equating Menes with Cush. Cush was son of Menes. And Athothis was Shem, not Nimrod. Athothis probably built the mysterious city of This and founded the Thinite dynasty.

The Egyptian historian Manetho lists four more kings in Dynasty I. They are:

- 5. Usaphais, ruled 20 years, 2083-2063 BC.
- 6. Miebis, 26, 2063-2037.
- 7. Semempses, 18, 2037-2019.
- 8. Bieneches, 26, 2019-1993.

The total of Dynasty I is 261 years, 2254-1993 BC. Elsewhere I show that 2254 was the year of the destruction of the Tower of Babel, and is also the year of the beginning of many world dynasties given in various records (for example, the Chinese begin their dynasties in 2254 BC).

SHEM IN EGYPT

The seventh king in the above list is Semempses. This means Sem the Great. Sem is Shem (*Luke 3:36*, King James Version: "...which was the son of Sem..."). Sem is the Greek spelling of the Hebrew Shem. The Egyptian hieroglyphics show him to be Asiatic, not Egyptian, an old man with a long beard in priestly garb. He would have been 430 years old per Herman Hoeh. Shem left Egypt one year before the death of Noah (he perhaps heard that Noah was ailing), which was 350 years after the Flood. Hoeh dates Noah's death in 2019 BC, and the above dates of Dynasty I are Hoeh's dates, but in previous writings I have shown that Hoeh's dates (the dates used in the old records) are 50 (sometimes 40) years older than the dates I determine by using only the *Bible*.

WHO WAS THE GOD OF MOSES?

When Moses went up on the mountain of Sinai, he asked God, who are you? What did God say (according to the story)? Read it for yourself, don't ask a preacher.

For instance, the King James Bible says:

Exodus 3:13: And Moses said unto God, Behold, when I come unto the children of Israel, and shall say unto them, The God of your fathers hath sent me unto you; and they shall say to me, What is his name? what shall I say unto them?

Exodus 3:14: And God said unto Moses, **IAM THAT IAM**: and he said, Thus shalt thou say unto the children of Israel, IAM hath sent me unto you.

However, the Hebrew manuscripts, and the Jewish *Torah* and *Tanakh* in the newer English versions based on the Masoretic text, say that God said His name was "Ehyeh-Asher-Ehyeh". "Ehyeh" is anglicized Hebrew for "I am", but "Asher" can be translated "black" (see *Strong's Concordance* #806) and is the name of a prominent "pagan" god, the God of Assyria.

The Jewish *TORAH*, *The Five Books of Moses*, *A new translation of the Holy Scriptures according to the Masoretic text* by the Jewish Publication Society, says: "And God said to Moses, 'Ehyeh-Asher-Ehyeh'. He continued, 'Thus shall you say to the Israelites, Ehyeh sent me to you.""

The translators shifted the emphasis onto the words "I am" away from the too-blatantly obvious name, "Asher". Some "experts" and "authorities" will disagree with me (others, though, agree) but don't blindly accept the experts or authorities OR ME. I merely bring these things to your attention, I hope you have the maturity to think and study and come to your own understanding.

George Lamsa's Translation from the Aramaic of the *Peshitta* says: "And God said to Moses, I am AHIAH ASHAR HIGH (that is, THE LIVING GOD); and he said, Thus you shall say to the children of Israel, AHIAH has sent me to you."

There can be no doubt that the Hebrew Masoretic text upon which the majority of *Bible* versions are based says "ehyeh Asher ehyeh". The arguments occur over the interpretation of the words, some say it means this, others say it means that. Let me remind you that, according to the rules of translation, you do not translate proper names. President Eisenhower was Eisenhower in every language, he was not President "Iron-worker". You might argue that Asher means "that" or "black" or "I Am" or "tree" or whatever. Nevertheless, by the rules of translation, the name is not translated, it is transliterated. Asher is Asher, but the translators violate their own rules and conventions and LIE to you.

Adam Clarke's *Commentary*, Earle's Abridgement, p. 94, concerning this verse, says: "14. *IAM THAT IAM. Eheyeh asher Eheyeh.* These words have been variously understood. The *Vulgate* translates, 'I am who am.' The *Septuagint*, 'I am he who exists.' The *Syriac*, the *Persic*, and the *Chaldee* preserve the original words without any gloss."

Most Hebrew scholars agree that "eheyeh" or "ehyeh" means "I am". So you have "I am Asher I am." Hebrew reads from right to left, and when it was transposed into left to right, an extra "I am" was obviously

put in. If you want to check it out, you will find that "I" and "am" are not in the Strong's or Young's concordances which are usually used to research Biblical words such as these unless you know how to find them. Try Strong's #1961, hayah. The "h" is often silent in ancient languages such as what we (wrongly) call Hebrew (as in Har-mageddon or Armageddon, or see *Judges 12:6* where 42,000 Israelites were murdered by other Israelites because of this). Ehyeh and hayah are the same Hebrew word, spelled (misspelled) to confuse you.

The emphasis had to be shifted to "I am", away from "Asher"!

WHO WAS ASHER?

Let's see who was Asher. The ancient languages were not in the English alphabet and there is no "correct" way of spelling when you translate their characters into English, except by convention. So you will find Asher, Ashur, Asshur, etc., used sometimes to try to distinguish between various individuals, something like using John, Jahn, Johne, etc., to try to distinguish between various people all originally actually named John. Or usually the spellings will vary simply because of the preference of the translators. I will use various spellings in this document.

Asher was the god of the Assyrians. The Assyrians were named after Asher, cities were named after him, and individuals were named after him, names such as King Ashurbanipal or Ashurnasirpal. The capital of Assyria was Nineveh. The *Bible* says, *Gen. 10:11*: "And out of that land went forth Asshur, and builded Nineveh...."

The British Museum and others have original carvings from ancient Mesopotamia that depict Ashurbanipul and Ashurnasirpal in scenes of hunting or drinking, with their gods. "Pul" was Assyrian for "wolf" which eventually became loup or lupe in French and then lobo in English. Nineveh was pulled down by Pul. Some statues of the god of Assyria show him as an extremely muscular man with arms thicker than some people's thigh. They show him with wings. They depict him with long plaited beard and hair. Hair or a headdress of sorts is piled on top of his head and if you pay attention, you will note that he has horns. In fact, he is shown with four horns (two pair) curling around the hair/headdress. The nearly same head is shown on the winged human-headed bull god of Assyria and Babylon. An original is on display at the Louvre in Paris. The horns (single pair) are very apparent on the winged bull.

So we see that the god of Assyria was depicted as a horned, winged man and as a winged, horned bull. His name was Asher (Ashur, Asshur, etc.).

The famous James Henry Breasted in *Ancient Times, A History of the Early World*, spells both the city and the god "Assur". He says, page 191, "Assur's oldest symbol was the tree of life, which the Assyrians set up and decorated every spring like a Maypole." Later we will have more about this erect pole of Asher/Assur. Asher's counterpart in Egypt was ASAR/ASHAR, also known as Osiris.

WHO WAS THE CALF OF ISRAEL?

Now let's look at the Biblical story. Moses sees the burning bush on the mountain, and hears the voice of God. He asks, "Who are you?" and God says, "I am Asher." He gives Moses a commission to free the

Israelites. Moses goes back and tells the Israelites about God, leads them into the wilderness then goes back up on the mountain where God gives him the *Ten Commandments*. You are familiar with the story. He is gone upon the mountain 40 days and the Israelites, giving up on him, say "we wot not what is become of him." They gather their gold and make statues of their god, of all things, a "golden calf". Aaron says to them (*Ex. 32:4*): "*THESE* ARE THY GODS, O Israel, WHICH BROUGHT THEE UP OUT OF THE LAND OF EGYPT." *Calves*?

The nation of Assyria was named after Asher, as a matter of fact, the Massoretic text says "I am Asher-Ehyeh" which is exactly the same in the original as "I am Assyria" (Asherehyeh). The *Bible* says that an angel led the Israelites out of Egypt (the angel that gave the *10 commandments*), and the text says his name was Asher. These were the commandments that said "Thou Shalt Not Kill", and then Asher told his people to invade the cities and kill every man, woman and child and all the cattle and then He killed thousands of Israelites for not completely obeying Him. Not to overlook that God instituted cutting of throats and sprinkling of blood as religious rites, and God took special pleasure in the smell of burned flesh. So the story goes.

Strong's *Concordance* #806 says Ashur/Asshur means "black". You may think Ashur or Asher or Asshur are all different words, but that is not so, they are exactly the same consonants in old Hebrew and are merely spelled differently by the translators to confuse and deceive you. Shem had a descendant named Ashur (Asshur) who was the father of the Assyrians per many *Bible* reference books (see footnote in *Scofield Bible*). Shem, you will recall, was a "giant" who lived to be over 600 years old (*Gen. 11:10, 11*).

So who was Ashur? Ashur was the god of the Assyrians, the Assyrians were named after their god Ashur. It was the same god of the Egyptians, except the Egyptians spoke a different language and used a different name, but it was the same god, and in both cases, this god had horns! We know it was the same god because in each case it was labeled by the people as the "Original Creator". Look up the ancient statues and pictures of the horned gods of the Egyptians and Assyrians!

WHO WAS KHENMU?

Acts 7:38 says that the being that spoke to Moses, and gave the *Ten Commandments*, was not Almighty God, but was in fact an angel. Whether this is true or not is for you to decide, I merely remind you what the text actually says. The angel told Moses that his name was Asher. What he said, in Hebrew, said out loud into English and spelled to indicate the sound, would apparently have been something like "Yah Assyria". Say "Ehyeh Asher Ehyeh" and "Yah Assyria" out loud a few times and you will know what I mean. Both ways means "the God Asher" or "I am Asher".

While Moses was talking to Asher, the Israelites grew impatient and said let's make our own god, and built what the KJV calls a "golden calf". The Hebrew word for calf is EGEL (Strong's #5696). If you do a little checking, you find that the Greek word for angel and the Hebrew word for calf were originally exactly the same word. The Greek word for "angel" is "aggelos" () (Strong's #32 in Greek section), which is simply the Greek form of the Hebrew word "egel".

The Hebrew word for the title or rank (not personal name) of this being was written "BL" and could be and

was variously translated as baal, bull, Bel, ball, etc. Our modern "ball games" trace back to "baal gamos" worship (marriage) ceremonies. The Hebrew letters are bet and lamed , the Masoretic text also has the aleph (alef) in the middle (remember to read right to left). Originally the Hebrew (actually not Hebrew, but let's try to keep it simple for now) was only B and L, and was translated various ways according to the whim of the translators. The Hebrew for "father" was B (bet) and later the vowel "a" was added to both sides, giving "aBa" which is the later Hebrew word for father. The L or Lamed was the letter for God (El, L, Lamed) and Ba-El was the "father God", also known as "Ba-Al or Baal". The Al of Allah and the El of the Elohim worshippers were originally exactly the same letter, but became spelled differently by adding the different vowels so that the religions could go to war with each other and kill each other in the name of their "god".

One of the mysterious things that Paul talked about was the "worshipping of angels" (*Gal. 2:18*). If you believe the *Bible*, then what is this worshipping of angels? Paul said that the law came by "disposition of angels" (*Acts 7:53*).

Ex. 14:19 "And the **angel** of God, which went before the camp of Israel, removed and went behind them; and the pillar of the cloud went from before their face, and stood behind them...." Or, "Behold, I send an **angel** before thee, to keep thee in the way, and to bring thee into the place which I have prepared" (*Ex.* 23:20). An angel led the Israelites out of Egypt. When Moses went up on Mt. Sinai and did not return immediately, Aaron gathered contributions of gold from the people and made them an idol. What was that idol? Of course, it was a "calf" (*Ex.* 32:4), egel, aggelos, angel. And what did Aaron say about that idol? He (and the others) said, "THERE be thy gods, O Israel, WHICH BROUGHT THEE UP out of the land of Egypt."

An angel led the Israelites out of Egypt. What did that angel look like? If you can believe your *Bible*, it looked like a bovine creature. It was inside of, and controlling, a "flaming" "pillar of cloud", so the story goes. In *Ezekiel*, in the famous "flying saucer" chapter, is a description of some type of flying vehicle giving off bright lights, with "wheels within wheels", and piloted by four creatures, one of which had horns. Ezekiel thought that the vehicle was alive, since it "talked," and flew. This description can be understood various ways, I understand it to possibly be of four vehicles, each one with four co-pilots, and these four co-pilots had the head of an ox, a man, a lion, and an eagle. However you understand it, what is clear is that Ezekiel is describing some type of spirit or extraterrestrial being with the head of an ox.

Now get out your Strong's or Young's concordance, and look up the Greek word for angel. It is AGGELOS (). Then look up the Hebrew word EGEL in the Hebrew section. You will find that it is translated as "bullock" or "calf". Can you see that the Greek and Hebrew words were the same word? The Greek word for angel IS the Hebrew word for bull, written in Greek form! Also look up the Hebrew word for heifer (eglah)! The Greek for angel is Strong's #32, aggelos, and the plural of aggelos is aggele, Strong's #34, which Strong's says means a herd of cattle!

Now get a book about ancient Egypt and look up the gods Apis, or Meh-urit or Mnevis or Khnum (Khnemu). They all have the head of a bull (and later, ram). These gods were worshipped. Apis is part of Utnapistim. Apis is Egyptian for ox, and became the Latin bos.

When the angel appeared to lead the Israelites out of Egypt, they knew exactly what it was (or thought they

did, anyway), as they had grown up in a society that worshipped these gods, and their own fathers told them about them. It was a bull!

The word "Angus", meaning a certain breed of bull, comes from the Hebrew and Greek word for angel. And the Anglo-Saxons were the I'Saac's sons ('Saxsons') who worshipped angels, and bulls. The slang term for the British is "John Bull". This bull worship spread worldwide, into India, Spanish bullfights, horned gods of the Nordics, etc. The Hebrews had horns on their altars. The priests wore baals/bells on their garments (*Ex. 28:33*, etc.). They also wore pomegranates (same verses). The real significance of the pomegranates was supposed to be a big Secret. The ancient Greek writer Pausanias said: "But the particulars respecting the pomegranate, as they belong to a secret discourse, I shall pass by in silence." The pillars of Jachin and Boaz in the Temple of Solomon and the Masonic Mysteries had one hundred pomegranates around each of their capitals (*I Kings 7:20; 2 Chron. 3:16, 17*). "The pomegranate was as sacred among the Gentiles as among the Jews." At the Pelusium Zeus Casius held this Mysterious Fruit in his hand. I reveal the secret of the pomegranate in *The Hoax of Judeo-Christianity*.

[To be continued.]

CHAPTER 4

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 3/14/98

THE ALLEGED CLINTON KGB FILE

Editor's note: We share the following information with you longtime readers who have read for many years in the pages of CONTACT and the Phoenix Journals about the secret genetic engineering technology perfected in both the USA and USSR in the 1970s to create robotic duplicates. While we have no way to verify Skolnick's information, which frequently is peppered with dis/ misinformation, the following nevertheless rings of great plausibility. This was taken from the CONTACT March 17, 1998, Vol. 20, #4.

From the Internet, by Sherman H. Skolnick, Conspiracy Nation—Vol. 11 Num. 90, 3/13/98: [quoting]

Long whispered about, a file now has surfaced from the KGB, the secret police of the former Soviet Union. Several commentators have the file and are silent cowards. Some declare the death of network broadcaster Brit Hume's son [1] is linked to this. Was it murder or suicide?

The KGB file shows that the person identified as or calling himself William Jefferson Clinton has an exact double, except for a few details such as a recently removed mole and distinctive private parts. Hey: Do Paula Corbin Jones and Monica Lewinsky know the truth?

For some 70 years, Russian scientists have perfected ways to create doubles. Mass media items about animal clones may be the way the press fakers skirt around the truth. And who publicly condemned the idea of manufacturing humans? Why, the alleged Clinton. (Which "Clinton" made the public statement?)

Reporters traveling with the alleged Clinton talk among themselves about the double or clone. Which is which? Is there a "real" William Jefferson Clinton? Talkative reporters, however, can lose their Secret Service press credentials.

Knowing about this was the Secret Service's top expert on physical surveillance of the President. That specialist was murdered with other presidential personnel through a sabotaged plane crash, August 1996, near Jackson Hole, Wyoming. A projectile hit the plane, say military witnesses. (The alleged Clinton had left, earlier, by helicopter, to go to his birthday party.)

The KGB file details the relationship of the alleged Clinton—actually the alleged CLINTONS, plural with the Czechoslovak Communist Party Chief's son in Prague and at Oxford. The KGB threw junior off a roof to his death (the file gives the grisly details) because he discovered about the clone.

The file, step by step, gives the chronology of how the alleged Clinton was groomed from an early age by both the CIA and the KGB. Useful was his split personality syndrome which often makes "Clinton" forget who he is and makes him not know murder from love. With young "Clinton" supposedly under **his** wing,

the CIA Station Chief in London went along, hoping to unravel KGB methods, the file asserts. The alleged Clinton was tracked as he attended anti-war rallies in Europe—set up by the American CIA but actually by KGB. Sort of a series of Chinese trick boxes.

The CIA knew, the file shows, that the KGB paid for young Clinton's trip to Moscow and his stay at an expensive hotel there. To confuse matters, Clinton's pal Strobe Talbot was described as a "Marxist", to divert attention. To nail down his credibility with CIA, while KGB actually controlled the situation, the Soviets gave the alleged Clinton a secret transcript of Krushchev condemning Stalinists, the file shows.

Numerous dates, amounts, and details show the KGB was keeping track of the alleged Clinton's pal, Vincent W. Foster, Jr., and his acts as a super courier of illicit funds and money laundry operator, traveling great distances, including to the Soviet Union, years prior to Foster's short time as a White House deputy counsel in 1993. (National security is a reason for covering up the murder of Foster disguised as a suicide—the CIA-KGB-NSA overlaps.)

To confirm its authenticity and trip-up spy-watchers, the file has several Russian-language code words.

The file's blackmail possibilities are obvious: the alleged Clinton is a clone, part of a method perfected by Russian scientists. The file is loaded with blockbuster revelations, for example, that Lee Harvey Oswald was not the lone assassin of President Kennedy. Widely revealing the file details could bring down the American government.

Later developments confirm all this. Former Director of Central Intelligence (DCIA) William Colby, early in 1996, joined in a business venture with the former long-time KGB Chief to market an electronic game on espionage. It was becoming obvious: Colby was a KGB mole; his business partner was a CIA mole.

Just as Colby was about to devastate the U.S. government with the KGB file, he was assassinated, disguised as a boating accident.

So far, FBI counter-intelligence thinks they have restrained the Russian mafia, largely now headquartered in Chicago, from using the KGB file to blackmail big bucks out of anyone and everyone.

Also reportedly inclined to use this H-bomb of a blackmail item—the KGB file—are reputed foreign agents within the White House, including the President's senior advisor, Rahm Emanuel, reportedly linked with Israeli intelligence, the Mossad.

Remember: in the 1970s, against great media opposition, the Citizens' Committee to Clean Up the Courts broke the story with the best details of the CIA's mind-poison project, MK-ULTRA.

[1] Brit Hume's son, according to *Conspiracy Nation* (*CN*) source "Rhea Fortean" (pseudonym), unexpectedly committed "suicide" recently. Here is Rhea Fortean's correspondence to CN on the matter: I wonder about the sudden so-far-unexplained suicide of reporter Sandy Hume (Sunday night)—Brit Hume's son. The obit on Fox said he was a FEARLESS REPORTER. Nothing scared him. He went after stories with a vengeance. He worked for *The Hill* newspaper and appeared on his dad's show on Fox nightly recently. The whole obit was **nothing** like a suicidal guy. Don't know the cause of death. Tony Snow

called it in obit an "apparent" suicide. He was doing better in his career than ever. His star was rising. He was 28 years old (no marriage data available). The timing seems strange—really, really strange. This scandal was making his career. His other big story was the attempted coup of Gingrich last summer. They mentioned he had the best sources of anybody.

I found it strange since Hume's big story was the attempted coup that right after his death Bill Paxton resigns from office suddenly w/out even explaining to his wife saying I can't do this. Can't do what? Also do you know why he has a very bad abrasion on the center of his forehead in photos??

The reporter who basically got him in trouble and possibly ruined his career in the Senate commits suicide and a day or two later he resigns?? Weird, huh?

Sandy Hume outs the coup of Gingrich story in Summer of 1997—ruins Bill Paxton's future in Senate. A week or so ago Paxton's wife Susan Molinari ended up in the news with a story she is telling in a book: that Gingrich is disturbed, cries, whines, thinks he rules the world and all manner of accusations.

Then last Sunday night Sandy Hume who broke the story on the coup and who has the best sources of anybody—especially Rep. sources—"commits suicide".

A few days later Paxton resigns suddenly and without explanation (real) and muttering, "I can't do this". Is pictured with some kind of abrasion on his forehead that I have not heard an explanation for.

Gingrich is making statements and backing bills that have Republicans dropping their jaws over. Critics have even accused him of working as "co-president" to Clinton. Hints are being made and have been made that he is being blackmailed.

Don't know what it means but it is strange. -Rhea Fortean

For related stories, visit:

http://www.shout.net/~bigred/cn.html

http://www.netcom.com/~feustel

Views expressed do not necessarily reflect those of *Conspiracy Nation*, nor of its Editor-in-Chief. I encourage distribution of *Conspiracy Nation*.

CHAPTER 5

NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT

KORTON: SPACE IS A VERY BUSY PLACE!

3/6/98 KORTON

Precious ones, Commander Tomeros Maasu Korton returned in the Radiant Light of Holy God. As the heavens around your Earth get ever more crowded, a sign that "the prophecies" are near, it becomes all but impossible for the evil ones to hide the emerging Truth. Arm thyselves with Love and Wisdom gained from Knowledge and you will indeed be ready for any scenario the elitists send your way. AHO!

WHO REALLY WON THE SPACE RACE?

The Russians are, and have been, far out in front of the United States, since the late 1970s in your method of counting time. How this all came about is a matter of hidden history. This information has been presented before on your placement, but it is in the reminding of that which is continually efforted to be kept from you that thwarts the heinous plans of your Bolshevik-Zionist controllers.

That does not mean they have abandoned their fear campaign and war scenarios, they just postpone them until a later date. Just like your planned war with Iraq that was/is to begin "the mother of all wars", if Saddam is unsuitable *for the moment*, how many OTHER conflicts, especially in Europe, are brewing?

Chelas, once they get a "stable" public war going, it is only a matter of time before all the nations of the world are drawn into the fray. THAT'S PART OF THE PLAN!

And like your last world war, it will start with the same formula: some "internal conflict" in some country heating up (courtesy of Kissinger Associates political consulting group), the discovery of mass graves and other mounting atrocities (conveniently displayed on your *CNN News* to get your support), and then you will all march to the beat of Satan's drummers until it culminates in nuclear war. Bacteriological and chemical warfare, occurring before and after the holocaust—if you indeed have an "after" anything—will ensure that those survivors who were not rapidly "ascended" by nuclear firestorms will not escape the man-made pestilence.

Does this sound grim? What else would you expect when evolved tyrants try to imitate God of Light?

Let us continue with our outlaying of historical tidbits and see if all of US, working together WITH God, can prevent your adversary's vision from being made manifest.

God's vision is Love, Life and expanding Knowledge on into infinity. We of the Hosts do not have to further tell you of the harvest to be reaped by sowing the seeds of lies, stealing (including lands), killings, and other unGodly behaviors. Your Soul has ALL it needs to show YOU the true picture, and evaluate the "right" from the "wrong" according to the Inner Understanding that has been gifted to ALL Lighted (souled) beings.

It is up to each individual to use what has been given in the form of forewarned insight to manifest a better future for oneself and one's family. We, of course, are not permitted to do it FOR you, though we may assist YOU in YOUR efforts, if asked.

But can you change an entire world gone wrong?

While you may sometimes feel "alone", know that such a condition is an illusion promoted by those dark ones who effort to build fear within you and thereby control your every action into a direction away from God Source. Thus, while you can ultimately only be responsible for self, always know that God does His part on a most grand scale, and with Him as your partner, evil cannot stand against you or prevail. And, if evil cannot stand against each individual you, then what does that imply about the transformation of an entire world?!

<u>WHY THE U.S. WAS NOT FIRST</u> TO LAUNCH AN EARTH SATELLITE

In order to fully comprehend why the U.S. is so far behind the Russians, it is necessary to go back to the beginning of your space programs and the small but fatal propaganda coup that blazed the way for your eventual defeat.

On the evening of October 4, 1957, Americans were stunned by the announcement that the Soviet Union had become the first nation in history to place a man-made satellite in orbit. *Sputnik I*, weighing 184 pounds, was circling the Earth every hour and a half, sending out beeps that became famous overnight. The world was thrilled, and the world press heaped great praise upon the Soviet Union.

They inferred from this accomplishment that the Soviet socialist system was superior to your own in scientific and technical progress. (Privately, of course, this was thanks to your Rockefeller and Bolshevik overlords who gave the Soviets nearly everything they needed to compete in the so-called space race. What was not given away was purchased with loans guaranteed by you nice taxpayers. Have you, indeed, as Lenin said, given the Soviets the very rope with which they will hang you?) It was a historical first that can never be undone—the Soviet Union had beaten the United States into space.

Less than a month later *Sputnik II* was launched. It weighed over half a ton and carried the first live passenger into space: a dog. The dog died within a week, but it was another startling achievement none-theless.

Meanwhile America was struggling along trying to put a tiny 16-pound satellite into orbit by means of the Navy's *Vanguard* rocket. Two launches were attempted, but both failed. In one case the rocket lifted a few feet off the pad, only to settle back into a tremendous fireball as it exploded. It made spectacular footage for the television news that evening. Finally, on January 31, 1958, almost four months after *Sputnik I*, America launched its first space satellite from Cape Canaveral, Florida. It was called *Explorer I*, and it was launched not by the Navy but by the Army. You were in space at last, but only after being

thoroughly humiliated before the entire world.

After the *Sputnik* shock, space flight and rockets were suddenly the "in" thing to be interested in. Even then, Senator Lyndon B. Johnson arranged for a new "Aeronautics and Space Committee" to be set up, with himself as its Chairman. He was thereafter as visible as possible in connection with space matters, and today the manned space flight center in Houston bears his name.

At the time, it could hardly be imagined that Johnson could do anything more hypocritical. Members of the then-named American Rocket Society had vivid memories of Johnson's attitude toward space in the early 1950s. At that time, FOUR OR FIVE YEARS BEFORE *SPUTNIK*, Dr. Wernher Von Braun, who headed a group with hopes of obtaining support for a space program, approached Johnson. Johnson did not merely say "No", but jeered at the whole concept as ridiculous and worthless!

A few years later the U.S. was deprived of the chance to be first in space, but not by Lyndon Johnson. What I am going to tell you does not affect "national security" now, but it does provide a typical example of what has been happening to America for many years.

In late 1955 or early 1956, the Joint Chiefs of Staff began the first act of planning for an American space program. Their goal was to have the U.S. initiate the world's first successful space flight at the beginning of the International Geophysical Year that was to begin on July 1, 1957. After some typical controversy as to which branch of the armed services should sponsor the space project, it was concluded that the Army was most capable of doing the job. This was agreed to and approved by the Joint Chiefs and by then Secretary of Defense Charles Wilson.

The Army's Redstone Arsenal in Huntsville, Alabama was fortunate in having the services of the world's foremost rocket expert, Dr. Wernher Von Braun. From a very early age Von Braun had been fascinated with the idea of space flight, and he had spent his life working with rockets.

During World War II Von Braun was pressed into service by Hitler. If you will remember, the German rocket program was far ahead of other countries by the end of the war. When the war ended, many of Von Braun's subordinates at the German rocket base were taken prisoner by the Soviet Union and it was they who were forced to develop and direct the Soviet missile and space programs; but Von Braun himself had resolved, well before hostilities ended, that he would surrender to the United States, and he succeeded in doing so. Your government then prevailed upon him to enter governmental research where he would have the money and resources to pursue rocketry in earnest.

When the Earth Satellite project came under consideration, years later, in the mid-1950s, the Joint Staff project officers interviewed the Redstone Arsenal officials, along with Von Braun himself, to ascertain their capabilities. Von Braun stated that his group could engineer a space vehicle and have it ready for orbit in only a few months.

The Joint Staff pushed for the Von Braun project; and after it was approved by the Joint Chiefs and Secretary of Defense, it went to President Eisenhower for final approval and allocation of Defense Department funds. But there it stopped.

Strangely, there was a long delay in getting the expected presidential approval. Finally the word came

down to the Joint Staff from the President. Incredibly, they were to disregard the Army's capability and give the space project to the Navy instead. Such a decision was all but unbelievable.

The Navy did not even have a blueprint for such a space vehicle! They would be starting almost from scratch; but the decision stood, so several large aircraft companies and Navy scientists gathered to initiate a program called Project Vanguard.

As a direct result of this decision, the Soviet Union was able to put *Sputnik* into orbit while the U.S. was still struggling unsuccessfully with Vanguard.

Joint Staff project officers were most perplexed about the American political decision to allow the Soviet Union to beat you in this endeavor when you had the capability to be far ahead of them.

It appeared to follow a *PATTERN OF WITHHOLDING AMERICAN CAPABILITIES AND ALLOW-ING THE SOVIET UNION THE ADVANTAGE*. Later, an aide to President Eisenhower explained confidentially what had transpired.

A select group of scientists and financial leaders (same old bunch as Commander Hatonn has been writing about in concentrated focus in recent issues of *CONTACT*) got wind of the American space satellite plans at an early stage. The group, headed by a man who was later AWARDED THE LENIN PEACE PRIZE BY THE SOVIET UNION (for a job well done), went to the President and pressed him to sponsor a purely American space project with only native Americans working on it. They didn't want by any means for a former German, such as Wernher Von Braun, to give the world and future historians the impression that the Germans, of all people, were superior in the field of space science. This group, who were actually doing the bidding of the Rockefellers on behalf of their Soviet allies, were instrumental in forcing America to take a backseat in the early years of the Space Age when you were fully capable of being at the forefront.

Finally, after two successful Soviet *Sputnik* satellites and two humiliating Navy Vanguard failures, Eisenhower became exasperated and told the Defense Department to get Von Braun into action. Just six weeks after he received the go-ahead, Von Braun's Army team launched *Explorer I*.

He did exactly what he had said he could do two years earlier—and the very first time he tried it; but the special place in history he deserved had been denied him forever, just as it had been denied to the new homeland of his choice, the United States. The anti-German argument that had been used on President Eisenhower was, of course, a total fraud.

When *Sputnik I* was launched a short dozen years after World War II, the Soviet rocket program was even more dependent on the efforts of captured German scientists than was true in the U.S. (The "victors" did not capture them all. Hitler's best scientists—especially the ones who worked on Germany's secret anti-gravity vehicles—escaped via submarine to the Antarctic.)

Thus only one thing was really accomplished by delaying the Army satellite effort under Von Braun: A tremendous propaganda coup for the Soviet Union and a setback to American prestige and self-confidence that persisted for years.

Under the enthusiastic leadership of Von Braun the U.S. was able to come from behind to win the race to the Moon, but soon the world press would relegate him to the footnotes of modern history. Like General Douglas MacArthur, Wernher Von Braun would "just fade away".

Now that America had a clear path to the Moon, those same gaps in the intelligence community between the Soviet Union, Israel, and Rockefeller's CIA were going to be your undoing. In the game of international intrigue "loyal" sides are switched faster than you can shake a stick. Suffice it to say that at present there is NO DIFFERENCE between the cloak-and-dagger big boys—they all work hand-in-glove for "a" New World Order. Of course, no matter which Order efforts to dominate as "king of the hill", you-the-people will be the losers.

THE SOVIETS FALL BEHIND

Over forty years ago, on October 4, 1957, the Space Age began with the launching of *Sputnik I* by the Soviet Union. Barely 3-1/2 years later, on May 25, 1961, President John F. Kennedy made the thrilling announcement that the United States was launching a program to put a man on the Moon and return him safely to Earth before the end of the decade.

By the way, Kennedy, and nearly all of you, did not know that, at the time he spoke those words, there was *already* a joint American, Russian and Extraterrestrial base on the Moon. Later, when Kennedy found out the truth about space beings, about the CIA's dirty dealings, and about the international banksters' financial trap laid for America, he was assassinated by agents of your secret government to keep him from telling you.

Many Americans could hardly believe their ears about the man-to-the-Moon project since the *Sputnik* shock still had not worn off, and the Soviet space program was considered to be far ahead of your own. And for several years after the Kennedy announcement, the idea that you would beat the Russians to the Moon looked more and more ridiculous.

Americans ground their teeth in demoralized frustration as you watched the Soviet Union (amplified by your Zionist-controlled media) pile up one record after another in space: the first man in space, the first woman in space, the first space walk, records for time in orbit, and so on. But the Kennedy announcement in 1961 had signaled much more than a mere race with the Soviets—it was a crash program, ten times bigger than the Manhattan Project to develop the atom bomb in World War II, and gradually it began to pay off.

The one-man space shots of Project Mercury gave way to the two-man missions of Project Gemini, and then at last Project Apollo, with its three-man crews, was underway. Finally it was the Americans who were setting records in space, while the Soviets, seemingly, began to lose inertia. They busied themselves with orbital missions, but it became increasingly apparent that they would not soon put a man on the Moon after all.

On July 20, 1969, the impossible dream came true: After 8 years, and \$24,000,000,000, the *Apollo XI* landing craft (with anti-gravity capabilities that are to this day kept secret from the public) made a perfect landing on the Moon in the Sea of Tranquility. Neil Armstrong, as he placed man's first "public" footprint

on the Moon, said those famous words: "That's one small step for man, one giant leap for mankind." The Soviet Union sulked at being beaten, and Red China called the whole thing a hoax, but the rest of the world cheered. It was seemingly a great moment to be an American.

For three years America, and the world, watched as the exploits of the Apollo teams on the Moon expanded at an astonishing pace. But then, strangely, the Apollo program was cut short—to save money, you were told.

After six successful Moon landings, the last (next) three, which were POTENTIALLY GOING TO BE THE MOST PRODUCTIVE AND SPECTACULAR OF ALL, were unceremoniously lopped off— supposedly to save about one percent of the amount it had cost to reach the Moon in the first place.

After all, everyone knew you had gone to the Moon merely as an exhilarating adventure and to pick up a few Moon rocks for scientists to fiddle around with. So, having done that, you were told that it would be better to save those last few space dollars and put them into Welfare checks or bullets for Vietnam. And so, on December 19, 1972, the Apollo 17 crew lifted off from the Sea of Serenity, and America said farewell to the Moon.

That is what you were told, chelas, but, as usual, that is not what happened.

THE TRUE PURPOSE OF THE MOON RACE

America's space program has always been portrayed as a purely peaceful, scientific adventure, without any ulterior motives. However, the Rockefellers never spend \$24,000,000,000, even if it is your own money (which it almost always is), on anything that does not promise to reward them very handsomely. And these rewards, in the case of the space program, extend far beyond the great profits reaped by their aerospace companies. It is, or was until September 27, 1977, the very keystone of their secret military machine for the conquest of the world.

From the beginning, America's race to put a man on the Moon had a MILITARY OBJECTIVE. The impetus for this race lay in a seemingly unrelated development—the L.A.S.E.R.—which was invented in 1960 (you were told). The laser was a predictable outgrowth of an earlier (1953) American invention called the M.A.S.E.R. And therefore, by the time the laser made its debut, it had already been anticipated and military uses for it were under intensive study.

[Editor's note: L.A.S.E.R. means "Light Amplification by Stimulated Emission of Radiation"; M.A.S.E.R. means "Microwave Amplification by Stimulated Emission of Radiation". Light waves are a bit shorter in wavelength (higher frequency) than microwaves and thus required a bit more sophisticated technology to achieve than the same principle operating at microwave frequencies. This is why Commander Korton says it was only a matter of time for the jump from maser to laser—sort of like the jump from wall clock to wrist watch.]

The first hint of the things to come was a proposal by laser scientists in 1961, the same year that

President Kennedy launched the crash program to put a man on the Moon. The scientists suggested that lasers, which produced narrow intense beams of light, could be used for interplanetary communication by flashing low-power, coded signals back and forth. What the scientists did NOT mention was that extremely powerful (destructive) lasers could also be projected for tremendous distances through space for space warfare. (Ah so, Mr. Reagan's Star Wars initiative was not first to make plans using "futuristic" weapons).

In addition, theoretical studies had already revealed that an even more awesome energy-beam weapon was possible. This advanced weapon on the horizon was the Particle Beam (developed by Nikola Tesla—one more of his many inventions which was misused).

This invention was first brought to public attention in early 1977 by General George Keegan, the retired chief of U.S. Air Force Intelligence. In a particle-beam weapon, huge quantities of atoms are torn to shreds and fired out of the barrel at the target in a continuous concentrated beam that travels at almost the speed of light. The process requires tremendous amounts of energy, and the effect on a target is devastating. The very atoms that make up the target are torn to pieces by the beam, and the target explodes.

With lasers and particle beams looming as potential new military weapons, the Moon suddenly became an inviting military objective.

The Moon is a quarter of a million miles from Earth, and it takes several days for one of your spacecraft to travel that distance; but it only takes about 1-1/2 seconds for radio signals or light to travel that far.

THEREFORE, A MOON BASE, EQUIPPED WITH HIGH-POWER LASERS OR PARTICLE-BEAM WEAPONS, WOULD BE ABLE TO STRIKE <u>ANY VISIBLE SPOT ON EARTH</u> WITHIN TWO SECONDS OF FIRING! And, during any period of 24 hours, most of the populated areas of the Earth can be seen (AND TARGETED) from the Moon.

The only exceptions are Arctic and Antarctic regions during parts of the year. And since a particle beam will bore right through clouds or storms to hit a target, a Moon base would be an ideal all-weather weapon.

Finally, once it was in operation, this Moon base would be virtually immune to attack by any less sophisticated weapon. For example, if a rocket were fired at the Moon from Earth with a nuclear warhead to destroy the Moon base, it would be useless. Long before it reached the Moon, it could be destroyed by a blast of the particle beam.

When the Rockefellers learned of the great potential of the Moon for military objectives, the decision was made to launch a crash program to seize the Moon for this purpose.

THE BATTLE FOR THE HARVEST MOON: AMERICA'S DEFEAT IN SPACE

The Soviet Space Program had been given a head start over that of America by means of the *Sputnik I* disgrace, and under the hard-driving direction of an engineer named **Leonid Brezhnev**, the Soviet lead in space was widening every day. But the Russian approach to exploiting space for military purposes was heavily oriented toward Earth orbital applications.

Space stations would come first; after that, Moon missions could be launched sometime in the future. For all the propaganda U.S. citizens heard about it at the time, a manned mission to the Moon was not a top Soviet priority in 1961. But the *Sputnik* shock still had not worn off, and the Soviet Space Program was undeniably ahead of your own in 1961. So it was not very hard for the Rockefellers to convince America, through their controlled major-media propaganda, that the Soviets were on their way to the Moon and would beat you there if you did not do something.

Having built up this public concern, the Rockefeller public-relations machine then provided you with the "solution" to your worries. (This is a time-honored method of pulling the wool over your eyes: They create the problem AND the remedy, steering the masses in the direction your rulers wish, thus following the conspirators' *Protocols* to the letter.)

The space frontier was sold to the public as exemplifying the bold spirit of President Kennedy's so-called "New Frontier". The dormant and suppressed American spirit of free adventure was tapped and channeled into enthusiastic, unquestioning support for the space program, even though you were never given anything more than the vaguest justifications for it.

Thus a military project dwarfing the Manhattan Project was set in motion, in full public view, and drawing upon the very best talent and facilities that money could buy—only the purpose of the Moon project was kept a secret, and that secret was made secure by bathing the whole space program in the glare of continuous publicity. It was a clever plan, and it worked.

By the time of the Apollo 17 mission in December, 1972, the space program had become routine to many Americans, and they were looking around for other circuses with which to amuse themselves. Plenty of these were provided, including especially the budding Watergate scandal.

Now space travel could safely be removed from public view and carried on secretly with far less danger of attracting attention than a decade before. Meanwhile, the Rockefellers, by way of their controlled CIA, had been working feverishly in total secrecy on beam weapons at locations outside the United States—such as a CIA-supported laser experimental installation in Spain. By 1972, these experiments still were a long way from a suitable weapon for deployment on the Moon. But ominous developments in the Soviet Union led to the decision to cut off the Apollo program prematurely so that the construction of the secret Moon base could be rushed ahead.

Starting in 1967, the Soviet Union launched a massive program of its own to develop a particle-beam weapon. This is what the Soviets had started concentrating on instead of an immediate Moon flight in the late 1960s. Then, in 1971, the Soviet Civil Defense Program was stepped up, and on October 4, 1972, Soviet Civil Defense was elevated to a status equal to the Armed Services. Less than three months later, in December, Apollo 17 became the last American Moon flight to be acknowledged publicly.

The October 4, 1972, upgrading of Soviet civil defense initiated a high-priority Five-Year Plan, which was to end THE DAY AFTER the Salt One Accord. Under this plan, much of the Soviet Union has literally gone underground, complete with underground silos filled with AMERICAN GRAIN and thousands of underground shelters able to withstand near-misses of ICBMs.

Strategic command centers and communications networks are underground now in Russia. And this was done not only to render any missile attack survivable, but also to provide some protection against any possible particle beam attack from the Moon.

How does that make you feel, America?

Your leaders have provided ZERO DEFENSES for you against the EXPECTED attack and subsequent fallout. Your survivability resources are nonexistent for all but your elite puppet-masters (and not all of them!) who have nice underground, and fully stocked, living accommodations here and abroad.

Do you know anyone with one of those Australian safe-haven passes? The Chinese, Swiss, and others also have massive shelters to protect their entire populations in the event of a national catastrophe brought on by nuclear war.

What does that say about the intent of your own leaders, America?

DIEGO GARCIA

Early in 1973, soon after the supposed end of the American Moon program, you began hearing about a place called Diego Garcia, in the Indian Ocean. Supposedly you were merely building a communications installation there, yet the drastic step was taken of relocating ALL of the 20,000 or so natives of this little island to other areas. More recently, you have heard about Diego Garcia as the site of a new American naval base; but, dear friends, you still haven't been told the whole story.

DIEGO GARCIA IS THE SPACE-PORT FROM WHICH SECRET MISSIONS TO THE MOON HAVE BEEN LAUNCHED DURING THE BUILDING OF THE MOON BASE!

Unlike Cape Canaveral, where Saturn rocket launches were impossible to hide, Diego Garcia is remote and isolated, and even the natives are no longer there to watch what is going on. What's more, Diego Garcia is practically the perfect Moon-port, located, as it is, almost on the Earth's equator. A space vehicle launched eastward into orbit from Diego Garcia passes over a nearly unbroken expanse of water for more than half the circumference of the Earth. The only means of monitoring the early flight of a spacecraft launched from Diego Garcia, therefore, is from ships.

If you had been unclear as to why Jimmy Carter used to talk so much about demilitarizing the Indian Ocean—which meant, "Russia, stay out!"—now you know.

Ones were first alerted to the existence of a secret base on the Moon in November 1976—but it has been one of the best kept of all Rockefeller secrets. Throughout 1977, an unseen but deadly race was underway to see who would get an operational particle beam first: the Rockefellers, at their secret Moon base, or the Soviets, in Earth orbit. By late spring, a Salyut manned spacecraft was launched that carried out preliminary tests of beam-weapon techniques, using lasers in order to simulate the particle beam.

Then, on July 17, 1977, a large Soviet satellite, called *Cosmos 929*, was launched. It mystified satellite watchers because of its strange behavior in radio signals. Most observers have concluded that it is unmanned, having detected no verbal communications; but, it is manned. It is a twin satellite, consisting of a

command module <u>AND A SEPARATE PARTICLE-BEAM WEAPON MODULE</u>. All communications between the crew of *Cosmos 929* and the Soviet tracking network are carried on by modulated laser beams, which cannot be detected at all by anyone who is not directly in the beam path.

A particle beam is a fearsome weapon, and nearly two months of painstaking preparation and check-out of all systems preceded the first test. Meanwhile, American astronauts on the Moon worked at a frenzied pace to try to bring their particle beam installation up to operational status.

By early September, the first particle beam unit on the Moon was being assembled. A few days later the crew of *Cosmos 929* tested their particle-beam unit by firing it into open space to verify that it would function properly—which it did.

The next step was to test the beam against a target. The target chosen was an American spy satellite as it passed over the Petrozavodsk Observatory, which lies east of southern Finland.

Cosmos 929 was nearly 1000 miles to the south, near the Black Sea; the local time was approximately 4:00 AM Tuesday, September 20, 1977, and the Moon was on the other side of the Earth. The crew of the Moon base were therefore unable to observe the test.

Aided by computers (and supplemented with coordinates provided by agents on the ground), *Cosmos 929* aimed and fired. The American satellite erupted into an immense fireball of light, which the Soviet news agency Tass described as a huge star which flashed out of a dark sky, sending shafts of light impulses to Earth.

It took several minutes to dwindle to a red glow and burn out as it drifted eastward. It was witnessed as far away as Helsinki, Finland, over 300 miles to the west.

News reports that day in the U.S. dismissed it all as a curious jellyfish-like UFO. Sound familiar?

Four days later, September 24, the Soviet Navy, without explanation, expelled all British and French fishing trawlers, among others, from the Barents Sea. At the same time, Soviet trawlers in European community waters were called home.

By September 26, American personnel at the secret Rockefeller Moon base, nestled in Copernicus Crater, were almost ready. Their particle beam was almost operational. But they were too late.

By late that day, the Soviet Union began bombarding the Moon base with a neutron particlebeam. Through the night, and all day on September 27, 1977, the Moon base was bombarded without mercy with neutron radiation, just like that produced by a neutron bomb. By that evening, as Americans looked up at the peaceful full Moon overhead, known as the "Harvest Moon", the last few Americans on the Moon were dying of neutron radiation. America had lost the Battle of the Harvest Moon.

In 1945 America (officially) became the first nation on Earth to possess an awesome new super-weapon,

the atomic bomb. But now, it is Russia that has won the race for a new super-weapon—the particle beam—that could be as decisive today as the atomic bomb was in 1945.

The Rockefellers have disarmed America while betting everything on the Moon base, thinking they would win the race. But they made a terrible miscalculation—and now you are suffering the consequences.

Before you dig a hole and bury yourselves, know that no matter how sophisticated your adversary's techniques and machines become, they are mere toys and child's play to the resources of Space Command. What's more, we have a much better relationship with your Russian counterparts than we do with your Bolshevik rulers. Thus, like Commander Hatonn has told you before, you will be surprised where your help comes from.

May your Knowingness allow you inner peace through the confusion and challenge of it all. What we are unfolding are things that have already occurred; and by relating them to "today", a pattern of the whole develops whereby mankind may make his decisions based on facts rather than lies.

Thank you for your attention. Salu.

CHAPTER 6

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 3/21/98

HILLARIOUS CLINTON— NOW PRESIDENT??

From THE NEWAMERICAN—in answer to a question regarding Dick Morris, Mar. 30, 1998: [quoting]

dick morris pict.

The longtime friend of Bill, who was brought down by his own "sex addiction", has not been as quiet as the administration would like. First there was his public remark speculating on the first lady's sexual proclivities, later partially retracted.

Then in a column in *The Hill*, the Capitol Hill paper, Morris posited that as a result of the Lewinsky scandal there has been a deal struck between the first couple, putting Mrs. Clinton in effective control of the White House. Wrote Morris, the "coup was bloodless and, most likely, wordless. The minute President Clinton was thrown irredeemably on the defensive on Jan. 21—the very day he began his sixth year in office—Hillary took over... The bargain is clear to both the president and the first lady. She need never articulate it. He intuits it. Here's the deal: She'll bail him out of his mess, but, now, she calls the shots." [End quoting]

Sounds like it could be only too true-knowing how shrewd Hillarious is.

Is it possible that Rome could have been as depraved as the U.S.?

BOEING, SEA LAUNCH—MARINE-BASED OPERATIONS, SPACE SYSTEMS

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, <wrldline@texas.net>, 2/9/98: [quoting]

Sea Launch—Marine-Based Operations Sea Launch Home Port. Located in Long Beach, California, the Home Port is close to major domestic satellite manufacturers. Facilities for payload processing and customer offices are provided, along with docking and provisioning for the Assembly and Command Ship and Launch Platform.

The Home Port features two state-of-the-art, dedicated spacecraft fueling cells and an encapsulation cell. Groundbreaking ceremonies were held August 8, 1996, and the facility will be completed in October 1997.

Assembly and Command Ship. The ship provides 240 launch team members and customers with lodging, dining, recreation, entertainment, and medical facilities. It also houses the mission control center, providing communications with the launch vehicle, spacecraft, and customer facilities during operations.

Launched December 12, 1996, the 660-foot-long, 106-foot-wide ship is being readied for installation of launch support systems. The ship departs for the Sea Launch Home Port in mid 1998.

LAUNCH PLATFORM

The specially designed, self-propelled, semi-submersible launch complex houses the integrated launch vehicle in an environmentally controlled hangar during transit to the launch site. In preparation for launch, the 436-foot-long and 220-foot-wide platform is lowered to approximately 70 feet draft to stabilize the launch pad. The dynamic positioning system, along with other control systems, determines and maintains precise coordinates of the launch pad. Once in position, the automated transporter/erector equipment rolls out and erects the integrated launch vehicle. As the mass of the platform shifts, a sophisticated trim and heel system maintains stability for launch.

Structural modifications and installation of marine systems are nearing completion. Installation of the launch support systems begins in April 1997.

In mid 1998, the Launch Platform departs for the Sea Launch Home Port.

Mission Assurance. All components of the Sea Launch system will be thoroughly tested, beginning with incremental verification of flight hardware and support equipment interfaces. Verification continues with a validation of operations processes, from spacecraft encapsulation through launch. Operations verification tests employ actual flight-qualified hardware and exercise contingency as well as nominal scenarios.

For more information, mail to: <glenn.a.anderson@boeing.com"> contact us at: P.O. Box 3999, MS 6E-62, Seattle, WA 98124, Telephone (425) 393-0048 [End quoting]

Interesting—since it is based at Long Beach, California. If you recall, that is the same place the Chinese are taking over the Naval Base. Is this platform being built for <u>the Chinese or the U.S.??</u>

CREDIT UNION OPTION

From the INTERNET, courtesy of John Ray, 3/16/98: [quoting]

While we are disappointed with the U.S. Supreme Court's recent decision to invalidate the National Credit Union Administration's long-standing policy of allowing federally chartered credit unions to add

multiple groups to their fields-of-membership, it has provided us with an opportunity to focus our efforts on getting House Bill 1151 passed. It has more than 160 co-sponsors, including House Speaker Newt Gingrich (R-Ga.).

The court's decision severely limits consumer choice with regard to selecting a financial institution. As notfor-profit financial cooperatives, credit unions provide an alternative that offers members lower loan rates, higher savings rates and nominal service fees as compared to the for-profit banking sector. In addition to friendly, personal service and great fees, credit unions are the only financial institutions that have <u>never</u> <u>been subsidized by taxpayer funds</u> [*emphasis mine*]. They have never had to be bailed out due to failures caused by risk taking or bad loans. Their deposit insurance fund is completely funded by member credit unions, not taxpayers. The fund has never asked for or required any taxpayer assistance due to credit union failures.

Finally, we believe credit unions continue to adhere to their original mission of providing financial services at low cost to their members. They have never strayed from that mission, regardless of asset size, number of members or services offered. Without credit unions to provide a competitive balance to the for-profit financial institution marketplace, fees will continue to increase making many of those basic financial services out of reach for many low and middle-income consumers.

While credit unions may be experiencing a temporary setback due to the Supreme Court ruling, we hope that Congress will empathize with the plight of the 74 million Americans who are already credit union members, as well as the 62 million consumers who may never be eligible for membership as a result of this ruling, and enact House Bill 1151 as soon as possible.

Unfortunately, the only losers in this case are the millions of consumers who may be denied the right to join a credit union and the current members who could face expulsion from their credit unions. House Bill 1151 will restore the basic right of Americans to join credit unions. [End quoting]

Hopefully these credit unions will be able to continue to be at least some competition to the gangsterbanksters.

INQUIRING MINDS WANT TO KNOW

Joe Kennedy another Fifth Column "hit"?

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 3/15/98: [quoting]

I have recently been able to get at least nodding confirmation of the following as Fifth Column hits:

Paxon and wife Molinari, plus Livingston (arguably the most powerful man in Congress). The source noted Hubbell is about to be indicted again, several days before mention in the media, and that Hale is turning over additional materials to Starr, again, before recent press reports. Even from prison, the source seems to be well plugged-in.

As to Joe Kennedy, I have no specific word. But the facts fit the Fifth Column MO perfectly. Partisan balance. Target young, powerful, destined for higher office. Leaving to "spend more time with the family". Probably as dirty as anybody on the Hill. News a shock to all who know him (until the spinmeisters arrive).

It is curious, however. Charles Hayes has often boasted of his close friendship with Teddy Kennedy and John Glenn and his strong admiration of them—up to (but not including) the point of covering over wrongdoing. That they have apparently left him to twist in the wind, as it were, may mark the severing of the last bonds of friendship. This will be a bloody business before it's done. As someone told me early on (1995), by the time it's over, this country will go through a political firestorm not seen since the Civil War.

Note that Glenn is departing as well under a hairbrained excuse. Yes, he's old. But if you look at years past, Senators have served virtually until they have to be carried out with their Guccis on. Glenn is supposedly in good enough health and mental fitness to go into outer space. Let's face it, the Senate is NOT rocket science. Hayes long ago noted that Glenn was dirty, with about \$3-mil offshore, probably from his Keating deals or whatever. His time would come, and has.

A footnote on Livingston: Two years ago now, I was making the rounds in Congress, trying to pass the word and sound the alarm about Foster, and the Fifth Column's findings. I never got to see Livingston. But his AA Quinn Hillier (now pooh-poohing Foster conspiracists for the ADG) was EXTREMELY interested then in who was being targeted, how did the Fifth Column operate, etc. I sensed he clearly knew something fishy was going on, and was nervous that his boss was vulnerable.

BTW, I also had an investigator on Leach's staff dropping broad hints about the unusual number of unexpected high-level departures at the SEC, including the ethics honchos. He, too, was a believer, but couldn't breathe a word.

Imagine Washington right now. EVERYBODY there has got to be laying awake nights wondering if their rice bowl is going to get upset. You can almost smell the desperation. Don't ya love it.

BTW: I also hear Hillary has renewed her interest in establishing a foreign domicile. Is she going to Beijing with Bill??

This mailing list is for discussion of Clinton Administration Scandals. If you wish to subscribe to this mailing list, send electronic mail to <majordomo@majordomo.pobox.com>. In the message body put: subscribe. [End quoting]

It looks like the Fifth Column may still be alive. Maybe they could speed up retiring many more of the crooks.

AL FAYED, JUDGE REACH TRUCE

Father of Dodi Fayed says: He is OK with investigation of Di crash. From THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, courtesy Norman McLaughlin, 3/13/98: [quoting]

Mohamed Al Fayed, who blamed a plot for the deaths of his son, Dodi, and Princess Diana in a Paris car crash, made peace Thursday with the French judge leading the inquiry, telling him he was content with the investigation.

"He expressed his confidence and his thanks for the work done to date, Georges Kiejman, the lawyer for the wealthy Egyptian-born businessman, told reporters after Al Fayed met Judge Herve Stephan—for nearly two hours.

But Kiejman barred Al Fayed from responding when asked whether he still blamed the deaths of his son and Diana on a conspiracy, as he did in a newspaper interview last month.

"The investigation is not yet completed... No theory has been ruled out, but that is work of the judge," the lawyer said. "Nothing has been ruled out. Nothing has been established."

He said Al Fayed had made a request for "additional investigations".

He said Al Fayed wanted to know more about the theory that the couple's car collided with another vehicle—possibly a white Fiat—before slamming into a pillar of the Pont de 'Alma tunnel.

However, Kiejman denied that Al Fayed has been pursuing his own parallel investigation into the accident, saying he had merely been given information by various consultants.

French investigators have been irritated by Al Fayed's efforts to look into the Aug. 31 crash, taking them as a sign he lacked faith in the French justice system.

Relatives and friends of the late princess also have complained that Al Fayed's speculation about a possible conspiracy was causing considerable strain within the British royal family.

After 6¹/₂ months of investigation, French officials insist they have found no evidence of a conspiracy. [End quoting]

Hopefully, the strain they're feeling will increase exponentially. If there wasn't a coverup why wouldn't they want Al Fayed to spend all of his money in an effort to come up with the truth instead of being under a strain because he's intending to find out what and who is at fault.

It seems to me that about every time they show a picture of the car it is smashed and torn up worse than before.

EXCUSE FOR MARTIAL LAW

From the INTERNET, courtesy of James Seabourn, 3/15/98: [quoting]

From: "James M. Seabourn" <crtisad@inland.net>

Duke, Thanks, I think we needed that.

The Queen of England's husband Prince Phillip, said that BY the year 2000 the population of the U.S. SHOULD/WILL be at 1940s level! This means that 50% will be gone. Is this the reason that y2k [*the year-2000 computer problem*] doesn't seem to be that important to OUR government? We have already been told by OUR Congress through TREATY law with the UN/One World Government that ALL people over 50 years old are "USELESS EATERS"! So are the computers being set up for those that will survive, i.e.: under 50?

I have spent many hours studying just how this WILL be accomplished and I believe that 'they' will use the following methods:

- 1. bio/war—U.S., blame ANY Eastern Country
- 2. Financial crash/stock markets and commodities
- 3. HMOs, i.e.: NO health care over 50.
- 4. NO alternative medicines ALLOWED

5. The 'children's' complete lack of responsibility, i.e.: Nanny will take care of you! Slaves don't need ANY education!

6. Weather Control—little crops/much death and destruction.

Being over 50 and talking to people my same age and over, it looks as though #3 is in progress.

I just think that 'they' should start it NOW, that will be the only way to wake up Joe 6-pak!! I just want to be around long enough to say "I TOLD YOU SO!" This is out of OUR control and the only thing that will save [a few] will be OUR creator! So—as Stan Deyo said, "Whoever is your higher power, you'd better get close to him"! We must be about *Rev. 18* [*Bible*] only a few more pages before it's finished, book closed!

Don't know if this is going to reach the list, nothing else seems to, or perhaps no one knows, but the y2k (Year 2000) item is providing the enemy with the best excuse it's ever had to declare a national emergency and declare martial law.

Which will happen.

Get independent of the system before August, 1999. Please visit; http://www.eagleflt.com [End quoting]

The elite have a lot to accomplish in 21 months. Expect anything from here on in, but always keep in mind that God has His own Plan 2000. Guess who wins?? What an adventure the next months are going to be.

DOUBLE STANDARD?

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/9/98: [quoting]

Israeli UN Ambassador Dore Gold was cited in the *Jerusalem Post* as saying "one of his most vexing problems is to deal with the charge that the international community maintains a double standard in demanding Iraqi compliance with UN resolutions while not requiring Israel to do likewise." He went on to describe a technical difference in the chapters of the *UN Charter* under which each was implemented. [End quoting]

It's about time the U.S. (Israel) and little Israel quit picking on Iraq—and Bosnia. The U.S. (Israel) is going to pay and pay until they learn the lesson that what goes out will come back—with interest.

INDONESIAN RACISM

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/9/98: [quoting]

Thousands of Indonesians have rioted since the collapse of the Rupiah currency. The Moslem majority claim that the rich Chinese merchant class has been hoarding goods to drive up prices. The small Chinese minority controls three-quarters of the nation's economy. [End quoting]

Typically, the small minority control the masses and "milk" them.

MASONS QUESTIONED

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/9/98: [quoting]

Leaders of Britain's House of Commons and its Freemasons are going head to head over police corruption which may have sent innocent people to prison for crimes done by others, including the infamous Birmingham Six pub bombings. There is concern that some police departments were or are all Mason cabals. The United Grand Lodge of England may be charged with contempt of Parliament if it continues to refuse information. [End quoting]

Good luck to them if they think they have the power to over-ride the Masons—they'll sure need it.

LARRY HARRIS RELEASED FROM PRISON

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 3/16/98: [quoting]

A federal magistrate released a man who was arrested in the Las Vegas anthrax scare and jailed for allegedly violating his probation.

Larry Wayne Harris was brought from Las Vegas, where he and another man were arrested Feb. 18 after an FBI informant said they claimed to have deadly anthrax in their possession. He was released Friday.

Charges against Harris and William Leavitt Jr. were dismissed February 23 after tests showed the material was a harmless anthrax veterinary vaccine. Leavitt was freed but Harris was accused of violating his probation for a 1995 conviction for illegally ordering bubonic plague bacteria by mail. [In our previous

writing it was stated that the probation was not for ordering bubonic plague bacteria, but for not leaving his identification on an interstate phone call.]

Federal Magistrate Mark Abel said prosecutors failed to show that Harris violated probation by claiming he had military-grade anthrax and by producing infectious disease, bacteria or germs in his Ohio home.

Abel said there was enough evidence to hold a hearing on whether Harris was continuing to tell people he used to work for the CIA, another violation of his probation. The hearing was not scheduled. [End quoting]

It looks like the elite got some "egg in the face" over this one.

TRANSLATES AS YOU SCAN

From UNKNOWN magazine, 1998: [quoting]

scanner

SEIKO'S Quicktionary Bi-lingual Hand-Held Scanner instantly translates text as it glides over each word or idiom. The scanner, currently available in French/English and Spanish/English, has a 400,000-word vocabulary. Ten additional languages will be available later this year. Price: \$250. Seiko instruments, 2990 W. Lomita Blvd., Torrance CA 90505. *www.seiko-usacpd.com/cpd* [End quoting]

This will be a real boon to tourists, especially when they bring the price down.

MICROSOFT PITS 'PATCH' AGAINST HACKER

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 3/5/98: [quoting]

Microsoft on Wednesday peddled a quick fix for a Windows NT weakness that apparently allowed a hacker to shut down computers from coast to coast the night before Bill Gates appeared at a Senate panel to defend his company's business practices.

The attack, which shut down thousands of computers Monday night, was followed by new, smallscale assaults on at least two sites Tuesday night and Wednesday morning.

Windows NT is one of the world's most widely used computer operating systems, allowing networks of desktop computers to communicate with each other. While this week's attacks caused computers to crash, there were no reports of data being lost or stolen. And the attacks appeared to pose no threat to individuals using Windows-equipped home computers to access the Internet.

"It's not the typical hacker penetration where they get into the machine and access or corrupt online data. They just sort of lob this bombshell that sort of kills it," said Ron Broersma, a computer security expert with the Space and Naval Warfare Systems Command in San Diego.

Broersma estimated that "many hundreds, maybe approaching thousands" of Navy desktops crashed Monday night. A second attack Wednesday morning, after the Microsoft remedy was applied to most, affected only a few unprotected machines, he said.

Microsoft played down speculation by some victims that the attack was related to Gates' appearance Tuesday before the Senate Judiciary Committee. Gates responded to allegations that Microsoft uses monopolistic strategies to squelch competition to its widely used computer operating systems.

"We have no evidence that would lead us to believe that that speculation is true," said Microsoft security manager Ed Muth.

The attack preys on Windows NT systems by sending a barrage of invalid data to computers. The computer devotes more and more memory and processing power to the invalid data until it crashes, said Craig Huckabee, a research associate at the University of Wisconsin's computer lab, where more than 160 computers were hit Monday night. Only two were affected in another attack Tuesday night.

Microsoft urged customers to download a software "patch" to protect machines against such attacks. [End quoting]

This gives you a small picture of how susceptible the whole computer system is to sabotage. However, isn't it interesting that Microsoft could so quickly have a patch ready to fix His problem—a problem which they neglected to mention in the first place.

ECONOMIC 'CONSTITUTION' DRAFTED

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, courtesy Norman McLaughlin, 3/9/98: [quoting]

The world government doesn't want you to know, but politicians and bureaucrats in Washington have been asked to surrender more national sovereignty.

"We are drafting the constitution of a single global economy" announced Renato Ruggiero, director-general of the World Trade Organization (WTO).

Ruggiero was not boasting. He was happily stating a fact.

In a significant Bilderberg-prompted meeting in Paris at the end of February, 29 of the world's richest nations—including the United States—worked out the terms of the Multilateral Agreement on Investments (MAI).

Poor nations will be "invited" to join after the rich nations sign off—which they will be compelled to do for economic survival. Every nation is to be governed by the WTO's "economic constitution".

This frightening giant-step toward world government has been ignored by the major media, which is under the control of a world shadow government.

The world economic 'constitution' would govern virtually every kind of business transaction, from buying land to sweeping buildings.

Among other provisions, the MAI would require nations to drop preferences for domestic companies and would establish a panel to rule on complaints by corporations of unfair government treatment.

SECRET NEGOTIATIONS

Secret negotiations have been going on since 1995 behind the closed doors of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development. There was a blackout by the mainstream media. (*SPOTLIGHT*, Jan, 5-12 and 19.)

MAI follows precisely the world government agenda of the Bilderberg Group and Trilateral Commission, two secret cabals of international financiers and political leaders whose leaderships interlock.

Both, during their secret meetings over the years which *The SPOTLIGHT* has attended as an uninvited guest, have called for "supranational" agencies to govern the world's economy as part of a global government headed by the United Nations.

But their Herculean efforts at secrecy were incomplete.

Just as the final "i"s were dotted and "t"s crossed in Paris, patriots gathered in Washington to protest the potential surrender of national sovereignty.

Americans dumped handcuffs on the steps of the Capitol to demonstrate how the treaty would "handcuff Uncle Sam". They carried signs reading "MAI=NAFTA on Steroids" and "MAI—License to Loot". Their main objection, many said, is that MAI would sacrifice American sovereignty on the altar of multinational profits.

The secret is out. [End quoting]

The NWO is very far along on their agenda—TIME IS VERY SHORT!!

The elite are really making headway while they keep us distracted with Slick Willie's zipper—and Iraq and Bosnia.

U.S. MAY STRIKE SERBS

[Editor's note: Connect this with this week's Front Page story.]

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 3/13/98: [quoting]

Clinton administration officials raised the possibility Thursday that the United States would consider a military attack on Serbian forces if diplomatic efforts failed to stop human rights abuses in the province of Kosovo.

The administration announced that it was also weighing whether to enlarge an American-led United Nations peacekeeping force in Macedonia because of fears that the crisis in neighboring Kosovo could spin out of control.

"We want to use every appropriate instrument at hand," Robert Gelbard, President Clinton's special envoy to the Balkans, said when asked at a congressional hearing whether the United States might consider military strikes against Serbian police and paramilitary units that have been blamed for dozens of killings in Kosovo in the past 10 days. [End quoting]

Things are sure heating up in the Bosnia area. The elite always have to keep the wars going somewhere for diversion, financial gain and to keep our soldiers away from home where they could defend us when they are ready to start corralling us into their **already-prepared** pens.

HOW THEY VOTED ON AFRICA TRADE POLICY

From THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, courtesy Norman McLaughlin, 3/17/98: [quoting]

The House passed 233-186 a bill that would create a new U.S. trade and investment policy with subsaharan Africa. The legislation would permit duty-free and quota-free imports into the United States for 10 years, laying the foundation for a U.S.-Africa free-trade zone. [End quoting]

There goes more thousands of U.S. jobs.

MONTANA "OFFSHORE"

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/16/98: [quoting]

One of the few states left with no sales tax, Montana's government has drawn up a banking scheme similar to that of the Cayman Isles and Switzerland's. In a bid for some of the "free money" floating around the globe, Montanans figure that fees for banking secrecy would help state government financing. Americans can't use the service, only foreigners. [End quoting]

At least Montana isn't trying to milk their own people to get the additional funds.

HOW 'BOUT THEM APPLES?

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/16/98: [quoting]

Taiwan, California's largest export apple market, and Washington state's second largest, has been getting shipments of counterfeit apples from Red China fraudulently labeled as coming from those two states,

causing a half-million dollar loss to the U.S. growers. To make matters worse, the Mexican market has been cut off with a 101 percent tariff imposed in September. (ANAFTA "benefit"?) [End quoting]

Have you ever seen an edible counterfeit apple? Some people can sure twist words—typical of the elite.

The thieves leave "no stone unturned" to compete for a market.

CRIME WANES, INMATES WAX

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/16/98: [quoting]

Crime was down again in 1996 but the prison population, thanks to congressional mandatory drug sentences, jumped another 6 percent. One in every 155 Americans is now incarcerated. White House drug czar Barry McCaffrey said that the target for the year 2000 is now 2 million inmates. [End quoting]

I certainly don't believe this propaganda about crime being down—especially so-called "white-collar" crime which must be the highest ever.

Sounds like to me, with their wording, that they have a big business going and the elite need a bunch of workers—"target" number. Don't forget the elite are getting slave labor from these prisoners and the market is growing for their merchandise. These are the **real criminals** making money off of slave labor. Are we going to wait until <u>our</u> sons or daughters are one of these laborers before we say—WE'VE HAD ENOUGH!!

ENGLISH LANGUAGE CHANGE IN EUROPE AND ENGLAND

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 3/15/98: [quoting]

The European Commission has just announced an agreement whereby English will be the official language of the EU rather than German which was the other possibility. As part of the negotiations, Her Majesty's government conceded that English spelling had some room for improvement and has accepted a 5-year phase-in plan that would be known as "EuroEnglish":

In the first year, "s" will replace the soft "c". Sertainly, this will make the sivil servants jump with joy. The hard "c" will be dropped in favor of the "k". This should klear up konfusion and keyboards kan have 1 less letter.

There will be growing publik enthusiasm in the sekond year, when the troublesome "ph" will be replaced with the "f". This will make words like "fotograf" 20% shorter.

In the 3rd year, publik akseptanse of the new spelling kan be expekted to reach the stage where more komplikated changes are possible.

Governments will enkourage the removal of double letters, which have always ben a deterent to akurate

speling. Also, al wil agre that the horible mes of the silent "e"s in the language is disgraseful, and they should go away.

By the fourth year, peopl wil be reseptiv to steps such as replasing "th" with "z" and "w" with "v".

During ze fifz year, ze unesesary "o" kan be dropd from vords kontaining "ou" and similar changes vud of kors be aplied to ozer kombinations of leters.

After zis fifz yer, ve vil hav a reli sensibl riten styl. Zer vil be no mor trubls or difikultis and evrivun vil find it ezi tu understand ech ozer.

ZE DREM VIL FINALI KUM TRU! And zen ve vil tak over ze vorld!!! [End quoting]

Languages of any kind are hard enough to use and spell correctly, so how much confusion do you think this will cause?? Do you think this confusion will help you?—or the elite to control you?

GUIDED BY THE SPIRIT

Sometimes the most important gifts are given unwittingly

From ANGELS ON EARTH, Nov./Dec. 1997, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512: [quoting]

I set about checking the instruments in preparation for my last flight of the day, a short hop from Atlanta to Macon, Ga. It was 7:30 P.M. Christmas Eve, but instead of forking into Mom's turkey dinner, I was busy getting other people home to their families. Above the low buzz of talking passengers, I heard a rustle behind me. I looked over my shoulder. Just outside the cockpit doorway was a fresh-faced boy of about nine gazing intently at the flight deck. At my glance he started to turn away.

"Hold up," I called. "Come on in here." I had been about his age when I first saw a flight panel lit up like a Christmas tree—I could hardly wait to get my pilot's wings. But now that I was 24 and first officer at a commuter airline, I wondered if I'd made the right choice. Here I was spending my first Christmas Eve away from home, and what was I accomplishing? How was I making my mark in the world, let alone doing God's work, just hauling people from city to city?

The boy stepped cautiously into the cockpit.

"My name's Chad," I said, sticking out my hand.

With a shy smile he put his hand in mine. "I'm Sam."

He turned to the empty seat beside me. "Is that for the captain?"

"It sure is-that's where Captain Jim sits." I patted the worn fabric. "Would you like to try it out?"

Sam blinked at me from under his ball cap. "I don't know ... mean ... well, sure—if it's okay." I lowered the seat so he could slide into it. The captain loved to give demonstrations of the plane's gadgets to kids, but what would he think about one sitting in his seat? Well, it's Christmas, I thought.

I glanced out at the luggage carts being wheeled toward the plane, thinking of the gifts I wouldn't be able to give in person to my parents and friends the next day. Sam told me he and his family had flown in from Memphis. I checked my watch. The captain would be in any minute, but Sam looked so thrilled, I didn't want to cut short his fun. I gave the instrument panel another once-over, telling Sam what each button and lever did.

Finally Captain Jim clambered aboard. "Howdy, partner." He gave Sam a broad grin. "You know, son," he drawled, "I don't mind you staying with us for a while if you'll switch with me."

Sam let the captain take his place and I made introductions.

We began reviewing the prestart checklist. I kept thinking the captain would send Sam away, but the boy was still peering over my shoulder when the ramp agent radioed to ask if we were ready to turn on the first engine in start sequence, number four.

I relayed the question to the captain, who was studying the weather reports. "I'm still going over these," he said. "You guys go ahead and start it."

"Okay, starting," I said, positioning the switches. Then I did a double take. "Did you say 'you guys'?"

"Yeah, go ahead."

I looked over at the captain, and back at the flight panel. "Right." I flicked on the plane's flashing red beacon to signal the start. Then I turned to my new assistant. "You ever start an airplane before, Sam?"

Eyes wide, he shook his head. Following my instructions, Sam carefully turned a knob on the overhead console that switched on the igniters. Then he pressed a button as big as his hand to start the engine. Finally, with both hands he slid forward a lever to introduce the fuel. The engine hummed to life.

Sam slowly let go of the lever and stepped back, awestruck. He'd gotten to start an airplane—an honest-to-goodness airliner. I'm not sure if I'd have believed it myself at his age.

I thanked Sam for helping us out.

"No, thank you, sir," Sam said. "This was really great!"

As he backed out of the doorway into the cabin, the plane resonated with the sound of the engine he'd

started. "You have a merry Christmas, son, you hear?" the captain said.

Sam looked like he was about to cry with happiness. "I will, sir, I will. Thank you!" With one last look at the flight deck he turned and walked down the aisle. We started up the other engines, took off, and arrived in Macon about 40 minutes later.

Early Christmas morning, as we settled into the cockpit for the trip back to Atlanta one of the gate agents ducked in. "Hey, guys, some kid's mother came by this morning. She wanted to make sure I thanked you for showing her son around last night. Said he couldn't stop talking about the cockpit. She left this for YOU."

The gate agent set a red tin on the center console.

"Well, I'll be," the captain said. He bit into one of the chocolate chip cookies from the tin. Then he unfolded the note taped to its cover and read it silently. He sighed deeply and turned to me, "Boy's got cancer," he said, and read the note aloud:

Dear Sirs,

Thank you for allowing Sam to watch you work on Christmas Eve night. Sam has cancer and has been undergoing chemotherapy in Memphis. This is the first time he has been home since the treatment began. We drove Sam up to the hospital, but since he loves airplanes, we decided to fly him back home. I am not sure if he will ever get to fly again. His doctor has said that Sam may have only a few months left.

Sam has always dreamed of becoming an airline pilot. The flight we took from Memphis to Atlanta was exhilarating for him. He wasn't sure flying on one of your "little" airplanes would be as much fun, but you two gentlemen gave him the greatest Christmas gift imaginable. For a few short minutes his dream came true, thanks to you.

I looked out at the runway gleaming before us in the Sun. When I turned to Jim, he was still staring at the note.

A flight attendant came in and said the passengers were ready for departure. She stowed the cookies away and we went through the checklist. Then Captain Jim cleared his throat and called out, "Starting number four." I'd wanted to be home with my loved ones, exchanging gifts for the holidays. But that little boy showed me that sometimes the most important gifts we give are given unwittingly and the most precious ones we get come from strangers.

I can serve God's purpose no matter where I am, as long as I let the spirit that moved me that night guide me always. —by Chad Hinkson, Hurst, Texas [End quoting]

Thank God for all the people in ordinary jobs who still have a heart.

CHAPTER 7

REFLECTION ON: OUR TIMES, OR...HOW TO KEEP A COOL HEAD WHILE EVERYONE AROUND YOU IS LOSING THEIRS by Rick Martin 3/20/98

Our world is a paradox. As viewed from above, this blue orb is the picture of serenity and peace. Down on the surface it is quite a different picture.

President Clinton is shielding himself from attacks on all fronts, mostly female. His press secretary really doesn't want to know. As if Monica Lewinski's allegations weren't enough, now Kathleen Willey joins the fray. This on top of the history with Jennifer Flowers and the charges from Paula Jones; boy it really looks like a pattern of behavior, regardless of how convincing his denials may be. Meanwhile, on C-SPAN, Gore Vidal responds to Clinton inquiries with, "Can you imagine Lincoln responding to those kind of questions?"

But all the hoopla over Billy's below-the-belt activities overshadow a world, literally, on the brink of World War III. Our Secretary of State, perhaps more aptly referred to as a pit bulldog ready to throw the entire Islamic community into the lion's den, brings shame on a nation already known as a tyrant world wide.

El Nino is busy slamming and drenching the already water-soaked soil on all fronts—whether man made or nature getting even—a lot of dwellings are on less than stable ground.

In a world where random acts of kindness seem to be the exception rather than the rule, and a glance at the morning's headlines reveals: "Ex-governor Tucker goes before grand jury; Fires advance into rainforest in Brazil's Amazon; Vanderbilt scientists working to develop robot bugs; Ex-Aide Accuses Clinton of Lying; US Anthrax Vaccinations Begin; Jews Warned on Hebron Travel; Protestant Leaders Blame Britain; El Nino Returns—How long will it last?; First *Air Force One* to be retired; Gas prices reach lowest level ever; and so it goes. Don't worry, be happy. The Jews speak of their new homeland (America). The Muslims speak of their homeland (America). The Whites are left with nothing to hang onto but their mostly false beliefs. The Christians are waiting for Rapture as presented by the new Zionist agenda. Meanwhile, in Africa a Holy Jihad is brewing as all of the Muslims begin to REALLY unite in their attack against the Great Satan (America). It's a mad, mad world spinning out of control. And yet behind it all, the Master Weaver's plan weaves the fabric's design into an intricate and beautiful tapestry—the tapestry of life.

Perhaps Kahlil Gibran can put some perspective on it all with his comments on work, from The Prophet.

[QUOTING:]

Then the ploughman said, Speak to us of Work. And he answered, saying: You work that you may keep pace with the Earth and the soul of the Earth. For to be idle is to become a stranger unto the seasons, and to step out of life's procession, that marches in majesty and proud submission towards the infinite.

When you work you are a flute through whose heart the whispering of the hours turns to music. Which of you would be a reed, dumb and silent, when all else sings together in unison?

Always you have been told that work is a curse and labor a misfortune.

But I say to you that when you work you fulfil a part of the Earth's furthest dream, assigned to you when that dream was born,

And in keeping yourself with labor you are in truth loving life,

And to love life through labor is to be intimate with life's inmost secret.

But if you in your pain call birth an affliction and the support of the flesh a curse written upon your brow, then I answer that naught but the sweat of your brow shall wash away that which is written.

You have been told also that life is darkness, and in your weariness you echo what was said by the weary.

And I say that life is indeed darkness save when there is urge,

And all urge is blind save when there is knowledge,

And all knowledge is vain save when there is work,

And all work is empty save when there is love,

And when you work with love you bind yourself to yourself, and to one another, and to God.

And what is it to work with love?

It is to weave the cloth with threads drawn from your heart, even as if your beloved were to wear that cloth.

It is to build a house with affection, even as if your beloved were to dwell in that house.

It is to sow seeds with tenderness and reap the harvest with joy, even as if your beloved were to eat the fruit.

It is to change all things you fashion with a breath of your own spirit,

And to know that all the blessed dead are standing about you and watching.

Often have I heard you say, as if speaking in sleep, "He who works in marble, and finds the shape of his own soul in the stone, is nobler than he who ploughs the soil.

And he who seizes the rainbow to lay it on a cloth in the likeness of man, is more than he who makes the sandals for our feet."

But I say, not in sleep but in the overwakefulness of noontide, that the wind speaks not more sweetly to the giant oaks than to the least of all the blades of grass;

And he alone is great who turns the voice of the wind into a song made sweeter by his own loving.

Work is love made visible.

And if you cannot work with love but only with distaste, it is better that you should leave your work and sit at the gate of the temple and take alms of those who work with joy.

For if you bake bread with indifference, you bake a bitter bread that feeds but half man's hunger.

And if you grudge the crushing of the grapes, your grudge distils a poison in the wine.

And if you sing though as angels, and love not the singing, you muffle man's ears to the voices of the day and the voices of the night.

[END QUOTING]

Therefore, let us put our shoulders to the wheel and join together, brother-to-brother, and **build** a new world through casting off the New World Order vision of depopulation, division, and chaos, and replacing it with a vision of balance, reason, and wisdom toward a global *community*, **united**. Impossible? No, in the making. Won't YOU put your prayers toward the fulfillment of such a vision? Let's move, as collective, toward restoration. We are each but a fragment of God within this glorious Creation. With and within God, all things are not only possible, but ARE. Rest at peace in that knowledge, but rest needn't be inaction. The hands and feet must help to mold that which is to be formed in the Perfection of Divine Thought.

CHAPTER 8

<u>THE WORLDLINE HEPTAMERON</u> <u>AN UNCENSORED HISTORY</u> <u>OF OUR ORIGINS AND OVERLORDS</u> <u>PART VII IN A SERIES</u> by Calvin Burgin 2/5/98

Editor's note: The following continues this series from Calvin Burgin; as he explains in a footnote, Heptameron means: **Heptameron** (hep-tam'-e-rön): "a book or treatise containing the actions of seven days, in the style of Boccaccio's Decameron or the Heptameron of Queen Margaret of Navarre (1492-1549)."

MORE ON THE GOD OF MOSES

Higgins wrote of the relationships of Sanskrit to the ancient languages from which Hebrew developed, and pointed out that in Sanskrit, Sura meant "light" (p. 250) from the Sumerian Ur which also meant light, and Asura means "darkness". Asura, Asher, Asshur, Asour, etc. were all merely variations in the spellings of the name of this very important early "deity". The name means "absence of light", darkness, or "black" in Hebrew according to Strong's *Concordance* #806. Sur is also Hebrew for bull (translated "ox" in KJV from modern altered spelling of Hebrew "shor"). Sur was eventually translated as "Lord", and from it developed the words Sir, Monsieur, Monsignor, Senior, and the old word *urus* which meant bull or ox. Since the scribes could read the words from right to left or left to right, they ended up both ways (sometimes done on purpose for confusion, no doubt) and thus the words Surya in India, Syria, and even the word Taurus, the bull of the zodiac. Taurus and Surus or Saurus were actually the same words, as Hebrew sometimes interchanged T and S (example Cushites and Cuthites). Sura is Latin for the calf of the leg. Urus also became Orus which was aspirated as Horus, which is equal to the Greek Korus, and these words developed into Ceres, Osiris, Cyrus, Koresh, and Christ. Urus is suru backwards, and is related somehow to the gods from the star Sirius, I suspect.

Osiris, according to Higgins, is a variant of the word Asher (Asharus), and based on this I suspect Asher was from the star system Sirius. Bahfomet or Bafomet is Arabic for calf, and is a god of Masonry. Another Arabic word for Bafomet/Baphomet was Kharuf, which is the direct ancestor to our word calf. Bahfomet became the adversary god, or the Azazel goat. Bahfomet (Bahfumid) is a variation of Bahammed, whose followers spread as far as the Bahamas and westward. Bahammed is Baal Haman, a god of the Africans, the god of ancient Carthage for instance, and is the god/hero of the Biblical book of *Esther*. He is a god of the Blacks in the American Guianas. Haman comes from Amon. The Copts of Egypt got their name from Copha or Gopha which meant Calf. The Nile was anciently the Gupta which is also Sanskrit for calf.

MORE BULL(S)

Of course, the *Bible* condemns worshipping Baal. Yet, the *Book of Hosea*, talking about a future time when the children of Israel would be reunited with the children of Judah (you mean they are not the same?), says that God would no longer be called Baal (*Hos. 1:11, 2:16*). Strong's says this is another name for

Jehovah (#1180).

The book of *Ezekiel* tells of an Unidentified Flying Object that contained an angelic being with the head of a bull. The Israelites saw a being that led them out of Egypt, and made a statue to it, which is (probably wrongly) described as a calf. The Egyptian monuments show what the Egyptians (and the Israelites of that time) thought this being looked like.

Figure 1. is of the "Creator" god Khnemu creating a man and his ka on the potter's wheel. Notice the calf at his feet. This picture is taken from p. 63 of *The World of the Pharaohs* by Hans Baumann, and is a copy of an ancient Egyptian drawing. The caption to this picture is "Khnemu forming a man and his ka on the potter's wheel." Here we have the ka of baal (Cabal, Kabal), the origin of the secret teachings of the Ka-baal-ists. Page 62 of this book says: "Ptah, the Creator, awakened the world by his word. He created the gods as his assistants. First he created Khnemu, the potter, and Khnemu formed man upon his wheel."

The Assyrians also had a "Creator" god who had horns (and wings), called Asshur.

An article in *Fate* magazine (Dec. 1993, p. 62) on angels mentioned that our word *cherubim* comes from the ancient Assyrian word *karibu*, which meant a supernatural, fierce winged beast. Other studies show that these were the *baals* or *bulls*. The bull was the "boss", which is the Latin word for bull or cow. How many of you have ever known of a cow named "Old Bossy"? It is interesting that the bull was generally unknown in the Americas until introduced by the Spaniards and British. When we think of the "wild West" we think of horses and cows without realizing that these are non-native species that were introduced relatively recently. I am not considering "prehistoric" times when they were here. The Indians (it is more politically correct to call them "Native Americans", but that is just as factually wrong as calling them "Indians"; our ancestors all came here from somewhere else) did not worship bulls, that is, not as bulls, but they worshiped or honored the cherubim using the old Assyrian term *karibu* rather than the Hebrew plural of *cherubim*. Also the buffalo, our native American "bull". In Europe they were worshiped as the Stag (stag is called a ram in Hebrew, also translated in some ancient writings as bull, see Strong's #352, 354). These flying caribou, often commonly called reindeer, carried the baal of the North around the Earth as he dispensed his gifts.

Aren't we glad we are more civilized now than those old "Indians". Flying reindeer, who ever heard of such a thing.

If you research the ancient gods or demi-gods called the Titans, you will find that another name for them was the Kabiri, which is a variation of Karibu. "....the seven Kabiri are said to be the sons of Sydyk [Sedek or Zedek, as in Melchi-Zedek] or Kronos-Saturn, the Kabiri and Titans are identical" (P. 142, *The Secret Doctrine*, Blavatsky). On page 264 Blavatsky writes of "...the inextricable confusion into which the truth about the Kabiri—the most mysterious gods of antiquity—was thrown...." On page 360 she writes of the Kabiri being the gods of the poles of the Earth: "These figures were the two Kabiri personifying the opposite poles." "But they represented also the poles inverted, in consequence of the great inclination of the axis, bringing each time as a result the displacement of the Oceans, the submersion of the polar lands, and the consequent upheaval of new continents in the equatorial regions, and vice versa. These Kabirim were the 'Deluge' gods." Stories of flying gods from the Polar regions can be traced back

into antiquity.

"Now it is Sanchoniathon, who informs the world that the Kabiri were the Sons of Sydic or Zedek (Melchizedek)" (p. 392, *The Secret Doctrine* by Blavatsky, Vol. II).

The question was, who was Khnemu. It was also spelled Khnum, Khnumu, and Khufu (see all the references to "Khnumu-Khufu" on p. 260 in *The Pyramids—An Enigma Solved* by Joseph Davidovits and Margie Morris, Dorset Press, 1988). Davidovits updated the translation of the hieroglyphs on the Famine Stele. On pages 147, 148 he shows that our modern word for "chemistry" and "alchemy" come from the base khnem or khem: "The base khnem or khem became alchemy through language corruption, for example: Greek, chymeia; Arabic, alkimiya; Middle Latin, alchemia; Old French, Alchimie; English: alchemy, chemistry." He says: "Certain hieroglyphic words variously transliterated as *khnem, shemm*, and *shnem*, include this ideogram." He says that the word khnemu is the same base word as shemmu. In other words, Khnemu was Shem. "...Khnum-Khufu, was altered in Greek to Cheops and also Chemis.... The modern word chemistry can be traced to the Egyptian root word for chemistry or chemical processes." Khnemu is also a variant spelling of Nemu, Menu, which we have seen was Noah, and later becomes mixed with Shem who took over Noah's Priesthood.

I have presented above the evidence generally given that indicates that Cheops and Job were the same builders of the Great Pyramid. However, this more modern evidence is more convincing to me that CHEOPS WAS SHEM! I wanted you to understand the Job/Cheops material before I presented the Khnemu/Khufu/Cheops/Shem material. The word Khem can also connect to Kham or Ham, thus confusing the picture more, but at least focusing our attention into the right area.

HOW WERE THE PYRAMIDS BUILT?

Many books and articles have been written on this subject. I will keep this brief. Everyone who knows anything about Egyptian history has heard of the famous Rosetta Stone which was used to decode and begin the translation of ancient Egyptian hieroglyphs. It was written by King Ptolemy V Epiphanes (205-182 BC). Elephantine, the sanctuary of Khnum, was located on an island in the middle of the Nile River south of Thebes and was generally considered to be the southernmost border of Egypt. Aswan Dam is now there. Abu was the ancient name for Elephantine. Abu was Egyptian for "ivory" and "elephant". The island was a center of ivory trade. To the north of Thebes was the nome (roughly like a county) of Abydos whose capital was Tjeni, also called This (and sometimes Thin) in Greek.

A huge boundary marker with carvings is on the island of Sehel, near Elephantine, called the Famine Stele because it describes a seven-year famine. The Famine Stele consists of five chapters, made up of thirty-two columns of hieroglyphs written from right to left: columns 1 to 4, The Description of the Famine; Columns 4 to 6, The Visit to the Library of Hermopolis; Columns 8 to 18, The Revelations of Imhotep; Columns 18 to 22, the Dream of Pharaoh Zoser; Columns 22 to 32, The Royal Decree. We will see below who was Imhotep, and the connection to Joseph's seven-year famine in the *Bible*, and the Pharaoh who dreamed dreams that were interpreted by Joseph.

Columns 6 to 22 give instructions for making man-made stone. Columns 11 to 18 describe the rocks and

mineral ores of the Elephantine region. Columns 18 to 20 describe a dream of Pharaoh Zoser, in which Khnum gives the mineral ores to Zoser to build his sacred monument.

A pyramid cannot be built with mineral ores unless one uses the minerals to produce a binder for agglomerating stone. Limestone, the most dominant stone found in the pyramids, is not on the list of stones in the area of Elephantine. These people were *creating* stones with their *chemistry*. In fact, Khufu, the builder of the Pyramids, is the source of our word chemistry. Column 18 has the god Khnum standing, speaking to Zoser: "I am Khnum, your creator. I am putting my hands upon you in order to strengthen your body, to (Column 19) take care of your limbs. I give you rare ore after rare ore.... Never before has anyone processed them (to make stone) in order to build the temples of the gods or to rebuild the ruined temples...." I refer you to Davidovits book for plenty more evidence and PROOF. I cannot tell you whether or not these people were lying. All I can tell you is what they said, and where you can go to find the information! What you want to do with it, what you want to believe, is your business.

<u>CHRONOLOGY OF</u> <u>1ST DYNASTY OF EGYPT</u>

Many so-called authorities want to stretch out Egyptian (and other) history as far back in time as possible. For instance, the beginning of the reign of Noah/Menes is given as 5867 BC by Champollion; 5770 by Lesueur; Flinders Petrie, 4477, later adjusted to 5510; Bokh, 5702; Merrill Unger, 2900; Mariette (Director of the Cairo Museum), 5004; Heinrich Brugsch (Director of the Berlin Museum), 4455; Lauth, 4157; Chabas, 4000; Lepsius, 3892; Bunsen, 3623 (one ref. says 3645, another 3059); Eduard Meyer, 3180; Wilkinson, 2320; Breasted, 3400; George Steindorff, 3200; and Palmer, 2224. C. W. Ceram uses 2900, George Rawlinson, 2450; Sharpe, 2000; E. A. Wallis Budge (Director of the British Museum), 4400; Manetho at 3892. The most famous, Petrie and Rawlinson, are 3000 years apart, and Petrie and Breasted are 2000 years apart. So now we know, don't we—the experts told us! Palmer and Wilkinson were reasonably correct, except that Wilkinson later changed his date to 2691.

And then there are people like Zecharia Sitchin. He dates Noah's father Lamech at 77,000 BC, and Noah at 49,000 BC, and the Flood at 13,000 BC, although he puts Menes at 3100 BC (*The Wars of Gods And Men*, p. 35, Avon paperbacks). He says that Shem was a space ship. These wild ideas sell books, but can there be any truth to them?

Sitchin's understanding of the *Bible* is not very impressive to me, considering he is supposed to be a Hebrew scholar. One example of many I could give is he says that Noah had only seven days in which to build the Ark (p. 378). The *Bible* indicates he had 120 years (*Gen. 6:3*). Sitchin said "The notice given to Noah was a mere seven days. Somehow, he managed to build the ark and waterproof it, collect all the creatures and put them and his family aboard, and provision the ark in the allotted time." Yet the *Bible* says, *Gen. 7:1:* "And the Lord said unto Noah, Come thou and all thy house into the ark.... For yet seven days, and I will cause it to rain upon the Earth...." The Ark was already in existence at the BEGINNING of the seven—day warning, which was merely an "All Aboard!" type warning.

Sitchin, on pp. 408-409, says: "The 'Day of the Lord' was the day of the Deluge" and quotes *Amos 5:18* "...For the Day of the Lord is darkness and no light...." Amos wrote about 790 BC and mentions dozens of things that could not possibly have had anything to do with the Flood (Israel, Uzziah King of Judah, feast

days, Sodom and Gomorrah, etc.) Amos' "Day of the Lord" refers to a period at the future "end" time and has nothing at all to do with the time of Noah. These are just a few samples of Sitchin's many errors, although he does awaken one to the importance of the information in the old records.

SIR ISAAC NEWTON

I was surprised to read *The Chronology of Ancient Kingdoms Amended* by Sir Isaac Newton, first published in 1728. He has the Flood of Deucalion, the Greek version of Noah's Flood, occurring in the time of King David of Israel, and has Menes building Memphis in 921 BC.

As a reference point for dating these events, you should prove to yourself when the Exodus and Flood occurred, according to the *Bible*. I date the Flood at 2318 BC, and the Exodus at 1446 BC. I do not say these are the *real* dates. All I say is these are the dates given by a close study of the *Bible*. Herman Hoeh dates the Flood at 2368, 50 years before my date, and the Exodus at 1486, 40 years before my date of 1446 BC. The *Baker's Bible Handbook* dates the Exodus at 1446 (p. 63. They are pretty smart). They point out that Mycenean IIIB pottery from Hazor suggest this date. *Halley's Bible Handbook* says that opinions are currently about evenly divided for 1450 or 1230. My observation is that modern scholars tend to use the 1230 date, then point out that it doesn't fit reality, then use this reasoning as an excuse to discard the whole *Bible* as mythology.

Usher, who determined the dates used in the margins of most *Bibles*, places the Flood at 2348. This is only 30 years off from my date. The Hebrew's *Bible* uses 2288, the Samaritan *Pentateuch* uses 2998, Josephus uses 3146, the *Septuagint* puts it at 3246. Frank Klassen, in his excellent book *The Chronology of the Bible*, copyright 1975, agrees with my date of 2318 for the Flood (I did not know about Klassen until I did my study, or else I probably would not have bothered, since he pretty much had it done already). However, he has the Exodus at 1462 BC. He makes an 8-year error in figuring the dates from *Genesis 11* and thus has Abram born 2008 AM instead of the correct 2000 AM, but I haven't yet worked out where the other 8-year difference comes from.

HEBREWS IN EGYPT

ABRAM IN EGYPT

The so-called experts on Egyptian history assign the time period of Abram to a wrong era and then say there is no evidence of him ever being in Egypt. They *purposely* hide the truth from the public. The Jews do not want to promote anything having to do with Egypt, and the Egyptians do not want to promote anything having to do with the Jews.

We have seen that the ancient records say that Egypt learned at least some of its astronomy/astrology from Abraham. He was a prominent priest of the time, in fact he was the High Priest of God. Let's look at the records.

Dynasty II of Thebes was ruled by Boethos (Bedjau) from 1993-1955 BC.

He was followed by Kaiechos (Kakau) from 1955-1916 BC.

He was followed by Binothris (Banutjeren) who ruled from 1916—1869 BC. Binothris is Egyptian for the Hebrew "Ben Terah", "son of Terah" (per Higgins). Terah was Abram's father (*Gen. 11:26*). Higgins details the etymology, and says "Binothris is said to have established the first queen in Egypt, or to have first given to females the honours of Royalty. This queen was Sarah, whose name when changed from Sarai meant, instead of *a* queen or princess, *the* queen. After Binothris, Manetho puts Ilas or Tulis; but this person the Jews and Arabs make to be the ravisher of Sarah."

Binothris was followed by Tlas (Wadjnas) from 1869-1852. Tlas means "ravisher" or "rapist", per Higgins. His descendants fled far away, and lived in a place called "Ultima Tule". Higgins says "the different historians, all ignorant of the true state of the case, confound the parties; but they are all evidently here. The word Tulis means ravisher in the Hebrew and Arabic. Thus Tulis or Ilas was the stealer or ravisher of Sarah, the sister of Abraham. The history of this Tulis, as given by Suidas, is very remarkable. He says: "Thulis reigned over all Egypt, and his empire extended even over the ocean. He gave his name to one of its isles (Ultima Thule [now called Greenland!]). Puffed up with success, he went to consult the oracle of Serapis; and, after having offered his sacrifice, he addressed to him these words: 'Tell me, Oh, master of Fire, the true, the happy par excellence, who rulest the course of the stars,—tell me if ever there was before one greater than I, or will ever be one greater after me.' The oracle answered him in these words; 'First God, afterward the Word, and with them the Holy Spirit: all three are of the same nature, and make but one whole, of which the power is eternal; go away quickly, mortal, thou who hast but an uncertain life.' Going out from the temple he was put to death by his own countrymen in the country of the Africans' (Afrwn). But the most remarkable part of this story is, that the word Tulis means *crucified*, tle. suspendit...suspensus, crucifixus. Here in the country of the Africans-in Egypt we have again the crucified of the Apocalypse. Thlui is the name given by the Jews to Jesus Christ, meaning the crucified. Serapis, the God consulted, was regarded as the Saviour of Egypt [it also looks strangely like se-rapist]. I have little doubt that Serapis was put to death as well as Osiris, but that he was crucified. It was under his temple at Alexandria that the cross was found when it was destroyed by one of the Roman Emperors. We cannot forget that Serapis was considered by Hadrian and the Gentiles to be the peculiar God of the Christians" (Higgins, Vol II, p. 14).

One of the "secrets" of the mystery religions is the fact that there were many crucifixions, saviours, etc., before the time of Christ. This fact does not set well with either the Christians or Jews or Pagans, so there is a conspiracy of silence.

If you check my chart of Basic Biblical Chronology, you will find that Abram was 99 years old in 1876 BC. He would have been 107 years old when the "son of Terah" ended his reign. Who was this "son of Terah" that was a king in Egypt during the time of Abraham? "And Terah lived seventy years, and begat Abram, Nahor, and Haran" (*Gen. 11:26*). "And Abram went down to Egypt.... And Abram was very rich in cattle, in silver, and in gold." He left his homeland and went to Egypt, because of a famine (*Gen. 12:10*). He came out of Egypt a rich man (*Gen. 13:2*). How did he get rich in Egypt? What did he do in Egypt? We already know the answer, he was a prominent man in Egypt. We know that Abraham came from Ur of the Chaldees, famous for its astronomers, and for its ziggurat pyramids (used by the priests/astronomers). He went to Egypt during a great famine. He was the first to teach astronomy to Egypt. Abraham is called a *king* in *Genesis 23:6* in the *Septuagint*. Abraham would be the first in a line of kings.

Josephus says: "He [the Pharaoh] also made him [Abram] a large present of money and gave him leave to enter into a conversation with the most learned men among the Egyptians from which conversation his virtue and reputation became more conspicuous than they had known before. For, whereas the Egyptians were formerly addicted to different customs and despised one another's sacred and accustomed rights and were very angry one with another on that account, Abraham conferred with each of them and demonstrated that such reasonings were vain and void of truth. Whereupon he was admired by them in those conferences as a very wise man, and one of great sagacity when he discoursed on any subject that he undertook and this not only in understanding it, but in persuading other men also to assent to him."

Josephus also says, "Berossus mentions our father Abram without naming him when he says thus, 'in the tenth generation after the Flood there was among the Chaldeans a man righteous and great and skillful in the celestial science' " (*Antiq.*, Bk. I, Chap. VII, sect. 2). In his next chapter Josephus tells of Abram in Egypt and says the Egyptians were unacquainted with arithmetic and astronomy until taught by Abraham.

Egyptologists have been puzzled by Manetho referring to the pyramids of these early kings, long before the pyramids of Egypt were supposed to have been built. *A History of Egypt* by Petrie, p. 19, says: "by the order of Manetho this king appears as Uenephes in whose time was a great famine and who built the pyramids near Kolkohm or in the Armenian, Kohe." He continues, "this has been supposed to refer to Kakhem, the name of a district of Saqqara. But, it may well be read as village of Kohe, and refer possibly to Oh, which is now Ayu, which is between Abydos and Azhur. In any case, pyramids are probably a misunderstanding of some other form of building at this age."

The buildings were in fact step pyramids or ziggurats, perhaps built to give height to the astronomers for observations. If you have ever done any practical astronomy, you know how important it is to get up above the trees and buildings, not so that you can see the stars better, but so that you can see the horizon better. Ziggurats were common in Ur, from whence Abram came. These astronomical towers would not have been built until the Egyptians learned astronomy from Abraham. Note that Manetho mentions the "great famine". I suspect the great famine may have been due to weather changes caused by the planet Jupiter, which the records say did something unusual at that time.

Alexander Polyhistor, quoting Eupolemus, said: "And in the tenth generation...in Camarina, a city of Babylonia, which some call the city Uria (and which is by interpretation *the city of the Chaldees*)...Abraham was born, who surpassed all men in nobility and wisdom, and who was also the inventor of astronomy and the Chaldaic art...."

Eusebius said: "By reason of God's commands this man [Abraham] came and dwelt in Phoenicia [Canaan], and pleased their king by teaching the Phoenicians [Canaanites, and Egyptians, as they were the same people at that time] the changes of the Sun and moon and all things of that kind."

Artabanus, per Alexander Polyhistor, wrote: "Artabanus in his *Jewish History* says that...he [Abraham] came with all his household into Egypt, to Pharethotes the king of the Egyptians, and taught him astrology..." Note the use of the word *Pharethotes*, Thothis was a deified version of Shem, or perhaps it WAS Shem. We will learn later more about "Pharae".

Eupolemus wrote: "And Abraham dwelt with the Egyptian priests in Heliopolis and taught them many

things; and it was he who introduced astronomy and the other sciences to them, saying that the Babylonians and himself had found these things out."

One of the reasons that the Egyptians respected Abram was that he warned them of impending danger from the heavens. The *Book of Jubilees* says, "And in the sixth week, in the fifth year thereof, Abram sat up throughout the night of the new moon of the seventh month to observe the stars from the evening to the morning, in order to see what would be the character of the year with regard to the rains...." (*Jubilees 12:17*). The next chapter tells of the great famine, and of Abram going to Egypt. Later, he saw the course of the planet Jupiter and rescued his nephew Lot at a time when fire came down from heaven. He later became known as the god of the planet Jupiter. There is much not told in the records, but enough is there to indicate other things that must have been going on.

A Jewish legend cited by Ginzberg, *Legends of the Jews*, says, "God caused the planet Jupiter to appear in the east instead of in the west in order to teach Abraham not to attach any importance to astronomy." If Abraham warned that the Earth was going to have a complete axis shift and turn completely upside down, and it happened, I can see why he became deified. Elsewhere the legend is explained as "God moved, for Abraham's sake, the star Jupiter from the west to the east."

Peter Warlow, "Geomagnetic Reversals?", *J. Phys. A.*, *11:10* (Oct. 1978), pp. 2107-2130, gives evidence of a recent axis reversal of the Earth. Velikovsky and others have gathered much material on these subjects.

Herodotus, *Historiae*, II, 142: "The Sun...on four several occasions, moved from his wonted course, twice rising where he now sets, and twice setting where he now rises."

Pomponius Mela: "The Egyptians pride themselves on being the most ancient people in the world. In their authentic annals...one may read that since they have been in existence, the course of the stars has changed direction four times, and that the Sun has set twice in that part of the sky where it rises today" (Pomponius Mela, *De Situ Orbis*, I, 9, 8).

There is much in ancient records to show that Jupiter (and Saturn) were once much closer to Earth. Saturn at one time was a brilliant star, but retired and Jupiter took its place. Jewish records say that Sodom and Gomorrah were warned by Earthquakes for 52-years before their destruction, and Velikovsky and others have shown of 52-year cycles apparently being involved with these planets. Several American Indian tribes have a 52 years calendar cycle. These Jewish records say that an angel named Zadkiel was the angel of the planet Jupiter and taught Abram what was happening. Modern UFO literature has much about alien beings that control the planets.

The *Bible* (*Rev. 22:5*) tells of a time in the future when "There will be no more night." The ancient records tell of a Golden Age of Saturn when there was no night. How can this possibly be? The answer is simple, if you believe what the records say. They say there were two "Suns," each on opposite sides of the Earth, so that there was no night. One of the Suns was Saturn. Later it "died" and moved away.

The evidence indicates that Abram left the mountains of Haran when he learned of the coming troubles and moved to the open plains away from the rift valley of the Jordan. The "Ur of the Chaldees" of the *Bible* is

believed by Cyrus Gordon and others to be the mountainous area of ancient Urartu or modern Ararat in Armenia. Records of India support this viewpoint. In India, Abraham and Sarah are known as Brahma and Sara-iswati. Josephus said that Abraham came into Damascus "out of the land above Babylon, called the land of the Chaldeans" (*Ant. VII:2*).

ABRAHAM AND JUPITER

"Zedek" was the Hebrew name for Jupiter, known as "Zaduk" to the Ammonites. "Jupiter," in the *New Testament*, is from the Greek word "Zeus" (see Strong's #2203: "Zeus or Dis (among the Latins Jupiter or Jove), the supreme deity of the Greeks:—Jupiter."

You may object to what I am about to reveal to you, but this will be a test of your ability to face facts with an open mind. Do you want to try to find the truth, or don't you?

"With these northern people came the worship of the Indo-European Dyaus Pitar, literally God Father, eventually known in Greece as Zeus and later in Rome as Jupiter" (p. 51, *When God Was a Woman*, Merlin Stone, HBJ paperback). The word "Dyaus" and Deity and Zeus are related, as are "Pitar" and "Father". Ju-piter is a variation of Zeus-Pitar. "Behind all these celestial gods was the ancient Indo-European Dyaus Pitar, the counterpart of the Greek Zeus and the Roman Jupiter" (E. O. James, *The Ancient Gods*, New York: G. P. Putnam's Sons, 1960, p.75).

I have already written about the phallus worship of this original religion, under the chapter "Interpreters". Keep in mind that during Abraham's time, phallus worship was the common religion of the world.

ABRAHAM'S "THIGH"

When we take an oath, we often swear on the Bible, our sacred Book (even though the Bible forbids swearing—Matt. 5:34). In ancient times, the "pagans" also swore on their most sacred item—the phallus. Even Abraham participated in this practice. Abraham asked his eldest servant to swear on his [Abraham's] phallus, "And Abraham said unto his eldest servant of his house, that ruled over all that he had, Put, I pray thee, thy hand under my thigh;" (Gen. 24:2). "According to the Midrash and ancient Jewish expositors, [thigh is] a euphemism for the organs of generation, as most sacred," Bullinger's Companion Bible. Jacob (Israel) asked Joseph to swear on his phallus (Gen. 47:29). The Encyclopedia Biblica, says, "'Thigh' refers to the generative organ" (Vol. III, col. 3453, art. Oath). Adam Clarke's Commentary on the Bible, commenting on Gen. 24:2, says, "...he put his hand on the part that bore the mark of circumcision...." which, of course, was the phallus. "The practice of swearing by the genital organ was doubtless an ancient custom. The significance of this may have been forgotten at the time the story was incorporated into Genesis-or else was so well known that no interpretation was considered needed" (Interpreter's Concise Commentary-The Pentateuch by Marks, Gray, Milgrom, Guthrie, & Gottwalk, Abingdon Press, p. 82). The Hebrew word "yarek" here translated "thigh" is also translated "loins" in Gen. 46:26 and Exodus 1:5 and is sometimes translated "shaft". "All the ancient Jewish commentators understood this promise to be a euphemism for placing the hand under the male genital organ.... It was a most solemn oath...." (The Genesis Record by Henry M. Morris, p. 394).

Circumcision originated in Egypt before the Israelites ever adopted the practice. There is plenty of proof

of this, including very frank pictures on Egyptian monuments showing the practice being performed and explaining the practice. By the way, the *Book of Jubilees* says that even the angels are circumcised (*15:19*): "For all the angels of the face and all the angels of glorification were thus created from the day of their creation" and the footnote says: "The angels even are circumcised, or rather created in that condition." I am sure you have always wondered about that—now you know (unless the records lie?).

Since testicles were also sacred, at times men swore on their testicles—in other words, they TESTIfied a TESTImony or were put to a TEST or made a TESTAment, as in *Old Testament* or *New Testament*. The Latin word "testis" can be translated "witness", "spectator" or "testicle" (see a Latin Dictionary such as Follett's *Junior Classic Latin Dictionary*). And as a matter or interest, the orchid is one of the most prestigious of flowers because of the resemblance of its tubers to testicles; the word "orchid" comes from the Greek word for "testicle". Related words are "orchestra" (the round area where the musicians make music), "orchesis" (the art of dancing) and "orchotomy" (the surgical removal of testicles, a standard but little-talked-about treatment for cancer).

The obelisk at St. Peter's in Rome, the steeples on churches, and the cross itself are phallic symbols that trace back to this ancient (and modern!) phallus worship. "The Mahody of Elephanta, the Round Tower of Bhangulpore, the minarets of Islam—either rounded or pointed—are the originals of the Campanile column of San Marco, at Venice, or the Rochester Cathedral, and of the modern Duomo of Milan. All of these steeples, turrets, domes, and Christian temples, are the reproductions of the primitive idea of the lithos, the upright phallus. 'The western tower of St. Paul's Cathedral, London', says the author of *The Rosicrucians*, 'is one of the double lithoi placed always in front of every temple, Christian as well as heathen.' Moreover, in all Christian Churches, 'particularly in Protestant churches, where they figure most conspicuously, the two tables of stone of the Mosaic Dispensation are placed over the altar, side by side, as a united stone, the tops of which are rounded.... The right stone is masculine, the left feminine.' Therefore neither Catholics nor Protestants have a right to talk of the 'indecent forms' of heathen monuments so long as they ornament their own churches with the symbols of the Lingham [phallus] and Yoni [vulva], and even write the laws of their God upon them'' *Isis Unveiled*, H. B. Blavatsky, Vol. II, p. 5.

ABRAHAM WAS INTERPRETER OF JUPITER

The ancient Jewish records said Abraham was a Priest of Jupiter. The *Bible* confirms this. The very term "Melchizedek" means "King of Jupiter". Shem was recognized as the King or God of Jupiter, while Abraham was his priest. Josephus said that Abraham was an instructor of astronomy. *Gen. 21:33:* "And Abraham planted a grove in Beersheba, and called there on the name of the Lord, the everlasting God." The "grove" was a phallic pillar. This phallic worship survives into the present in the worship of the "Holy Cross," a phallic item (on top of church steeples, worn around "Christians" necks, on bumper stickers, etc.) which can easily be traced back to its origin during the time of Noah. The phallic pillars survive to this day as the megaliths of Stonehenge, etc. Some researchers have said that these monuments were phallic, others have said that they were astronomical, and the truth probably is, they are both right!

WHAT WAS A GROVE?

To us, the word "grove" means a group of trees. Originally, in Biblical times, it meant an idol. The first

groves were phallic. They were carved wooden or stone phalluses (phalli?). Let's see what the *Bible* says.

The Bible gives examples of Abraham, Jacob (Israel) and Joseph participating in a ceremony of swearing on the penis. They were not the only people to ever do that, they were merely following a custom that was very common at that time. It was common because, at that time, people openly worshipped the phallus. We can find evidence of this from many sources, including the Bible. For instance, we read in Genesis 21:33—"And Abraham planted a grove in Beersheba, and called there on the name of the Lord, the everlasting God." Here is an example of Abraham honoring God by erecting a phallus (grove)! The grove was NOT a group of trees. In I Kings 14:23 and II Kings 17:10, the grove is erected UNDER a tree. In II Kings 21:7, it is inside a house. II Kings 21:7 and Isaiah 17:8 say groves were made by carving them out of wood or stone. In II Kings 23:4, Josiah took a grove out of the temple, carried it down to the brook, burned it, then scattered the ashes on the graveyard. Note in verse 3, Josiah stood by a pillar and made a covenant with God—obviously honoring God by erecting a pillar was not considered wrong at that time. The sin came in honoring the WRONG god-by worshipping Baal and Easter (Inanna). The Hebrew word for "grove" is "asherah", which is usually defined as a replica of the goddess Ashtaroth, Astarte, Easter, Ishtar, etc. (all are forms of Inanna/Semiramis, Nimrod's wife). In the beginning, the grove was a dildo, a carving of a phallus. Later, phallic carvings representing various gods or goddesses were used as dildos. Modern scholars tend to think of the carvings as merely replicas of gods or goddesses, losing sight of the original meaning and use. Look up the word "grove" in a concordance and you will see the word is usually used with and in addition to the word "idol" or "image". The Bible is not merely saying the same thing twice, the groves and idols were two different things—the grove was a phallus, a very sacred thing at that time. If you do not want to believe what I am telling you, then go look at what is in the museums-there are hundreds if not thousands of ithyphallic idols and sacred dildos that could not even be represented on a modern R-rated movie channel!

Sha Rocco, in *Ancient Sex Worship*, p. 17, says: "Having dwelt on stem and branches of the god Asher, it is proper to give his definition as a personality and function; in other words, as a God. Asher (*Gen. 30:13*), "to be straight", "upright", "fortunate", happy", "happiness"...the erect virile member [phallus] charmed with the act of its proper function.... Asher was the supreme God of the Assyrians, the Vedic God Mahadevaz, the emblem of the human male structure and creative energy. This idea of the Creator is still to be seen in India, Egypt, Judea, the East, Phoenicia, the Mediterranean, Europe, Denmark, depicted on stone relics. This much for Asher seemed necessary to explain the origin of the Trinity. So we find the male privy member and the adjacent twin testes made the Triad..." He goes on to explain that the original Trinity was the phallus and two testicles. The phallus was named Asher, the left testicle was named after the god Anu, and the right testicle was named Hea. The Hebrew word "Asherah" that is translated "grove" in the *King James Bible*, and left untranslated in many versions, should properly be translated "phallus"!

The same book, page 23, says, "The triad [phallus and two testicles, arranged in the form of an upside down cross] is parent to the idea of Trinity.... They were referred to openly and broadly, or more generally and in later times by a mark, a metaphor, a motion, or a sign. For that sign the letter T became typical, and still later the figure of the cross became that sign. 'It is most remarkable,' says Payne Knight, that 'the letter T and the cross, symbols of symbols, are made to represent the male procreative powers, which are emblems of generation and regeneration.' Reverse the position of the triple deities Asher, Anu, Hea and we have the figure of the ancient 'tau' T of the Christians, Greeks, and ancient Hebrews.... The fig leaf, having three lobes to it, became a symbol of the triad. As the male genital organs were held in early times

to exemplify the actual male creative power, various natural objects were seized upon to express the theistic idea, and at the same time point to those parts of the human form. Hence, a similitude was recognized in a pillar, a heap of stones, a tree between two rocks, a club between two pine cones, a trident, a thyrus tied round with two ribbons with the two ends pendant, a thumb and two fingers, the caduceus. Again, the conspicuous part of the sacred triad Asher is symbolized by a single stone place upright...the stump of a tree, a block, a tower, spire, minaret, pole, pine, poplar, or palm tree. While eggs, apples, or cintrons, plums, grapes, and the like, representing the remaining two portions [testicles]; altogether called phallic emblems.... We must not omit to mention other phallic emblems, such as the bull, the ram, the goat, the serpent, the torch, fire, a knobbed stick, the crozier: and still further personified, as Bacchus, Priapus, Dionysus, Hercules, Hermes, Mahadeva, Siva, Osiris, Jupiter, Molech, Baal, Asher, and others." Yes, friends, the steeple on your local church originally had exactly the same meaning as the "rigid digit"-the obscene gesture you make when you close your hand into a fist then extend the middle finger (known as "giving the finger" or "flipping the bird", etc.). To those initiated into the inner secrets of the "Mystery Religion", the center upright of the cross represents the phallus, while the two arms represent the two testicles. Originally, the carving of the phallus with testicles was placed on the end of a rod and this magic wand was touched to worshippers heads (or genitals) to heal them, bless them, make them fertile, give them good luck, etc., and now the modern magic wand has a star on the end, which disguises the origin of the magic wand idea. The "star" is merely from "ishtar" and was the symbol of this original goddess of the world, who developed the sex-worship religion in its many varied forms. Giving the "finger" originally was the same as using the magic wand, instead of being an insult, it was a deeply religious blessing, wishing your neighbor good luck, etc., with much more meaning than our modern handshake.

In *Ezekiel 16:17*, God condemns Jerusalem for committing whoredom with "images of men", as it is translated in most versions of the *Bible*. However, *The Prophets, A New Translation of the Holy Scriptures* by the Jewish Publication Society, copyright 1978, gives a more accurate translation: "You took your beautiful things, made of the gold and silver that I have given you, and you made yourself phallic images and fornicated with them." Verse 26, "You played the whore with your neighbors, the lustful Egyptians," then the footnote says "lustful" literally means "big of phallus". *Ezekiel 23:20,* "she lusted for concubinage with them, whose members [phalli] were like those of asses and whose organs were like those of stallions." The *King James* and later versions censor out the extent of phallus-worship that was going on during Biblical times. It is still going on, in the form of Cross worship. Think a minute. Think how stupid it is to sing hymns to *The Old Rugged Cross*. Why not sing hymns to *The Old Rugged Hangman's Noose*, or the *Old Gas Chamber*. What if Christ had been beheaded, would you wear an axe around your neck? Or would you sing hymns of praise to the sharp blade? Why do you sing hymns to a phallic symbol?

Abraham worshipped God by setting up phallic pillars, a practice followed by Jacob and others later (*Gen. 28:18, 31:13, 31:45,* etc.). God ordered Abraham to be circumcised, and instituted circumcision as a religious commandment, in order to show that the God of Abraham was DIFFERENT from the other gods! Abraham's pillar was different from the "pagan" pillars—Abraham's pillar was circumcised! Later, the worship of the phallus got out of hand (no pun intended) and God forbade their use altogether (*Deut. 16:22*), but originally He allowed it! That is what the stories say!

If this bothers your concept of religion, good, your concept was wrong, anyway.

How, exactly, was a grove worshipped? Why, of course, by "grovelling"! To "grovel" meant to bow down in front of a grove—it still means "to lie or move with the body prostrate on the Earth" (*dictionary*).

RAIN OF DEATH

In addition, the ancient records show that the planet Jupiter was also physically involved in the incident of Abraham's rescue of Lot, and later in the destruction of Sodom and Gomorrah. *The Long Day of Joshua and Six Other Catastrophes* by scientists Donald W. Patten, Ronald R. Hatch, and Loren C. Steinhauer has much discussion of how this interaction may have occurred. "The current orbits of Earth, Mars, Jupiter and Saturn are 1.00, 1.88, 11.87 and 29.65 years (current Earth years) respectively. These four planets we believe were in an ancient orbital resonance system where there were periods (in terms of current Earth years) of .99 for Earth, 1.98 for Mars, 11.87 for Jupiter and 29.65 for Saturn. This four-body resonance system then was in a complex 60:30:5:2 resonance" (P. 83).

The Biblical Flood and the Ice Epoch by Donald Patten and *Worlds In Collision* by Immanuel Velikovsky are a couple of the many sources of further information on these subjects, showing how their inter-reactions caused worldwide catastrophes and caused people to begin to worship the planets as gods.

A LOT YOU DON'T KNOW

We don't know a lot about Lot (sorry about that). Lot's wife (who was turned into a pillar of salt) was named Ado (*Jasher 9:52*). Peter called Lot a "righteous soul" (*II Peter 2:8*), which is difficult to understand today by our way of thinking. Lot's herdsmen quarreled with those of Abraham; he moved to Sodom; he offered to prostitute his own virgin daughters while angels were visiting him; he was reluctant to leave Sodom when the angels told him to leave; he got drunk; and he committed incest with his daughters and got them both pregnant (*Gen. 19*). Yet Lot was a righteous man!

Young's Concordance (Also Strong's #3876 & 3877) says that "Lot" means "concealed", "covered up", or "dark coloured". The name also appears in the *Bible* in the related form of "Lotan". In the Canaanite language, "Lat" meant "goddess". Baal is said to have fought with the goddess Lotan or Lawtan (see p. 68, *When God Was a Woman*, by Merlin Stone). There was an Egyptian city called Per Uto in Egyptian, Buto in Greek and Stone says that the goddess worshiped there was known as Lato, a serpent goddess. Later, from her was derived the terms "Latvia" and "Latin". More on Latin and Lotan, below.

Near Eastern Mythology by John Gray, p. 139: "Leviathan is the Hebrew version of Canaanite lotan, known in the Ras Shamra texts as one of the monsters of primeval Chaos which had sought to defy Ball as king [he then quotes from one of the clay tablets] 'Lotan the Primeval Serpent,... The Close-coiling One of Seven Heads". On page 122 he shows that a root of the word is the Hebrew "TNN" which translates as "Tannin", a serpent in Hebrew mythology. The *Concise Etymological Dictionary of the English Language* by Walter Skeat says that our word "lot" comes from the Anglo-Saxon "hleotan" and Teutonic "hleutan".

The Hindu "Lotus", a water lily, is associated with the Sun-god. *Britannica* says "In India, for example, the lotus is identified with Lakshmi, the wife of Vishnu and a form of the Mother Goddess..." and "fundamentally the lotus symbolizes fertility...." I can see a possible root of Shem in "Lakshmi," while L. A. Waddell, *The Indo-Sumerian Seals Deciphered*, p. 81-83, says that the Sun-god was also known as the fish-god "Vishnu", with "vish-nu" coming from the Sumerian "pish-nu". It literally means fish-Nu or Noah the cetacean. "Indeed the Sumerian root Pish or Pis for 'Great Fish' still survives in Sanskrit as Vis-ara 'fish'." Our words "fish" and "Pisces" and Pos-eidon (Pos-eidon is the "fish of Aton" or "Noah the Cetacean") come from this. The Roman Neptune version of the Greek Poseidon gives us our name for the planet Neptune, the "water planet." The phallic pistil (also called a gynoecium) of a lotus flower and a dagger (related to Dagon), a piston, and the slang term for urine are more evidences of the Sumerian roots of our language. These examples are merely a "drop in the bucket."

In a footnote Waddell says that "nu" comes from "nun" which means "great fish". This comes from Nu or Noah which Waddell says "appears cognate with the Anu(n)-naki or 'Spirits of the Deep'." Noah as the Fish-god later appears in the *Bible* as "Dagon" (*Judges 16:23, I Sam. 5:2*, etc.) and this version is still worshipped as the "fish" symbol of Christianity. Next time you see the fish symbol on back of a car, remember that this traces back to Noah!

On pages 126 & 127, Waddell says: "Moreover, as the Akkads and later Sumerians were in the habit of spelling phonetically the same personal name by different syllabic signs, and the vowels freely interchanged, this 'Nun' word-sign was probably used, I think, for Nun, a common Sumerian name for Ia or Induru as 'The Fish-man god', and apparently derived from the Chaldean Nunnu 'a fish'." And as the final consonant in Sumerian syllables frequently drops out, this Nun may become 'Nin'; and in the Isin king-list in App. IV, 'Ur-Nina' is actually called 'Ur Nun'. And this 'Nun', as I have shown, is obviously the Sumerian original of the Ancient Egyptian name Nu for the 'god of the Waters'—who indeed is called Nu in Sumerian—and of the Greek Noe, the Hebrew Noh, whence our 'Noah' for the legendary boatman of the Flood-waters of the Deep; as well as secondarily of the Eddic Gothic Noa or Noi 'a ship', Indo-Persian Nau 'a ship' and our 'Navy'. Thus the god-name read Nin-a-a (which also reads Ni-a-a or I-a-a) would read: 'The god Nun (Nin, Ni, or Ia) of the Waters,' and thus identify him with Kha-ad, 'The Father-fish', and Su-kha, the Sun-fish of our seals." In a note he tells how Ia relates to Yahva of Indra and the Hebrew Yahveh. The Egyptian *Book of the Dead* tells of the ship of Nu, that is, the Ark of Noah. The pictograph for this term includes a wavy line, which is the source of our letter "N".

[To be contionued.]

CHAPTER 9

CALIFORNIA, NEVADA INDIAN GAMING ASSOCIATION

Editor's Note: Following up on the story that we ran in the Sept. 23, 1997 edition of CONTACT, we read in the March 7, 1998 edition of the Los Angeles Times, "Ending a long stalemate, Gov. Pete Wilson said today he has forged a gaming pact with one band of Native Americans that could bring state regulation to Indian gambling in California for the first time.

"Howard Dickstein, a lawyer who represented the Pala band in negotiations with the state's lawyers, said at least six tribes have indicated that they will sign onto the Pala compact. He said he expects more to follow.

"Furthermore, he said that the pact contains numerous advantages for all 100 Indian tribes in California and that when the details become known, other tribes may drop their opposition."

The response from California's Native tribes in opposition to the pact was swift.

Below we have reprinted the Declaration and Resolution by the Indian Nations of California, which is a very clear statement of their thoughts and intent. At the core of this controversy is the issue of Native American sovereignty.

<u>A DECLARATION AND RESOLUTION</u> BY THE INDIAN NATIONS OF CALIFORNIA

This is both a declaration and resolution of the Indian nations of California opposing the Pala compact. In the wake of the signing of the Pala compact, we feel it is crucial to communicate our opposition to the process, outcome, and terms of the Pala negotiations.

Whereas, the Pala Band of Mission Indians has signed a compact with the State of California concerning gaming, we acknowledge their right as a sovereign entity to do so. However both the Pala agreement and the Department of Justice's demand for compliance with the threat of imminent closure of our existing gaming are unacceptable choices for tribal governments.

Long before the *United States Constitution* or the *Declaration of Independence*, we were sovereign Indian nations, and we, the elected and cultural leaders of California's Indian tribes, believe the principle of sovereignty to be true and unchanging.

The rights to self-govern, to self-determination, to freedom are fundamental tribal and human rights that need no new interpretation. There is only one Tribal sovereignty based on our customs and traditions. One that has been handed down by our parents, grandparents and their ancestors.

We cannot allow another piece of our precious legacy to be given away by those who would negotiate for us. We will not allow the redefinition or renegotiation of our sovereignty, our borders or our identity.

What we strive for now is the protection and strengthening of our sovereign status. Any attempts to redefine sovereignty are really an effort to weaken or destroy it.

We stand now together at a time when many of our opponents would drive us to our knees. Gaming and non-gaming tribes, large and small, this struggle affects us all.

This is a repeat of history; only this time, the tribes will write this chapter. We will not believe false promises or trade away our heritage for short term gain. And, we will not allow any entity or group to pit us against each other. Our sovereignty is not for sale.

The key to the protection of our sovereignty is in our unity. If we are not there for each other, no one will be there for us. If we do not speak for sovereignty, who will?

It is our pledge that we will never diminish our sovereignty, but rather, honor it as a precious legacy from our ancestors and as our responsibility to our children. We cannot entrust anyone but ourselves to be the caretaker for our future.

Therefore, we come together to act with one heart and speak with one voice:

Whereas, the governor proposes that the more than 100-plus California Indian tribes sign an agreement identical to the Pala compact or face closure of their gaming activities by the U.S. Attorneys;

Whereas, this is not a negotiation but an ultimatum and attempt at forcible separation and removal from our economic well-being;

Whereas the proposed compact cuts into the very heart of tribal sovereignty and the rights and jurisdictions of tribal governments;

Whereas the proposed compact is a violation of the spirit and letter of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act;

Whereas the proposed compact was conceived with no representation by any other California tribes and contrived in violation of every principle of the democratic process;

Whereas this compact is a job killer which hurts thousands of employees who depend on us for their futures. It compromises the choices of our loyal customers, the employees of the thousands of companies we do business with and jeopardizes the strong and constructive relationships we have voluntarily generated with out neighbors and local governments,

Therefore let it be resolved that we, as tribal nations, refuse to accept the proposed compact by the Governor of California. We will work together to develop a solution that will meet the needs of all California tribes.

CHAPTER 10

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:

<u>NIGA DISAPPOINTED IN</u> PROPOSED CALIFORNIA AGREEMENT

The National Indian Gaming Association (NIGA) is a non-profit organization established by gaming Tribes in 1985. NIGA membership is composed of 158 sovereign Indian Nations and 90 non-voting Associate (Corporate) members representing tribes, organizations and businesses engaged in Indian Nation gaming enterprises throughout the United States. NIGA was formed by Indian Nations to protect their sovereign governmental rights in this area and to support their gaming and economic interests in Congress and elsewhere.

The National Indian Gaming Association expresses shock, anger and disappointment with the agreement reached by the Pala Band of Mission Indians and the Governor of California.

"It's like a lot of situations we have seen throughout the Country," said NIGA Chairman Rick Hill, "Indian Nations are being held hostage by states who deny them their legal right to offer gaming. Then the deals that are finally made exemplify the unequal nature of the negotiations rather than a fair, negotiated deal between two parties, as the Federal Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA) law originally intended. How can a compact negotiated in secret, without the rest of the Nations, be considered a historic moment?"

Here in California there are a number of poverty-stricken Indian Nations whose only hope is the economic development available through gaming. The Indian Gaming Regulatory Act says Tribes can offer gaming but this Governor has held Indian Nations hostage for years by refusing to negotiate in good faith as required by the law. Now, Indian Nations are being told they will be forced to accept a deal most will find unacceptable. This is not justice and this is not fairness.

Every Indian Nation has the governmental right to negotiate a deal, good or bad, for itself. But those negotiations should be held with both Tribe and state on equal footing. This agreement purports to establish machine limits for the entire state and for other Indian Nations. The idea that a single agreement should and can bind other, non-participating Indian Nations to the same agreement is a legal fiction and a moral outrage.

Under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act, states are permitted at the negotiating table to give them a say in certain regulatory aspects of gaming, like background checks and law enforcement. Indian Nations have been willing to live with that and, in most cases, work with states to provide an effective pattern of regulation and law enforcement. However, in the Pala agreement, you have the state, and local officials, going far beyond the scheme described in the law and in a manner that will likely doom many gaming economic development efforts to failure.

"This compact is historic in its dishonor! Shame on Governor Wilson, the U.S. Attorneys in California, and the office of the state Attorney General," state Tim Wapato, NIGA Executive Director.

Some states are ignoring, and breaking, Federal law and no one, particularly the U.S. Department of Justice, is willing to do a damn thing about it. The Department of Justice is supposed to uphold and enforce Federal laws like IGRA and has a trust responsibility to Indian Nations. Wapato further states, "What actions have they taken to ensure that fair negotiations have taken place in California? The U.S. Department of Justice appears to be co-conspirators with the states of California in negotiating a sham compact with one Nation and then applying it to over 100 Indian Naitons—take it or leave."

Indian Nations want to know where was this state concern with Indian Nations when Indian people and their neighbors were hungry, homeless, jobless and *without opportunity*? Indian gaming has an excellent record in California for creating jobs, creating business, and for improving local economies. Those local communities which currently have gaming had better take a good, hard look at whether this latest proposal helps or hurts their communities. Our educated guess is that it will end up hurting a lot more people and communities than it purports to help.

Many of the Indian Nations in California are not situated geographically to have a gaming operation. Governor Wilson has used a time-dishonored tactic of divide and conquer by promising the least advantaged a pot of gold by leasing machines to other Tribes at \$5,000 per machine, a total of \$1 million dollars. Be careful of accepting the 30 pieces of silver at the cost of sovereignty.

A 60-day deadline has been imposed by the U.S. Attorneys to sign the agreement or shut down.

The U.S. Attorneys have been patient throughout this matter. Now is no time to lose patience and to lose control. This matter is not resolved and no compact is yet in final form. We do not believe the enforced elimination of tens of thousands of jobs, held mostly by non-Indians, is the best way to proceed.

If these deadlines are going to be strictly enforced, we advise the State to beef up its public assistance, its welfare systems and its court systems right now, because there's going to be a lot of hungry, homeless, and jobless adults, and children, walking the streets in 60 days. Of course, much of the money previously spent and taxed in the state will now be going across the border to Nevada to be spent and taxed there. So there will be less funds available to pay for public assistance, welfare, and bankruptcies and broken contracts in California courts. We hope someone intelligently thinks this through before irrevocable actions with damaging results are taken.

Indian Nations and NIGA stand firmly behind the efforts of many people and Indian Nations in California to place an initiative on the ballot. It is better that the people of California, not a few politicians, decide this matter.

CHAPTER 11

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 3/21/98

KOSOVO: "BOSNIA II" AND SERBIA'S AZTLAN, CHECHNYA

Next Stage of NATO's "Green Interstate"

Editor's note: Consider the following information in conjunction with this week's Front Page story of typical deceit and intrigue.

From the INTERNET, Truth in Media's GLOBAL WATCH, courtesy of Gail Irwin, 3/6/98: [quoting]

Here we go again... "Bosnia II" is in the making in the Serbian province of Kosovo. The U.S. government officials are stoking the fires of another ethnic war while publicly opposing it. They are playing their usual, duplicitous roles pulling the strings behind the scenes. Just as they kept adding fuel to the ethnic fire in Bosnia while claiming to douse it.

The special U.S. envoy for the Balkans, Robert Gelbard, was in Serbia only days before the latest outbreak of violence. And just as his predecessors at the State Department declared in June 1991 that the territorial integrity of the former Yugoslavia is inviolable, Gelbard warned the secession-minded Albanians that Kosovo is an integral part of Serbia. But words are cheap. Especially those of the U.S. diplomats. Less than a year after such a solemn declaration, the U.S. recognized in April 1992 Slovenia's, Croatia's and Bosnia's secessions, setting off the three-and-a-half-year Bosnian war.

So Kosovo looks like Bosnia "déjà vu all over again", in the words of Yogi Berra. Why should we, Americans, care? Because Kosovo, just like Bosnia, will ultimately lead to American involvement, including a deployment of U.S. troops.

How do we know that? Well, the *New York Times*, for example, has already been clamoring for redeployment of American troops in Macedonia, a stone's throw from Kosovo. In a Mar. 2 lead editorial, which "coincided" with the latest outbreak of violence in that Serbian province, it called for "new peacekeepers, possibly under the auspices of NATO and OSCE" to be sent in when the U.N. mission leaves. And, of course, international troops are already deployed in the neighboring Albania, following this country's brush with its own civil war last year.

Another tell-tale sign of upcoming trouble in Kosovo was the arrival of some U.S. establishment media buzzards there. The *New York Times* reporter, for example, was given a private tour of Albanian terrorists' hideouts BEFORE the latest outbreak of violence. This implies a coordination between the U.S. government, the Albanian terrorists, and the "independent" U.S. media.

A far-fetched speculation? Only for the ignorant. For, the same pattern was discernible during the war in

Bosnia. The Western media buzzards "miraculously happened to be in the neighborhood" when grizzly killings occurred. The CNN, ABC, or SKY cameras were rolling even before some of the victims died.

Good journalism? Luck? Or careful coordination? Take your pick...

In this writer's wartime travels through Bosnia, for example, one former Serb resident of Sarajevo showed his sense of black humor.

"Western reporters can be deadlier than snipers," he said. "Whenever I saw one, I ran for cover. When I saw a group, I dove for cover."

"But if you happened to see CNN's Christiana Amanpour, or ABC's Peter Jennings, for example, maybe you should have actually joined them," I suggested.

"Really? Joined them? Why?"

"Because the buzzards don't kill the buzzards. Though they are not picky about what they eat."

Meanwhile, in Kosovo, as in Bosnia, the *New York Times* focused on the reaction—the alleged Serbian police brutality against the ethnic Albanians on Mar. 1, while downplaying the cause of the attacks by Albanian terrorists on Feb. 27, in which four Serb policemen were killed. This establishment paper covered in the similar fashion the "spontaneous" demonstrations by some 30,000 ethnic Albanians in Kosovo which followed on Mar. 1, in which 24 people were killed. It sympathized with the terrorists, not the law.

But while the media are willing accomplices, it is the U.S. government, that keeps manufacturing crises around the world. Now that Iraq has quieted down again "why don't we light a match somewhere else?" one can just see our Secretary of Hate, Madeleine Albright, hinting. Nor is she the lone hawk in the U.S. government's bloodthirsty foreign policy crowd.

Richard Holbrooke, for example, the "father of the November 1995 Dayton Agreement" which ended the Bosnian war, inserted a clause in it about Kosovo. Resolving the Kosovo problems was one of the conditions for lifting the so-called outer sanctions on Serbia (read availability of NWO funds).

What did Kosovo have to do with Bosnia? Nothing whatsoever. Except that Holbrooke's move revealed where the next stage of the New World Order's (NWO) expansion in the Balkans was likely to take place. In a Dec. 7, 1995 *ARIZONA REPUBLIC* column, "Dayton Sellout", I called this expansion a "Green Interstate", an ethnic/geopolitical highway with a dual carriage and a dual purpose:

(1) Connecting NATO West with NATO East (Turkey);

(2) Projecting the Islamic influence into the soft underbelly of Christian Europe (Albanians are predominantly Muslim, though many of them, like the Bosnian Muslims, are former Serbs who forcibly or voluntarily converted to Islam to avoid the Turkish persecution).

"With Macedonia, Bulgaria and Albania already in the U.S. backpocket, NATO could afford to lose (or

ignore) the nominally pro-Serb Greece and still maintain its geographic continuity." (also see TiM GW Bulletin 95-15, 12/14/95).

[NOTE: If you wish us to upload to you some relevant maps and charts which show why Kosovo is a strategically important point on the "Green Interstate", just send us a message requesting it. Ed.]

The second hint about the NWO globalists' future Balkan intentions came in 1996, when the State Department requested and got Serbia's permission for the U.S. to open a USIA post in Pristina, the largest city in Kosovo. It was the first and the only such office set up outside of our embassy in Belgrade. I figured its real purpose was to be a command post, where American and ethnic Albanian would-be insurgents can whisper into each other's ears free of electronic bugging by the Serbian government.

The third hint was provided by the Kosovo Albanians themselves. They have been boycotting all Serbian elections since the fall of communism in 1990. This sent a clear signal that they were planning to achieve their political aims by bullets, not ballots. A steady flow of arms into Kosovo, financed in part by the Albanians' drug-trafficking operations based in Switzerland, and by fund-raising events in the New York area (see *New York Times*, Mar. 2), reinforced the assessment that it was just a matter of time before Kosovo exploded in violence.

Let us pause here for a moment for a logic check. The U.S. globalists may have wanted the Kosovo clause inserted in the Dayton Agreement. Many other U.S. officials—from the former ambassador Warren Zimmerman in 1989, to Bob Dole in 1990, to Alphonse D'Amato and a number of other senators—have been for years championing the cause of ethnic Albanians in Kosovo.

But why did Serbia's president, Slobodan Milosevic, agree to all these terms? Why did he sell out Serbia's national interests?

Because he is evidently a globalists' tool himself. It takes two to tango. To manufacture a crisis, you need the "bogeys" as well as the "white knights" who ride in to save the day. Why do you think George Bush spared Saddam Hussein in the Gulf War? To save him for another president to use as a punching bag. And to justify continued presence of the U.S. troops in the region, eight years after the war ended!

So Milosevic sold out Serbia's national interests for the same reason the globalist U.S. government has been selling out America's national interests—by equating them with interests of Big Business. Why do you think the U.S. government refused to back openly the massive pro-democracy demonstrators' calls for Milosevic's resignation last winter? Because Milosevic is a valuable Serbian punching bag. He has now learned when to wag his tail, and when to bare his teeth, depending on what his NWO masters need in a given situation. Without him as a villain, the U.S. anti-Serbian policy would be shown for what it is—a genocide against an entire people, which is what the old and the new sanctions are.

This vile relationship is symbiotic in reverse, too. Every time a new crisis is manufactured, it enables a dictator to usurp more powers from the people on account of a national emergency. That's exactly what Milosevic and Croatia's president, Franjo Tudjman did in April 1991, less than a month after Milosevic was almost deposed during the first massive demonstrations against him in Belgrade on Mar. 9, 1991. Killings and disturbances in the Serbian part of Croatia created a national emergency in both former

Yugoslav republics. This led to a full-fledged war after Croatia unilaterally seceded from Yugoslavia in June 1991. Within months, erstwhile anti-Milosevic demonstrators were being drafted and sent to the front to die for him.

For the same reason, manufactured crises, such as the recent one in Iraq, actually benefit the dictators like Iraq's Saddam Hussein. They give him a chance to consolidate or increase his power over his own people.

I don't know Saddam Hussein. I've never met the man. But I have met Slobodan Milosevic one-on-one, twice. Once in January 1990. Another time in February 1992. Both times, after several hours of conversation, heated at times, this former communist dictator left me with an impression of being woefully out of it when it came to foreign policy or world affairs.

Back in January 1990, for example, Milosevic told me that, in his opinion, the U.S. government was supposedly interested in the Kosovo Albanians' cause because Albania (geographically) denies the Soviet Union a direct access to the Mediterranean Sea.

I was stunned by Milosevic's ignorance, especially coming on the heels of Romania's Ceauscescu execution, which took place less than two weeks before our meeting. And considering that the Berlin Wall came down only two months before that.

"Hasn't that foreign policy card gotten a bit yellow by now?" I asked.

"Yes, it has. But the State Department bureaucrats take a long time to catch up to the real world," he replied.

Maybe they do. But it obviously took even longer for Serbia's president to figure out which end was up in world affairs.

The next time we met, in February 1992, just before the Bosnian war broke out, I warned Milosevic that he himself may face charges as a war criminal one day unless he condemned such crimes by the Serbs. He said he already had, grinning and making some notes about my comment in his pad. He evidently either didn't think he'd be prosecuted, or didn't care.

That's when it first started to dawn on me. The man must be a part of the con. The NWO elite need their "Hitlers", their "Stalins", their "Saddams", their "butchers", so as to justify their parasitic existence. Because the overriding principle of the globalist elite-driven foreign policy is PERPETUAL WAR FOR PER-PETUAL COMMERCE. Because foreign wars and subsequent "peacekeeping" engagements are good for business of the global merchants of death.

So forget the State Department rhetoric. Words are cheap. Watch the body language and actions of Big Business' stooges in Washington.

But to try to understand from the ground level what's really going on in Kosovo, consider a scenario in which some "Americans" advocate secession of the American Southwest and its joining a foreign country, say Mexico. That's exactly what some ethnic Albanians in the Serbian province of Kosovo want. They

want Kosovo to become a part of "Greater Albania".

Nor is this parallel between Kosovo and the American Southwest a hypothetical one. As I pointed out in my *WASHINGTON TIMES* column, "When Cultures Collide..." (Aug. 18, 1996), the Chicano groups, including MEChA and La Raza Unida (The Race United), want to "demolish the border". They want to reclaim the American Southwest for Mexico and rename it Aztlan. And, just as in Kosovo, some Clinton administration officials seem to be encouraging them by attending their rallies.

The situation in Kosovo is an even more drastic example of demographic terrorism, followed by political insurrection. Unlike Aztlan, this region has NEVER been a part of Albania. Kosovo has been a cradle of the Serbian civilization ever since King Stefan Nemanja threw out the Byzantines from Kosovo in 1180. And even before that, during the two centuries of Byzantine Empire's occupation, there were Serbs living in Kosovo. Which means that Serbs have lived in Kosovo for over 1,000 years now, as attested by numerous ancient Christian monasteries which grace this "land of blackbirds", which is what Kosovo means in a loose translation ("kos" is a Serbian word for "blackbird").

In fact, the Serbs constituted a majority of Kosovo's population prior to the purges and repression of Christian Serbs which commenced in 1945 under the communist rule. In 1929, Serbs constituted 61% of the population; in 1929, ethnic Albanians 33%, and others 6%. By 1961, the pendulum had swung the other way, as a result of the communist-sponsored demographic terrorism. Ethnic-Albanians accounted for 67%, the Serbs for 27%, and others for 6%.

Today, ethnic-Albanians represent about 90% of Kosovo's population, according to their own and the Western media figures. But since there has not been a census done in Kosovo for over 10 years, such claims cannot be independently verified. Whatever the actual figures, the demographic conquest of the sovereign territory by immigrant aliens and exploding birth rates represents another parallel between Kosovo and the American Southwest.

SUMMARY

Given that the overriding strategy of the U.S. globalists' foreign policy is PERPETUAL WAR FOR PER-PETUAL COMMERCE, are there some discernible tactics in the way they manufacture crises around the world? Yes, there are. Generally, they try to incite a minority group to rise up against a majority, using the old "divide and conquer" tactics.

They back Israel, for example, against the majority of its Muslim neighbors. They backed the Chechnya Muslim rebels against the Russian majority. They backed the Bosnian Muslims and the Croats against the majority Serbs in the former Yugoslavia. And now they are backing Kosovo

Albanians against the majority Serbs in Serbia.

Closer to home, the "politically correct" views of neo-liberals, including the "affirmative action", has led to a virtual dictatorship of the minorities. Any criticism, no matter how logical, factual or reasoned, is immediately attacked as "racist", or "White supremacist".

But there are also exceptions to the above tactics. When Christians are the minority fighting for justice or survival, the NWO elite look the other way. That's what they did in Lebanon. That's what they are doing in China, Saudi Arabia, Egypt or Israel, for example, when Christian minorities are persecuted. That's what they do when the ethnic (Christian) Russian minorities' rights are abused in the former Soviet republics. That's what they did in the former Yugoslavia—when the minority Croats or Bosnian Muslims were allowed to secede from Yugoslavia, while the minority (Christian) Serbs in Croatia and Bosnia were not permitted to secede the newly minted countries of Croatia or Bosnia. Worse, hundreds of thousands of Serbs were later "ethnically cleansed" from Croatia and Bosnia—with the U.S. military aid, too.

Finally, in Kosovo, the NWO globalists not only looked the other way while the (Christian) Serbs in Kosovo were being virtually exterminated, they are now blaming and punishing the Serbs for the latest escalation in violence—just as they did in Bosnia.

Earlier generations of the NWO elite displayed similar attitudes. Remember the genocide which Turkey carried out against the (Christian) Armenians in 1915? Or the pogroms of the minority (Christian) Greeks which the same Muslim country committed in 1922?

So what is one to conclude from all these examples? That, besides being inhumane and driven by materialism (PERPETUAL WAR FOR PERPETUAL COMMERCE), the NWO elite policy is and has been inherently ANTI-CHRISTIAN throughout the 20th century! And it has become even more so since the end of the Cold War. The above exceptions in warmongering tactics only confirm this rule.

If this comes as a shock to you, it should not be surprising. For, "at a time of universal deceit—telling the truth is a revolutionary act," wrote George Orwell. And we live indeed at a time of universal deceit.

What to do? First, pay no attention to the State Department or White House rhetoric. Judge them solely on their deeds, such as the above examples. In fact, assuming the opposite from what they are saying will increase the probability of getting closer to the truth, than would taking their words at face value.

Second, apply an old proverb to the globalist elite: "The best way to kill a snake is to cut off its head." Which means remove from power the inhumane, anti-Christian Washington stooges of the NWO elite. At least in this country, we have the right to do it by legal, non-violent means. If we don't, we'll only have ourselves to blame when our turn comes to be bitten by the NWO snake.

<u>APPENDIX I—</u> <u>A HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVE</u>

"Kosovo Polje" stands for a "Blackbirds' Field" in a literal translation from Serbian. But this Blackbirds' Field is also a field of death. And a shrine for Serbian patriots who gave their lives in defense of their country and Christianity.

On June 28, 1389, a mighty battle was fought at Kosovo Polje. It pitted the Serbian defenders of Christ's holy cross against the invading Ottoman Empire (Turkey) adherents of the Muslim crescent moon.

The Christian medieval Europe was fretting and hoping that the Serbs' holy cross would prevail over the

Islamic crescent moon. At one point, the bells of the Notre Dame Cathedral in Paris rang out in premature and erroneous salute to the Serbs' victory.

But it was not to be. The Serbs were defeated. One of them, however, Milos Obilic, managed to cut the gut of the invading Emperor, Murat, with his sword, killing him, before being cut to pieces himself by the Sultan's guards.

For 600 years and counting, Kosovo Polje, the Blackbirds' Field, has been etched as a place of honor and glory in the hearts and minds of every child born by a Serbian mother. It's like the Alamo, Bastogne, Siege of Leningrad (St. Petersbrurg)—combined. On June 28, 1989, the 600th anniversary of the Battle of Kosovo, over a million Serbs, 10% of the nation, made a pilgrimage to this sacred ground to pay their respects to the Kosovo heroes.

The New World Order warmongers knew all that. They knew that the Serbs will never give up Kosovo. That would be like turning the Arlington Cemetery to the Germans or the Pearl Harbor Memorial to the Japanese. That's why they chose to stoke the ethnic fires in Kosovo.

<u>APPENDIX II—</u> MADE FOR TV MURDERS IN BOSNIA

For those among our readers who may not have been following the Bosnian war blow-by-blow, we should point out that the Western media huddled with the Bosnian Muslims in downtown Sarajevo. That's why the American public only got to see the incoming shells, allegedly fired by the Serb gunners surrounding the city. Sometimes, however, gruesome massacres were staged for the Western cameras when the Sarajevo government shelled its own people while blaming the Serbs—to win the sympathy of Western viewers. For some examples of those, check out the books *Peacekeeper*, by General Lewis MacKenzie, the first U.N. commander in Sarajevo, and *The Sharp End, A Canadian Soldier's Story*, by James R. Davis.

Bob Djurdjevic, *TRUTH IN MEDIA*, Phoenix, Arizona e-mail: <bobdj@djurdjevic.com> Truth in Media Web page: <http://www.beograd.com/truth>

CHAPTER 12

THE NEWS DESK ANOTHER SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 3/21/98

THE COMING AMERICAN HOLOCAUST

Editor's note: For many years Commander Hatonn has been informing the readers of CONTACT about the detention camps quietly being set up around the United States to incarcerate uppity citizens who do not wish to go along with the imposition of the New World Order. While we cannot verify the accuracy of the report you are about to read, do take note that it is, in large measure, consistent with what we have shared with you readers for many years now. It would seem all is pretty much in place and ready to receive "guests".

From the INTERNET, courtesy of James Seabourn, 3/15/98: [quoting]

Summary: An interview with Mr. Sea regarding New World Order plans for the U.S. and its citizens.

In the spring of 1997, Senior Editor, Professor Ian Stewart, met with 'Mr. Sea' (real name known but withheld) to discuss what he has learned first-hand about the coming persecution at the hands of the New World Order operatives.

With a seven-inch-thick portfolio filled with photographs, news articles, correspondence, etc., Mr. Sea revealed disturbing information about New World Order efforts to destroy and enslave America.

The following are some of Mr. Sea's comments. But first, let's take a look at the man who made the comments.

Mr. Sea, a committed Christian, is a former inspector for the Joint Chiefs of Staff and the Department of Defense, with 31 years of federal service in the military, nine with the Department of Defense, including two years with the Air Staff. He's a holder of the Bronze Star, the Purple Heart, the Defense Meritorious Service Medal, three awards of the Joint Service Medal, all of the Vietnamese awards, as well as the Joint Meritorious Unit Medal.

When he retired a few years ago, he was awarded the Secretary of Defense Civilian Service Medal. He's been around the world to 31 countries on four continents, and speaks five languages.

Mr. Sea spoke of the coming American Holocaust, of the Government plans for dealing with the non-New World Orderites. He spoke of the infrastructure that has already been set up to incarcerate and execute Americans, and the locations of the facilities that will be used for these purposes—all with photographs, leaving little to the imagination.

"The infrastructure is set up. There are at least 130 concentration camps—quietly modified facilities which have sprung up and continue to spring up across the country, seemingly devoid of activity, yet requiring

strange accoutrements such as barbed-wire-topped fencing (with the tops turned inward) and helicopter wind socks. Most have good logistical supportability, with major highways and railroad transport facilities adjacent to the sites.

"These facilities, many in remote areas across our country, are set up to become concentration/detention camps, **complete with gas chambers**, for resisters and dissidents. Generally speaking, they're set up for dissenters who will not go along with the New World Order. The resisters are gun owners who refuse to give up their weapons; the dissidents are Christians, Patriots and Constitutionalists. These camps are set up. I've seen many of them.

"On August 6, 1994, I toured the Amtrak Railcar Repair Facility at Beech Grove, Indianapolis, Indiana. There are at least ten maintenance barns at this facility, covering 129 acres, with two separate fences with the tops leaning inward. The windows of several buildings have been bricked up. "Hence, you have three levels of security for Amtrak repair barns!

"There are three helicopter 25-knot aviation wind socks (which aren't the correct ones to use for chemical spills which require 10-knot wind socks). There are high security NSA-style people turnstiles, and high intensity/security lighting for 24-hour operation. The box-car (gas chamber) building fence is marked with special 'RED/BLUE Zone' signs. This corresponds to the 'mission' of the RED/BLUE Lists which surfaced in June and July of 1996.

"Under martial law, this will become a death camp. They're only going to handle category one and two (RED and BLUE) people there. This box-car facility will be used for execution.

"One of the barns is large enough to put four box cars into. There are powered vents on the top of the barn to vent the gas out of the building after the box cars have been fumigated. All of the buildings have newly installed six-inch gas pipes and furnaces installed in all 'railroad barns'.

"Since the photo was taken in August 1994, FEMA has allocated \$6 million to make the walls and roofs of the buildings airtight. Under martial law, this facility could be immediately used as an SS-style 'termination' gas chamber.

"On January 27, 1995, *The Indianapolis News* ran an article titled, 'Amtrak Lays off 212 at Beech Grove: 170 Lose Jobs at Maintenance Center Today.' Why perform \$6 million worth of renovations, and then lay off 212 people? Because the people doing the final executions will not be Americans. Thus, the 'slots' of the 212 will be filled with non-Americans.

"They'll hire foreigners for this 'cappo' task. Cappo ('chief' in Italian) was the title of the trustee prisoners who actually killed many Jews for the SS butchers at Dachau, and at other Nazi crematoria across Europe.

"The news article also said, '...hopes the yard may be able to solicit work repairing private train cars, and perhaps subway cars from Washington, DC, or other urban areas.' The 'repairing' of private trains is a dead giveaway to death cars!

"The article went on to say, 'Late last year, Congress ordered Amtrak to spend at least \$5.9 million

patching holes in the roof and fixing masonry on the walls of the giant machine sheds at Beech Grove.' These buildings have been 'sealed'. They're airtight. The facility is constructed to allow gas to be blown into all the buildings via the newly installed, two-story, hot air heating furnaces."

Next, Mr. Sea elaborated on the two categories—the RED and BLUE Lists—and what they mean: "The RED List is for pick-up and execution before obtrusive preparations for martial law are initiated. The BLUE List is also for execution, but at a later date—within six weeks of martial law declaration. There are no 're-education' plans for **either category—just execution**.

"When you get picked up on a RED pick-up, they'll take you from your home at night—probably around 4 a.m.—and put you in a black van, then drive you to a helicopter waiting to fly you to an intermediate point. There, you'll be loaded onto a big 64-passenger CH-47 Chinook helicopter—all black, unmarked and illegally operating under the Treaty on Open Skies.

"Then they'll fly you to one of 38 cities where you'll board a 747, 737, or 727. 'You may be taken straight to a temporary detention facility. When you're RED listed, you'll be taken to a red camp. Then you'll be executed.

"At some point, martial law will be declared. (Martial law is when the writ of Habeas Corpus to have a trial by jury is suspended. Instead of going to the judge, you go straight to jail for a limited time.) I suspect there will be **a major outage, or some other crisis which will be the reason to declare martial law.** At this point, the BLUE listed people will be picked up. At that time, the country will be regionalized into ten regions, which are already designated by FEMA.

"Be advised that it has been proven (in Wyoming and at least one other location) that the black choppers have state-of-the-art radio (RF frequency wideband jammers, and can jam cell phones and CBs while they're executing black operations missions (i.e., in your area). This means that your cell phone could be jammed just before and/or during any action against you.

"In June of 1996, an FBI agent got hold of the Region Three BLUE List (from a CIA agent), and found his own name on it, and those of several others he knew in Virginia. The Regional BLUE List stated that the names on the BLUE List would be picked up within six weeks of the actual martial law declaration.

"This parallels the Nazi RED/BLUE List policy almost to the letter. The parallel Nazi plan was published by Heinz Hohne in his 1966 book, *The Story of the Nazi SS: The Order of the Death's Head*. (I've read this book and sent it to Jack McLamb.)

"People say, 'It won't work.' But it will work if the 300,000 Soviet troops which are ALREADY HERE can get the guns. The name of the game is to blackball the people to get the guns... make the militia look bad, make guns look bad, make everybody give up their guns. Once they get your gun, they've got you, UNLESS you've got the angel of the Lord at your door. If you've got the angel of the Lord out there protecting you, it's another story.

"The ones doing all of this are operating out of the highest places in the Federal Government. They're cooperating with 'spirit guides and mediums' and using astrology and numerology. The spirit guides are telling them what to do, and the entire thing is being orchestrated at the highest spiritual levels. Every base

has been covered. They've thought of everything.

"If you notice, they often do things on the 13th of the month. Mr. Clinton does a lot of things on the 13th. On September 13, 1993, the brokered Israeli-PLO peace accord was signed. He waited 14 days, until September 13, 1994 to sign the Crime Bill. On June 13, 1995, he stated he'd veto the national debt authorization ceiling. On November 13, he did veto it. On January 13, 1996, he made a speech to Bosnia.

"*Amos 3:7* says that God doesn't do anything without first revealing His secrets to His servants the prophets. God is giving His people warnings. There are people who go to prophecy conferences to see when the rapture is going to take place and listen to all the peaceful prophets prophesying good news and glad tidings. But if we'll listen to God, He is warning us of the times that are coming. We need to prepare.

"There will be an interim of probably just days from the time they launch the RED List, to the declaration of martial law when they'll start coming after those on the BLUE List. It'll work the same way it did with the Nazis who had a list of people to pick up, on June 30, 1934, before they declared their mobilization.

"It's the same blueprint being used because it's the same spirit leading the Fourth Reich as led the Third Reich. In Germany, they used trains; here it will be helicopters and 747s.

"When Hitler was villainizing the Jews, he hired thugs and dressed them in black uniforms (our whole country is not going to black uniforms). He was building concentration camps and setting up a transport system. In this country, they're now in the process of villainizing Christians, Patriots, Constitutionalists, and outspoken talk-show hosts, etc.

"Who will be doing the actual picking up? Foreign cops (United Nations Internal Security Forces). Over 30 foreign military bases under the United Nations flag are already set up in the US., all with the approval of special appointees in high Federal positions. These bases are already manned with over ONE MIL-LION troops from Russia, Poland, Germany, Belgium, Turkey, Great Britain, Nicaragua, and Asian countries.

"Why are they here? Because unlike our own troops—many of which, along with the Guard and Reserve of 24 states, are being deployed overseas—they will have no qualms about firing on U.S. citizens when the time comes.

"There are more than 2,000 Russian tanks, military trucks and chemical warfare vehicles just outside Gulfport, Mississippi. They began arriving in January of 1994.

"There are 180 foreign troops at Fort Reilly which was confirmed to me by a Brigadier General. There are 300 who came into the Birmingham, Alabama airport on a big white Russian cargo plane on December 13, 1995.

"As of 1995, there were 10,000-plus foreign troops at Fort Chafee, Arkansas, reportedly making preparations for 20,000 detainees.

"Also in 1995 at Fort Polk, Louisiana (U.S. Army Post), Russian and Eastern European troops were

deployed under the U.N. flag. [When questioned about this, the legislative aide of the congressman who presides over Fort Polk, stated, 'Yes, they were there undertaking broad, joint training exercises. And, yes, the U.N. flag was flying. There may still be some there today'.]

"At the Aberdeen Proving Grounds, there are many Russian tanks. One of the NCOs told his father that he'd been maintaining them.

"This is going on all over the country. German troops are known to be at Holloman Air Force Base in New Mexico, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base in Ohio, and Fort Hood, Texas. Chinese troops are known to be at the Long Beach Naval Station in California.

"There's not going to be some future event when the invading troops are going to show up. They're already here! When martial law is implemented, these foreign U.N. troops will be policing our country, carrying out the plans of the New World Order.

"God is warning His people. There isn't much time before these events begin to take place. God's people need to prepare themselves in every way possible. It's not a time for fear. It's a time for prayer, preparation and sharing our faith with a lost world.

"We must always remember *Ephesians 6:12* which states: 'For we wrestle not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of the darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places.""

Please visit:

<http://www.prospectorsbanqueclub.com> and <http://www.eagleflt.com> [End quoting]

CHAPTER 13

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 3/28/98

ALL PRISON-MATES SAY McDOUGAL MURDERED!!

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 3/24/98: [quoting]

Al, the following was forwarded to me. -Calvin

This comes from someone whom I consider to be credible. -Carolyn

I am corresponding with an activist who was falsely arrested and persecuted into pleading guilty as the leader of the Viper Militia in Arizona last year. He is serving his sentence at the Ft. Worth Federal Prison, where Whitewater Conspirator Jim McDougal was also serving time.

My contact is a rational, thoughtful, clear-headed grassroots activist who is not concerned with blue helmets, Trilateralists, or the Rockefellers. He is in prison because he sincerely believes that the *Second Amendment* means exactly what it says and thought he had a right to exercise it.

I'm interested in what you think I should do with this information. Does anyone know Ken Starr's phone number? For [the inmate's] safety, I will not reveal his identity. These are entirely his words without embellishment or comment: 3/11/98.

I thought that my stories of interest had ended with my sentencing and being sent to the prison hospital facility here in Ft. Worth—until my friend Jim McDougal died last Saturday night.

I believe that he was murdered! So does every other inmate in this prison. All 1,442 of them. So many bizarre things occurred last Saturday afternoon that the government's story doesn't hold much water.

It started at 4-o'clock count when an olive drab "Blackhawk" helicopter with NO markings on it whatsoever, landed outside the fence of the prison.

Count was completed and we went to dinner. Upon completion of our evening meal at 6:05 the helicopter took off and flew over the compound at maybe 150 ft.

Hundreds of us (inmates) saw this helicopter take off. At 6:10 the compound was locked down and at the same time Jim was taken to give a urine specimen for drug testing which is very odd, in itself, because he's not here for drugs.

When I had lunch with Jim at noon on Sat., he was in good health and was even jovial. He was looking

forward to testifying before Ken Starr's Grand Jury, and the release of his book.

During the compound lockdown after dinner, he was injected with a drug in the clinic, supposedly "Lasix" to make him urinate, then put into the hold by himself, where he died.

It was not the right time for urinalysis; he was not taken to the right place where it's done; he shouldn't have even had a UA, and even though a doctor had previously noted on his file that he had urinary tract problems, and should not be forced to urinate on command. He was given an injection of what was said was "Lasix", a diuretic.

He was taken to John Petersmith Hospital, which is odd in itself, because ALL inmates are taken to Ft. Worth Osteopathic Hospital where the B.O.P.'s [Bureau of Prisons] contract is.

I am NOT a black helicopter conspiracy nut. I saw this with my own eyes close enough that I could have hit it with a rock. [End quoting]

This sounds much more realistic than the government's sorry explanation. Why would the elite let Jim give his side of the Whitewater story to the public??

SHARON: WE WILL TRY AGAIN TO KILL HAMAS LEADER

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, <wrldline@texas.net>, 3/19/98: [quoting]

Minister of Infrastructure Ariel Sharon has stated that Israel will try again to kill Hamas leader Ahmed Masha'al—the man Mossad agents tried but failed to assassinate in Amman last September.

The botched attempt brought Israel-Jordan relations to an all-time post-peace-agreement low, a situation which was only normalised again with the appointment of a new Mossad director earlier this month.

On Sunday Jordanian officials expressed surprise and anger at Sharon's statement, rejecting any Israeli right to act against a citizen of the Hashemite kingdom. [End quoting]

Some people are very thick-headed, and if Sharon doesn't wish to sign his own death warrant it might be wise for him to back off because he ought to know by now that what he puts out will mirror back to him. "live by the sword, die by the sword".

INSPECTIONS OF RENTED RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES

From the INTERNET, courtesy of James Seabourn, <crtisad@inland.net>, 3/24/98: [quoting]

This is horrible. I have to wonder if NJ and Delaware aren't prototypes for the rest of the states. I picture this happening in Oregon with a few inspectors getting shot or mysteriously showing up face down along the Koos River or one of dozens of creeks and rivers. I don't advocate violence but tend to savor the

thought just a wee bit under "certain conditions". I wouldn't want to be the inspectors. Imagine popping up on-site at a drug house or a bunch of wooly bikers! (Although I doubt the inspectors will choose those houses anyway.) That might not be as bad as the rednecks who are very serious about any sort of government intervention. For some its still "the American Way" for many and, well—times are getting so that maybe violence is all that's left. It will be the Patriots (everyday men, women and children) in addition to the National Guard that end up saving us. I'd get my rifle out but I don't think I will have the opportunity to do my part in that department as per the NDE.

This infuriates me as it should everyone!—Red

The following notices were handed out last year to New Jersey renters:

"PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT BEGINNING JANUARY 28, 1997, A MANDATORY FIVE YEAR STATE INSPECTION WILL BE CONDUCTED AT THE [NAME OF APARTMENT COMPLEX]. A STATE INSPECTOR WILL BE ENTERING EACH AND EVERY APARTMENT WITH A REPRESENTATIVE OF [NAME OF APARTMENT COMPLEX] TO CONDUCT THE MANDA-TORY INSPECTION WHICH IS REQUIRED BY THE NEW JERSEY STATE MULTIPLE DWELL-ING REGULATIONS.

"WE ARE UNABLE TO GIVE YOU AN EXACT DATE OF WHEN THE INSPECTION WILL BE DONE ON YOUR APARTMENT BUT WE WOULD LIKE TO REMIND YOU THAT ACCESS MUST BE GIVEN ON THE DATE THE INSPECTOR SCHEDULES. THANK YOU FOR YOUR COOPERATION."

In Sussex County, Delaware, County Code Supervisors will perform unannounced code inspections of "private" homes according to new "private" home living standards that are a part of Sussex County Code.

These in-home searches under the new code can be performed without prior notice any time of night or day. They decide when they will show up to put you under inspection, not you.

Those not allowing county code inspectors into their "private" homes can be imprisoned for 30 days and fined \$2500 for the first offense. Subsequent refusal to allow county code compliance inspections, whenever officials show up at your door, will result in home "owner's" eviction and sale of home!

These county code "private" living standards include refrigerator temperature being too hot or cold, general cleanliness, bathroom odors and up to 36 pages of new standards that you can only obtain by driving to the Sussex County Delaware County Seat and pay for it; i.e., they will not mail it to you. You do not even have the right to know what you are accused of violating.

Probable cause to search? That is only in the *Constitution*. It has no bearing on the actions of government officials. A government official can walk into your house at any time, day or night, without notice, without regard to your wishes, your convenience, your plans, your desire for privacy. They need not first accuse you of anything, or even suspect you of anything in particular. Everyone is a suspect, so everyone's home gets searched. If you resist, you go to jail.

In George Orwell's book *1984* we read of a horrifying fictional society where people were under constant surveillance by the Government, even in their own homes. For our own safety, Orwell's fiction is now citizens' reality in New Jersey and Delaware. [End quoting]

It's really not surprising that the elite are speeding up the clamp-down. Are we-the-people ready to **WAKE UPYET??**

FARRAKHAN EXCOMMUNICATED IN MOSLEM RULING

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 3/19/98: [quoting]

The Board of Clergymen of the Italian Moslem Association issued a ruling on March 7, 1998, excommunicating Louis Farrakhan and his "Nation of Islam" movement. *Root and Branch* reports that the religious ruling states, "Everyone who belongs to the 'Nation of Islam' is in fact not a Moslem, but a non-believer."

The ruling also states, "Moslems must declare this truth, and each one of them who keeps silent while listening to Mr. Farrakhan being called a 'Moslem leader' is sinning." The ruling is based on Farrakhan's teaching that Allah appeared in the form of a human being named Fareed Muhammad, which "is a clear contradiction of the monotheistic faith (Tawhid)." [End quoting]

Since when is it a sin to listen to what someone else has to say, even if you disagree with their words? How do you learn if you only get a one-sided story? But then, that's how religions try to keep you tied to them—**keep you dumb and ignorant!!**

IRS NEEDS TELEPHONE-POLE-MOUNTED SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS

From the INTERNET, courtesy of Calvin Burgin, 3/21/98: [quoting]

Commerce Business Daily: Posted May 12, 1997

From the Commerce Business Daily Online via GPO Access <cbdnet.access.gpo.gov>

DESC: The Internal Revenue Service requires enclosed surveillance systems configured as transformers for mounting on telephone poles. Salient characteristics include but are not limited to: 2 watt frequency agile transmitter operating between -20 and +70 degrees Celsius; remote controlled power amplifier increasing output to twelve watts and controlling both transmitter and receiver; continuously steerable dual power (46 and 56 dB) antenna; motorized zoom lens with remote control of focus, zoom, pan (minimum of 270 degrees), and tilt (minimum of +5 to -30 degrees), with dual DTMF motor driver for pan and tilt to reduce speed when zoomed in on target; precision color camera; low light intensifier; covert viewing port (maximum 2.2 by 3.7 inches); and automatic heater for instant video transmission at temperatures from -23 to 0 degrees Celsius. Requirement is indefinite quantity with maximum of 20 units per year for a base year and four one-year options. Negotiations will be conducted on a sole source basis with NS Sports

Microwave, 165 Halpin Avenue, Staten Island, NY 10312. Note 22 applies. No oral requests will be honored.CITE: (I-132 SN071970) [End quoting]

I venture you can guess what the IRS would want these for. You better watch what you do in your homes or around them. No place is safe from their prying eyes from telephone-pole devices, satellites in the skies, etc.

BUSH TO ATTEND CHILDREN'S SUMMIT

From a FAX, courtesy Mark Phillips, 3/15/98: [quoting]

Former President George Bush will attend the Kansas City area children's summit, scheduled for April 25 at Municipal Auditorium

Organizers said that President Clinton also has been invited.

The event, "Kansas City's Promise: The Alliance for Youth", is a follow-up to the national volunteerism summit held last spring in Philadelphia.

Kansas City, Mo., Mayor Emanuel Cleaver and Carol Marinovich, mayor of the Unified Government of Wyandotte County, Kan., were among area delegates who attended the Philadelphia summit. Their cities and area suburbs will take part in the April event.

At the national summit, Gen. Colin Powell issued a call to save 15 million children burdened by poverty, abuse, crime, inferior education or other social problems. Summit organizers set a goal of helping 2 million children by the year 2000. Metropolitan Kansas City's responsibility is 10,000 children.

Area residents and businesses are being asked for pledges of help to be put into what organizers call a "Promise Book", which will be presented at the summit.

The Kansas City summit will focus on the five goals of the national summit: to give children healthy starts, safe places to learn and grow, marketable skills, caring relationships with adults, and opportunities to give back to their communities. [End quoting]

Bush—one of the most depraved child molesters in the world—of course who better to be invited to this gathering?

This whole setup smells of NWO and child abusers. If they really wanted to help the children they would allow the children to get an excellent education in the schools and keep their noses out of their home-lives. It's much better in most homes than what the government is allowing to happen in their own offices.

BRITAIN CONFIRMS IRAQI ANTHRAX WARNING

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 3/24/98: [quoting]

Britain's air- and seaports have been put on alert to the threat of deadly anthrax being smuggled into the country by Iraq, the Prime Minister's Office said Monday.

The all-ports warning follows a threat by Iraqi President Saddam Hussein to flood Britain with the toxin disguised inside duty-free bottles of alcohol, cosmetics, cigarette lighters and perfume sprays, according to a report today in *The Sun*, a tabloid newspaper.

The alert was issued Wednesday, the same day a British intelligence document revealed an Iraqi plot to smuggle large quantities of anthrax into hostile countries, *The Sun* said. [End quoting]

I'm very suspicious of this report. If we take into consideration that the elite need a Middle East war badly—to keep on schedule with their NWO plans and what Saddam is doing otherwise—not what the **elite** tell you he's doing—I believe this is **AUTHENTIC WAR HYPE**.

They'll use Saddam and his people until they're all dead, for their evil purposes including the further enslavement of us.

OIL DECISION TO FUEL RISE AT THE PUMP

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 3/24/98: [quoting]

Cheap gasoline's days are numbered.

A decision by major oil-producing countries to cut their crude oil output and the approach of the summer travel season means automobile owners are likely to see gas prices creep upward.

"We knew prices couldn't stay down forever," said Mike Morrissey, spokesman for the American Automobile Association. [End quoting]

I venture to say that the U.S.—as a member of OPEC—is the biggest booster of this monopoly tactic of collusion to cut the production of oil to raise prices.

Do you remember in the '70s when the excuse to raise oil prices was that we were running out of oil? And here it is two decades later and the excuse for raising prices is that we can't make enough profit because there is too much oil, so we have to limit its production.

FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) REGIONAL BOUNDARIES

The chart below is a timely reminder of the elite's plans for your very near future. Are we going to let them put the final phases into operation??

From MEDIA BYPASS, Sep. 1997: [quoting]

fema chart

HYPING TEST SCORES

LAUSD Encourages Low-Performers Not To Take Exam

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 3/19/98: [quoting]

Thwarted in its desire to legally challenge a state mandate to test all students in English, the Los Angeles school board quietly launched a campaign aimed at getting parents of Spanish-speaking children to opt out of the exam.

Superintendent Ruben Zacarias signed letters that were distributed last week advising parents of tens of thousands of children who will take the Stanford 9 test that they have the right not to take it. A form to withdraw from the test was attached.

If successful, the effort could result in sharply raising overall LAUSD results on the standardized test by eliminating the scores of low-performers. [End quoting]

Ruben Zacarias was just put in charge of cleaning up the Los Angeles school district a few months ago and this is his idea of what cleaning it up means—but what can you expect from a good Khazarian Jew.

This is a local issue, but I included it here because **the same type of conniving snakes are probably operating in your area schools also!**

EVERYBODY LOVES KENAF

From POPULAR MECHANICS magazine, April 1998: [quoting]

Farmers here are eyeing kenaf, Hibiscus cannabinus, as a new cash crop.

The big attraction of the hardy plant, which is related to okra, is that farmers can basically plant it and forget about it. Environmentalists like kenaf because its bark can be used in place of tree pulp by the paper and newsprint industries. Makers of disposable diapers and kitty litter say the plant's highly absorbent core is ideal for their products.

Georgia farmers are growing kenaf as a commercial crop under a 4-year University of Georgia researchproject.

Kenaf reaches its adult height of 12 to 14 ft. in about six months. [End quoting]

Sounds like a crop that the elite will soon do something to discourage or stop the use of. CARBON-BASED ELECTRONICS

From POPULAR MECHANICS magazine, April 1998: [quoting]

Trading silicon for carbon will eventually make it possible to build computer chips and electronic circuits that are at least one hundred times smaller than those currently in use, say researchers at NASA's Ames Research Center.

The carbon will be used to create molecule-size pipes called nanotubes (see "Shrinking Micromachines", page 55, Nov. '97). Applying materials with different electronic properties to the ends of precisely aligned nanotubes will create molecular electronic switching, transistor and amplifying components for use in computer chips, says Deepak Srivastava, who simulated these components on a supercomputer.

"Not only will carbon-based electronic circuits be much smaller," explains NASA's Srivastava, "but they will be substantially faster and probably less expensive." [End quoting]

What an amazing world it would be if science would **only be used for the benefit of mankind.**

ANTI-MEAT AD BANNED

But Would They Ban Misleading "Global Warming" Government Ads?

From *THE STRATEGY*, Australia, /98: [quoting]

It is a very simple matter to paraphrase the *GUARDIAN WEEKLY* article using as the subject the CFC/ OZONE or the CARBON DIOXIDE/GLOBAL WARMING HOAX. The vegetarian anti-meat campaign is reckless. To turn people off meat, without ensuring that they have the information and understanding to put together a nutritious and convenient vegetarian diet is dangerous. In addition meat, besides being practically an essential food item, contains an important substance, Gamma Hydroxy Butyric Acid (Butyric as in Butter).

Gamma Hydroxy Butyric acid is widely referred to in the U.S. as GHB. GHB is used to assist drug addicts overcome their addiction to opiates, which of course is a threat to the profits of DOPE INC, which seeks, through "back channels" to have GHB banned. [End quoting]

The elite don't ban something that is bad for us—unless there is a big benefit for them, i.e., drugs—where they have more profit and control by keeping it illegal.

PRISONER'S PAY RECORD

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 3/16/98: [quoting]

In a recent issue of The News Desk I included an article about the prisoner slave-laborers—this is additional information about their pay scales. Remember this is not only slave labor but they are taking **our** jobs away from us and the elite are finding far more reasons to put people in prisons where they will be available for their production lines—after all it's even cheaper and easier than having to deal with foreign transportation and foreign mafias to get their products produced and into this country.

prisoner pay record

Isn't it about time **WEALLWAKE UP!!** <u>TOO LATE TO FIX ALL GOVERNMENT'S</u> <u>YEAR-2000 BUGS, OFFICIALS SAY</u>

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 3/19/98: [quoting]

With only 652 days until the end of the century, it is too late for federal agencies to fix all of the year-2000 bugs in their critical computer systems, and some government functions are likely to be disrupted, high-ranking government auditors warned a House hearing Wednesday.

It is time, federal officials urged, to set priorities for repairing the more than 5,000 computer systems that are essential to the day-to-day functions of government agencies—which range from issuing tens of millions of Medicare checks every month, to keeping airplanes safely separated in flight every minute, to keeping track of when prisoners are eligible for release. But no one addressed how to make those decisions.

The year 2000 problem is that on Jan. 1, 2000, millions of computers that keep track of years as two-digit numbers will roll over from 99 to 00 and treat the new year as 1900, not 2000. They may therefore refuse even to communicate with computers that believe otherwise. The two-digit dating system is a device from computing's early days to save memory capacity, which was scarce and expensive.

A count by the Office of Management and Budget on Feb. 15 found that with two years of effort completed and 21 months to go, only 35 percent of computers that are critical for agencies to perform their missions have been checked and fixed, with 3,500 remaining, according to witnesses Wednesday.

Speaking of the problem that is known among computer specialists as Y2K, for year 2000, Gene Dodaro, the top expert on information systems at the General Accounting Office, the congressional auditing agency, said, "It is unlikely that agencies can complete this vast amount of work in time."

Another witness, Dennis Schindel, an assistant inspector general of the Treasury Department, which issues everything from Social Security checks to tax refunds, said there was "a high risk that significant problems could occur to prevent a successful Y2K conversion.

None of the witnesses, however, could say which systems will fail if not corrected. Some, including a "Year 2000 Czar" appointed by the White House, John Koskinen, said it was too soon to be so pessimistic. An official from the Treasury Department predicted that Social Security payments would continue uninterrupted because the computers would be fixed and tested by the year 2000. [End quoting]

I "believe" the government bureaucrats—who take the *Kol Nidre* every year—don't you?? Sure!

<u>A GATHERING OF</u> <u>GENTLE BLESSINGS</u>

From GUIDEPOSTS, Jan. 1998, P.O. Box 1479, Carmel, NY 10512: [quoting]

I thought if I took a trip to a faraway place I could escape the pain of loss.

While I was leafing through the pages of a catalog from a group called Country Walkers, a trip had caught my eye. It was a weeklong walking tour in Cornwall, the craggy peninsula at the southwestern tip of England, where the ocean beats against rocky cliffs and beguiling ancient legends hover in the air like mist. So I signed up to join a dozen or so others and several guides; in August 1996 we would meet in the seaside town of Penzance and from there climb the coastal paths of the area that claimed King Arthur, and in whose hillsides nestled the remains of prehistoric settlements and mysterious stone circles. A place so removed from my own daily life would help me get away, I hoped, from the sadness that had enveloped me.

My mother had died suddenly in the spring of 1993, and my father almost exactly a year later. Even though time had passed I was still paralyzed by moments of grief and desolation. I longed to feel connected to my loved ones, to know that what linked me to them was still intact.

My mother had the most beautiful singing voice I have ever heard. Her solos at events in our West Virginia and Ohio communities were exclaimed about by everyone. Among her favorite selections was *The Holy City*, which begins, "Last night I lay a-sleeping ... " and whose verses gradually build in intensity to a glorious chorus: "Jerusalem, Jerusalem, lift up your gates and sing ... Hosanna in the highest ... Hosanna to your king". When she and my father made their long-awaited trip to the Holy Land in the 1980s, the tour bus stopped on a hillside overlooking Old Jerusalem, and the group's leader—once the minister of our church—had asked my mother to sing the song.

As my father told me in one of his warmly eloquent letters, "Your mother sang *The Holy City* so beautifully and impressively that when she finished, the bus did not move for several minutes while most all present regained composure and dried their tears. Dr. Boak stated that he and his wife would never forget that moment and doubted if anyone present ever would either." When my mother died *The Holy City* was sung at the conclusion of her funeral. "Hosanna in the highest ... Hosanna to your king."

After our parents' deaths, life went on for my brother, sister and me. Still, the clouds of sorrow were debilitating. Then, in June of 1996, the cat that had curled at my side for 15 years retreated to a corner and refused to eat.

I had originally adopted the cat from an animal shelter; at the time the staff informed me that her name was Onions. *Onions*? For nearly a year I called her what I thought was a more suitable name; she merely stretched and ignored me. When one night, just testing, I called, "Onions?" she replied *whirr-up!* and bounded toward me. Whether I liked it or not she was clearly Onions. And so it remained—people often commenting on her unusual name—for many happy years. Until Onions became ill and I lay next to her on the floor night after night, my hand on her fur. She did not recover.

I felt it again: a jarring dislocation, an unraveling of continuity. Touchstones that had sustained me were gone. I could not be comforted.

So about six weeks after Onions died I took a plane to London and boarded a train for the five-hour trip to Penzance. Looking at my map, I noted the peninsula toward which I traveled had been labeled "Inspirational Cornwall". Curious.

As passengers disembarked, I found myself alone in the railroad car. Suddenly the sadness was upon me again. I put my hands over my face, shaking with grief. "I need help," I said, in a voice so forceful that I startled myself. This was no polite prayer, but a bold and ferocious declaration: "I can't go on like this. I've got to have help."

A half hour later the train pulled into Penzance, and I stepped into a wash of pearly light and a rush of salty air. By the time I checked into a rambling seaside hotel, the Country Walkers group had already left for the cliffs. They would be back by dinnertime. Setting off by myself to explore, I walked the cobblestone streets of the charming town, drawn back through time in the warm, salty air.

At some point I abruptly stopped and looked up. On the bluff above was a church of sand-colored limestone, edged with graceful low spires and a soaring tower. As if following a command, I began to climb toward it.

I crossed the old graveyard, where thin headstones leaned into wind that had polished the dates from their surfaces. A sign announced this was St. Mary's Church. I pulled at the wooden doors. Locked. My longing to go inside increased. Perhaps doors on the other side were open. I walked around the building and tried again.

This time the door swung inward. I stepped into the back of a sanctuary bathed in the tender glow of stained-glass windows. And then, breaking the silence, there was music from a piano and a woman started to sing: "Last night I lay a-sleeping, There came a dream so fair..."

They were the opening words of The Holy City.

It felt as if I had been gently slapped on both cheeks and brought sharply, astonishingly, back to life. In the near-empty church the words rang clearly. The melody's power and intensity built phrase after phrase, culminating in the soaring chorus I knew so well. "Jerusalem, Jerusalem, lift up your gates and sing ..."

As the verses continued I stood motionless. And in my mind and heart, with a reality every bit as solid as the granite walls and cliffs of Cornwall that had endured for centuries, I heard the voice of my mother—

singing in the choir at our Steubenville church, practicing at our piano on Euclid Avenue in Weirton, thrilling the tourists in Israel. "Hosanna in the highest ... Hosanna to your king."

When the song ended the church was quiet again except for the rustle of pages as the pianist gathered his music. "The soloist will be giving a concert here later," a man in the back explained pleasantly. "We've opened the church for these few minutes so she could practice. Lucky you happened to be passing at exactly this time. Lovely, wasn't it?"

Choked by tears, I could only nod. "We'll be locking up again now," the man said. Quickly I scanned the sanctuary; I had to have something to take with me. Near the exit were items intended for sale, and I saw a small white book, *Prayers From The Heart*. It would be a perfect reminder of this blessed moment. Impulsively I also picked up a small blue pamphlet, put coins in the nearby box and stepped out into the sunlight.

The book felt good in my hand. And what charming drawings of a lamb, a bird, a church in the moonlight. I looked at the artist's name.

The first name was Gill. The last name was Onions.

Onions? The conjunction of such specific messages, perhaps small to some but deeply significant to me, delivered within moments of each other, struck me as so amazing that I laughed out loud. A human being whose proper, official, real-life last name was Onions?! (Later I checked British phone books to see if it were perhaps a common local name. It wasn't.)

There was a wooden table and bench in the churchyard, and I sat gazing across water turned to gold by the late-aftemoon sun. After a while I looked at the pamphlet I had also gathered hastily from the vestibule. It turned out to be a compilation of prayers put together by the congregation of St. Mary's. I suppose it should have been no surprise that when I turned the pages, the first words I saw were these:

"Nothing can make up for the absence of someone we love ... we must simply hold out and see it through."

Taking a deep breath, I read on. "That sounds very hard at first, but at the same time it is a great consolation, for the gap, as long as it remains unfilled, preserves the bonds between us." It was a quote from theologian Dietrich Bonhoeffer. "It is nonsense to say that God fills the gap; God doesn't fill it, but on the contrary, he keeps it empty and so helps us to keep alive our former communion with each other, even at the cost of pain."

I read on, entry after entry about the loss of loved ones speaking specifically to the ache in my heart. "Whatever we were to each other, that we still are," were the words of Henry Scott Holland, once Canon of St. Paul's Cathedral. "Call me by my old familiar name, speak to me in the easy way you always used.... Play, smile, think of me. Let my name be ever the household word it always was.... Life means all that it ever meant. It is the same as it ever was; there is unbroken continuity."

For perhaps an hour I sat there, letting the words sink in. Something I had read in my guidebooks came back to me: The town's name, Penzance, is from the Cornish pen sans, which means "holy headland". The wind was caressing and sweet, and gulls called like children. My senses were flooded with shimmering

light, music, air. With life. And love that never stops.

That evening at dinner I told some of my walking companions what had happened. The next day, when we entered a small fishing village named Mousehole, one of our guides pointed to the gray stone seawall. "Look," he said quietly. "Somebody is really trying to tell you something."

In large runny letters, a villager had for some reason been moved to paint these words: "Hello, Sweet Onions."

And the waves surged against the rocks and sang the words that eased my loss and transcended time: "Hosanna. Hosanna in the highest." [End quoting]

This fortunate soul couldn't escape God's messages of love if she wanted to.

If you still wonder where God is when the world is overwhelming you—open your eyes, ears, heart and mind—and realize He is always with you!

CHAPTER 14

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORTS by Dr. Al Overholt 3/28/98

ALASKA'S SUIT AGAINST TRIBAL TAX HITS HIGH COURT

From USA TODAY, Jan. [13, 1998??]: [quoting]

Jobs are rare and cash is scarce here in this Athabaskan Indian village above the Arctic Circle. So when the state of Alaska decided to build a new school for the village in 1987, the Venetie Tribal Council levied a 5% tax—? \$60,000—on the contractor.

"We did this for our people," said Donna Erick, a tribal administrator. "We didn't realize it could affect the whole United States."

But it might. The action by the tribal council in this tiny cluster of log cabins sent a shudder through the Alaskan state government, which refused to pay the tax. The subsequent litigation has wound its way to the U.S. Supreme Court, which will hear arguments to the case today.

The high court's ruling, expected by next summer, could affect not only the 789 members of the tribe but relations between dozens of American Indian tribes and many states in the Lower 48.

Venetie (pronounced VEEN-ih-tie), sits on the edge of a 1.8-million-acre tract, the ancestral land of the Gwich'in Athabaskan tribe. The area is about the size of Delaware. More than 150 miles from the nearest road, the village has changed little since the first outsiders penetrated the Arctic 100 years ago. Trapping, fishing and hunting are a way of life. Moose, caribou and salmon are mainstays of the villagers' diet.

The only reminders of a more modern world are the crack of a hunting rifle, the whine of a snowmobile and the occasional hum of a single-engine airplane, the only way in and out of Venetie. "We still live off the land, carrying water, hunting and fishing" said Ernest Erick, a trapper and husband of Donna Erick.

The status of the land—specifically, whether the Athabaskan tribe has the same power reservation Indians in the Lower 48 have to tax, to enforce laws and to monitor fishing and hunting on the land—is the issue before the Supreme Court.

Over the years, the tribal council compiled its laws in an inch-thick binder, specifying everything from the proper caliber rifle for hunting caribou (a 30-06 or 30-08) to the sum anyone crossing Venetie land must pay the tribe (\$5).

The state never conceded the legitimacy of these laws but, recognizing that it could not regulate villages as remote as Venetie, turned a blind eye toward most tribal rules. Then Venetie tried to tax the state itself.

The state sued, arguing that unlike tribes in the continental United States, Native Alaskans have no authority over their land. The U.S. District Court ruled in the state's favor.

The U.S. Court of Appeals for the 9th Circuit disagreed. In a decision handed down in 1996, the threejudge court ruled that the people of Venetie live in what is technically known as "Indian Country" that Alaska must recognize as tribal land. The tribe's sovereign powers include the right to impose taxes, the court said.

The court defined "Indian Country" as land that had been set aside for Native use and populated by a cohesive Native community that maintained a close relationship with the federal government. That definition raised fears the 40 million Alaskan acres, almost 11% of the state, could shift from state to tribal control.

"In practically every area of government," Alaska officials told the Supreme Court, "Alaskans—Native and non-Native alike—must now ask themselves the basic question: who is in charge?"

The case also electrified attorneys general in the Lower 48. Twenty-five states have signed a brief supporting Alaska. Venetie is backed by the Native American Rights Fund and other Indian groups.

The high court will delve into the 1971 Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, enacted by Congress soon after oil was discovered on Alaska's North Slope. To settle Native Alaskans' claims and open the North Slope to development, the law ceded to the natives more than 40 million acres of land and paid them \$1 billion.

The act sought to foster economic self-sufficiency among Native Alaskans by creating corporations to make money for the tribes. When the law passed, Venetie's former reservation status was revoked, and the title to 1.8 million acres passed to the Venetie native corporation.

But the law said nothing about sovereignty. Alaska Attorney General Bruce Bothelo argues that this silence means "Congress never contemplated this land would be under control of the tribes."

The results of the settlement act have been mixed. While some corporations have pursued ventures in tourism, logging or mining, others faltered and disbanded. Venetie, unwilling to borrow for economic development, dissolved its corporation in 1978 and turned the land over to the tribal council.

"We're in the best position to do this job ourselves," says Calvin Tritt, a former tribal council member.

The appeals court ruled that because the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act never explicitly prohibited tribal sovereignty, it therefore exists. Although Venetie is not a reservation, the court said that as a contiguous piece of land populated entirely by tribal members, the land should be considered Indian Country and under complete tribal control.

If the appeals court's definition of Indian Country should prevail in the Supreme Court, thousands of acres of what is now state land in the Lower 48 could revert to tribal authority, state officials have told the Supreme Court.

"It sent chills up our spine," said Tom Gede, a special assistant attorney general in California. "It suggests the court can give Indian Country status to land long understood to be under the control of the states."

South Dakota Deputy Attorney General Larry Long fears pockets of sovereign Indian land could mushroom everywhere. "The impetus would be gaming," he says. "Buy a piece of land close to a population center with 20 or 30 tribe members living there and declare Indian Country."

In Venetie, the question over the future is simpler.

"This is about controlling our destiny, living as Gwich'in people, on the land as we were meant to," says Ernest Erick." [End quoting]

I have a feeling that many of the elite will be furious if the Indians get more control of the land they live on, but it's **about time they get some justice from the courts.**

* * *

<u>COMMUNIST TO THE CORE</u> <u>GORE-CHERNOMYRDIN COMMISSION "HAMMERED"</u>

From the INTERNET, courtesy Teri York, <teriyork@primenet.com>, 3/27/98: [quoting]

The WASHINGTON TIMES article of today is very interesting.

Most of us were already aware of the Gore-Communism connection. Now we find that Gore had even more active engagements with the Communists than we ever imagined.

To come up to speed on the Gore Communism Connection, please visit these links then read this *Washington Times* Article. Get on the horn and call your congress persons. TOLL FREE (800)522-6721

http://TeamInfinity.com/~ralph/gore http://TeamInfinity.com~ralph/gore/hammer.jpg http://TeamInfinity.com~ralph/gore/gorehammer.jpg http://TeamInfinity.com~ralph/gore/leninhammer.jpg

[*The Washington Times*] [International] Published in Washington, D.C. 5am—March 25, 1998 <www.washtimes.com>

NEWS ANALYSIS

Chernomyrdin's ouster sets back Gore's hopes

[T]he fall of Russian Prime Minister Viktor Chernomyrdin is a hammer blow to Vice President Al Gore's vision of starting the millennium with a golden era of superpower cooperation with someone who is supposed to be his old friend. "Chernomyrdin's fall means the unraveling of a relationship which the vice

president has staked a lot on," David Kramer of the Carnegie Endowment for International Peace said yesterday.

For the past five years, Mr. Gore has sought to build his reputation as a global statesman and a foreign policy heavyweight by forging a close personal friendship with Mr. Chernomyrdin. Pursuing this goal, the vice president has tirelessly promoted intimate intergovernment cooperation with Moscow through the huge Joint Commission on Economic and Technological Cooperation, better known as the Gore-Chernomyrdin commission.

"Clearly, the Gore-Chernomyrdin commission was based on the personal special relationship between the two men," said Dimitri Simes, president of the Nixon Center. "There was a degree of personal chemistry and mutual confidence." But the sacking of the Russian prime minister Monday by President Boris Yeltsin "means that Gore will have to start over from scratch with his successor in working to establish the kind of relationship he had with Chernomyrdin", Mr. Kramer said.

The future of the huge, unwieldy commission, which meets every six months alternately in Moscow and Washington, is up in the air. And the high public profile it gave Mr. Chernomyrdin may even have contributed to his downfall.

The most recent meeting of the commission ended only two weeks ago in Washington and was accompanied by massive media coverage in Russia. Mr. Chernomyrdin had been building up his television image in hopes of emerging as Mr. Yeltsin's successor in a bid for the presidency in the 2000 elections, Moscow analysts said.

That proved to be a fatal political mistake because it prompted Mr. Yeltsin to strike down Mr. Chernomyrdin before he could truly develop an independent power base, Mr. Simes said.

Launched at the 1993 summit in Vancouver, Canada, between President Clinton and Mr. Yeltsin, the commission became virtually an extra arm of both the U.S. and Russian governments, tying up hundreds of officials in both Moscow and Washington on subjects as diverse as developing Russia's Far East oil reserves, writing a Russian tax code and mapping the Russian Arctic.

Some weary U.S. officials even joked that, not content with laboring to redefine the U.S. government's bureaucracy, Mr. Gore was trying to do the same thing for Russia. But critics charged that Mr. Gore's cozy personal relationship with Mr. Chernomyrdin and the endless, mind-numbing joint projects they fostered distracted U.S. attention from, and failed to ease, the growing fundamental clashes between the two great nations on such issues as NATO expansion into Central Europe, Russian nuclear reactor sales to Iran and Russia's reviving relationships with Iraq and Syria. However, the commission allowed Mr. Gore to escape the usual fate of vice presidents who are ridiculed because they play no significant policy-making roles. He was able to present himself as the day-to-day manager of America's most crucial international relationship with the other global nuclear power.

Gore allies in the administration even boasted to the media that Russian Cabinet ministers often asked his help in persuading Mr. Chernomyrdin to increase their budgets. But the Russian political system is not the American political system.

"Anybody dealing with Russia today faces the problem that, after you build personal relationships with great effort and over long periods of time with senior officials, you wake up one morning and find, 'Boom!' everybody you know has just been fired and you have to start from the beginning all over again," Mr. Simes said.

After Mr. Chernomyrdin was fired, Mr. Gore's office took the unusual step of issuing a statement pledging that he and Mr. Clinton "will continue to work closely with the Russian government to build a peaceful and more stable world." Defense Secretary William Cohen took a similar tone yesterday. "I do not anticipate it will have an impact on our relationship. And I don't think it will have any bearing on the ratification of [the] START-2" strategic arms reduction treaty by the Russian Duma, or lower house of parliament, he said.

Mr. Cohen also told reporters he had information that Mr. Yeltsin planned to keep Defense Minister Igor Sergeyev, Foreign Minister Yevgeny Primakov and senior adviser Andrei Kokoshin in their jobs.

Kremlin spokesman Sergei Yastrzhembsky appeared to confirm this. He said Mr. Yeltsin had praised both men. "This can be viewed as the president's wish that Primakov and Sergeyev retain their posts," Itar-Tass news agency quoted him as saying.

* This article is based in part on wire service reports.

GORE AND ARMAND HAMMER [HEIMER] THE COMMUNIST CONNECTION

Some of you may recall that Al Gore's family's rise to fame came via Armand Hammer, whose father Dr. Julius Heimer, was the founder of the Communist Party here in the USA, and an abortionist. Julius, being the founder of the Communist Party in the USA, named his child ArmAnd for that very reason.

Gore to this day, as a part of his "Reinventing Government" program, gives out the prestigious "Hammer" Award, to those comrades exhibiting adherence to whatever 5-year plan or suitable analogy in place at the time. For those who are not familiar with this I include here just some of the facts, please send me e-mail if you would like more info.

AL GORE THEME: <u>IF I HAD A HAMMER</u> by F.R. Duplantier

If Al Gore Jr. ever runs for President, he'll have to answer some embarrassing questions about the source of his family's wealth.

"One of the minor mysteries of American politics has been the source of wealth for the family of Vice President Albert Gore Jr.," observes Joseph Goulden of *Accuracy in Media*. "When Gore's father was first elected to the House of Representatives in the late 1930s," Goulden continues, "he was an impecunious Tennessee school teacher who eked out extra dollars by playing fiddle at church weddings. But later, as a United States Senator, he lived in the plush Fairfax Hotel on Embassy Row in Washington, and sent his

son, Al Jr., to the pricey St. Albans School, the haunt of kids from Social Register families".

In a recent issue of the *Washington Inquirer*, Goulden summarizes the contents of a new book called *Dossier*, written by investigative reporter Edward Jay Epstein, which "shows that the senior Gore had a silent partner who for several decades insured that his pockets remained comfortably filled. He was Armand Hammer, the multi-millionaire businessman and oil promoter who apparently collected art and politicians with equal zeal." Goulden notes that Al Gore Sr. was "Hammer's designated door-opener in official Washington".

The handsome compensation that Gore Sr. received for his services culminated in a half-a-million-dollarsa-year position with Armand Hammer's oil company, Occidental Petroleum. Al Gore Jr. picked up where his father left off and "put the family's Senate seat at Hammer's service".

Goulden describes Armand Hammer as "one of the odder, more odious characters of American business and politics, 'famous' chiefly because he was rich enough to promote his mammoth ego". He notes that Hammer's carefully and expensively crafted public persona was "that of a renegade oilman who made billions from Libyan oil, chummed around with politicians up to White House level, and adorned acres of galleries with paintings, some priceless, some fakes. Hammer's lawyers bedeviled honest journalists who tried to write otherwise."

Hammer's powerful influence on Al Gore Sr. and Jr. would have been bad enough had he been nothing more than an unscrupulous businessman. Like his father Julius, however, he was a lifelong Communist and a friend of the Soviet Union. "Some scattered hints that Hammer's ties with the USSR went beyond business friendship have surfaced over the years," says Goulden. Documents discovered in Soviet archives, however, leave no doubt that Hammer was "a man who bribed and cheated his way to great wealth—and who started with Soviet gold."

Edward Jay Epstein's new book, *Dossier*, makes a compelling case that both Al Gore Sr. and Al Gore Jr. were the willing partners of a very powerful and very wealthy man, Armand Hammer, who was not loyal to the United States of America. A truly independent press would have exposed these connections decades ago, long before Al Gore Sr. and Jr. rose to their prestigious and influential positions. Check out http://www.anywho.com, they have a REVERSE TELEPHONE DIRECTORY, make sure you are not part of it !

Write Peter.Navy@Rocketmail.com to obtain the BLOCKBUSTER suppressed book: *Tragedy & Hope* by Carroll Quigley

Write him for a list of OTHER suppressed books as well.

CHAPTER 15

GARY WEAN'S LATEST NOTICE TO THE PEOPLE by Gary Wean 3/25/98

Editor's note: For those of you who may be new to our readership, meet Gary L. Wean: he entered the Los Angeles Police Department Academy in 1946, after making a number of distinguishing contributions in World War II. Along the road of a brilliant police career, he eventually became Chief Investigator for the Ventura County Public Defender Office. Gary had contributed many articles to CONTACT, but none created a bigger stir than our Front Page for our 9/6/94 issue, when he wrote the definitive story called, "O.J. Simpson Frame-Up: Jewish Mafia Conspiracy For Race Riots & Revolution" which we have, by popular demand, been pressured to reprint on several later occasions.

In my article, "The Final Time Has Come", Part 6, which was published in the CONTACT newspaper on December 2, 1997, I revealed to the public what the Mongol Jews, Hersh, Aaron Russo and Eisner were plotting. I knew that they were scheming horrendous evil lies to put upon the Christians.

Now we have an absolute confession from the Mongol Jew who forged the documents.

<u>A NOTICE TO THE PEOPLE</u> (The Truth Will Always Out)

On Monday, March 16, 1998, Lawrence Cusack III was arrested by federal authorities. He was charged with forgery and U.S. Mail and Wire Fraud.

Cusack, a longtime associate of Seymour Hersh, had several years ago furnished Hersh with the phony, forged documents that Hersh had based his book *The Dark Side of Camelot* on, to defame President John F. Kennedy and the Catholic, Christian religion.

Gus Russo and Lancer Productions were involved in the conspiracy of denigration along with ABC and Disney owner Michael Eisner and his long-time buddy Aaron Russo, a Hollywood-type movie and documentary producer.

Aaron Russo now has big plans to become governor of the state of Nevada.

Lawrence Cusack III was the son of a Chicago shyster, Lawrence Cusack II, who died in 1985.

Cusack the 3rd claimed he found over 700 documents in his father's files that related to JFK and the Kennedy family and Marilyn Monroe, and to Chicago Mafioso mob boss Sam Giancana.

The shyster lawyer, Cusack the 2nd, a Mongol Jew, was the main source of the false information and propaganda the Jews spread about Sam Giancana the "Mafia mob boss" being involved in the assassina-

tion of JFK to cover up the guilt of the Mongol Jew Crime Family.

U.S. Postal Inspectors filed court papers stating that Cusack the 3rd admitted to forging the documents. These forgeries by Mongol Jews comprised an identical conspiracy to the Anne Frank scam forgeries.

Cusack the 3rd will take the rap to save the skins of Hersh, the Russos and Eisner. If they were brought into it, the entire Mongol Jew conspiracy would have come unraveled.

Seymour Hersh, the Nobel Prize-winning author, was forced to practically dismantle his great work *The Dark Side Of Camelot* after the exposure of his forged documents.

TV media Jews like Larry King had been prepared to huckster Hersh's book and the Russos' and Eisner's documentary right up to another Nobel Prize until my book *There's A Fish In The Courthouse* exposed and ruined their grandiose scheme.

Cusack the 3rd, known in the Mongol jew vernacular as a "document dealer", had conjured up documents for Hersh, the Russos and Eisner purporting that JFK had given a million dollars to Marilyn's mother to hush Marilyn from telling sex stories about JFK and RFK.

These were the kind of filthy lies and crap that the Mongol Jews were preparing to dump on the Christians, and gullible as they are, they would have believed it.

Eisner's ABC and Russo's Lancer Productions quickly cancelled out their evil propaganda documentary.

Aaron Russo, Hollywood's Mongol Jew secret agent, is running around the state of Nevada offering the sky to anyone stupid enough to listen to him and vote for him as governor.

In the March 1998 issue of *Media Bypass*, page 12, Aaron Russo is interviewed by Rich Azar, *Media Bypass* news editor.

Russo was talking about Dr. Jeffry A. Baker, a Florida talk-show host and Christian political activist. Russo stated, "They want to be dictators, the Hitlers; it has to be their way."

Azar then writes, "It was ironic, in a way, that Russo should reference Hitler. For the next question on the list concerned some virulent prose brought to the magazine's attention by a reader upset with our first article on Russo, <u>October 1997</u>. The reader suggested a particular web site (www.garethw.com) for more information, and asked for a retraction of our <u>October 1997</u> article."

(The quoted web site happens to be mine.)

Apparently Editor Azar cannot stand the Truth, for here is what he had to say about my web site: "The information was hateful, to say the least, and fell well short of the threshold needed for a retraction."

Quoting Azar: "The posted article (at www.garethw.com) claimed Russo is a Mongol Jew spreading lies to destroy Christians...Aaron Russo is promising voters the sky...back in Hollywood with his Mongol Jew

buddies he hangs out at Jew restaurants and bars... The Jews laugh uproariously as he regales them with stories of how he has fooled and taken in the stupid Christians and patriots in Nevada and has them eating out of his hand.

"Russo disavowed claims that his political bid is part of any supposed conspiracy to destroy Christianity or take over the world." Otherwise, he said, "I never address that nonsense. My one goal is to make Nevada the freest, most liberty-conscious state that's ever been. That's it, babe." Then Russo lapsed into typical Mongol Jew filthy-mouth language. "I don't address (expletive deleted) morons. How do you address it? Just show me one fact; just one, that's all."

Well, one indisputable fact is DNA, accepted by every court in the land. But there again, Russo and the rest of the Mongol Jews don't accept American Constitutional law.

And notice, not once did Russo say that what was in my web site was not the truth, only that he doesn't "address" it.

But what is also very significant is that *Media Bypass* never said that what was in my web site was not the truth—apparently they are not quite so interested in the Truth and nothing but the Truth as they claim—all they would say about the Truth is that "The information was hateful, to say the least." But now one more little truth: here comes Mongol Jew Cusack the 3rd, <u>confessing</u> to the Federal Authorities that he indeed had forged the documents against the Kennedys that Hersh, Russos and Michael Eisner were using for their propaganda.

I would have preferred that Aaron Russo would have called me a (expletive) moron to my face—I would have offered him his choice of weapons and settled it on the spot.

But of course the result would have been against the law—and as we Christians are law-abiding citizens as our morality teaches us, I will hereby choose the 'Truth' as my weapon.

Yesterday as I sat here writing this report the terrible news came over the TV about the horrible murders at the Jonesboro, Arkansas school house.

Continuously on CNN TV, the Mongol Jew propaganda station, the question was repeatedly asked: <u>Where, where</u> did those boys get the guns? (Sarah Brady will use this.)

But they never brought up the subject of, <u>Why</u>, <u>why</u> did those boys get the guns.

Go back to Part 3 of my article "The Final Time Has Come", published in the *CONTACT* newspaper November 11, 1997. Read again: the Bush Elementary School in Salem, Oregon: Seven-year-old boys (2nd graders) plotted to murder a seven-year-old girl because she had jilted their leader. They nearly killed the girl but they didn't use guns. (Will Sarah use this?) One boy held her hands, another clamped his hands over her mouth, a third boy held her nose and they strangled her. The girl had difficulty breathing and then stopped struggling. Believing her to be dead, they left.

The 2nd-grade gang leader said he got the idea from TV shows where he had seen them blow up a guy's

head. And that "a gang is a group of guys who hang out together at recess, beat up people and sometimes rob and <u>kill</u> people."

In Jonesboro, one of the shooters had just "broke up" with his girl. He got his idea from the TV, where for months they have been playing up Pres. Willie's "oral sex".

All the TV polls claim that Willie's sex acts are his business, and his popularity soars.

In Jonesboro, it will never hit the TV, but the girl broke up with her boyfriend because he wanted her to perform sex like his role model Pres. Willie and Monica did it.

There is coming an in-depth report on these problems in our schools and churches.